LICENSING SUB

COMMITTEE B
Thursday 13 July 2023 at 7.00pm

Until further notice, all Licensing Sub-Committees
will be held remotely

Live stream link: https://youtube.com/live/UOfFC1ZCpSc
Back up link: https://youtube.com/live/Q7vKivOP4Yo

Members of the Sub-Committee:
Councillor Zoe Garbett
Councillor Yvonne Maxwell

lan Williams Contact Gareth Sykes

Acting Chief Executive Governance Officer
Published on: Wednesday, 5 July 2023 governance@hackney.gov.uk

www.hackney.qgov.uk



http://www.hackney.gov.uk/
mailto:governance@hackney.gov.uk

& Hackney

Licensing Sub Committee B
Thursday 13 July 2023

Order of Business

Election of Chair

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest - Members to declare as appropriate
Minutes of the Previous Meeting

Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing Procedure (Pages 13 - 16)

e Hearing procedure Type A — ltem 6
e Hearing procedure Type C — Item 7

Application for a Premises Licence: Abney Chapel, Abney Park, 215
Stoke Newington High Street, London, N16 OLH (Pages 17 - 109)

Review of a Premises Licence: Simmons (Formerly The Viaduct),83
Rivington Street, London, EC2A 3AY (Pages 111 - 286)

Temporary Event Notices - Standing Item



& Hackney

Licensing Sub-Committee Hearings

This guide details the procedure for Licensing Sub-Committee hearings under the
Licensing Act 2003. Whilst this will be used in most cases, the procedure will be
altered in exceptional circumstances and when for example Personal Licences,
Temporary Event Notices and Reviews are considered.

Until further notice, all Licensing Sub-Committee Hearings will be held remotely
using the Google Meets platform. Licensing Sub-Committee Hearings are public
meetings that are live-streamed. Hearings are available to be viewed by the public
online.

A Licensing Sub-Committee will be held if:

e The applicant has applied for a Premises Licence, Provisional Statement,
Club Premises Certificate or expressed their intention to vary their existing
licence/certificate and has advertised this in a local newspaper and displayed
a distinctive blue notice at the premises, following which representations have
been made by a Responsible Authority or Other Person/s.

e A Review has been requested by a Responsible Authority or Other Person/s
and the Review has been advertised by displaying a distinctive blue notice at
the premises and also at the Council’s office and website.

e An application is made to transfer a Premises Licence or for interim authority
and the Police have issued an objection

e The applicant has made a Personal Licence application and the Police have
objected to the Licence being granted.

e A Temporary Event Notice has been given and the Police and/or those in the
Council that exercise environmental health functions have issued an
objection.

Prior to your item being heard:

e The Licensing team upon receiving representations will form a view as to
whether the representations are irrelevant, frivolous, vexatious or for review
applications; repetitious.

e The Licensing team would have provided written notice to all parties in
advance of the hearing and would have responded to any request relating to
personal details being removed from the agenda.

If you do not believe this to have happened, please contact the Licensing Service on
020 8356 4970 or email licensing@hackney.gov.uk as soon as possible. For further
information on the application process, please see the guidance notes at
www.hackney.gov.uk/licensing.



mailto:licensing@hackney.gov.uk
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/licensing

& Hackney

Making decisions on the items being heard:

Hearings will normally be held in public unless the Sub-Committee believe it not to
be in the public interest to do so. Although the Chair will try to make the proceedings
as informal as possible, these hearings are of a quasi-judicial nature, and the rules of
natural justice shall apply.

Only those Responsible Authorities and Other Persons who have made a relevant
representation in writing at the consultation stage can register to speak at a
subsequent hearing. Applicants, Other Persons and Responsible Authorities will
all be given a fair opportunity to put their case and the Sub-Committee will take these
representations into account when making their decision. The Sub-Committee may
still make a decision on any matter even if any party fails to attend the hearing.
However, in these circumstances, it will only be that party’s written representation
that may be taken into account.

For new applications relating to Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates,
Members can grant with additional conditions attached to the licence, exclude any
licensable activities, refuse a Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) if appropriate
or reject the application.

Members when making decisions on variation applications regarding a Premises
Licence or Club Premises Certificate, can modify (add, delete or amend) conditions
on the licence or reject the application in whole or part. Members will be considering
the request for a variation and the impact that this may have. Therefore,
representations should be focused on the impact of the variation, although concerns
relating to the existing terms of the licence may be relevant in considering the track
record of the applicant. However, Members may consider other issues which relate
to the promotion of the licensing objectives, although only if it is reasonable and
proportionate to do so.

For Provisional Statements, Members can consider any steps that are necessary
having regard to the representations made in order to ensure the licensing objectives
are not undermined.

Members when deciding a Review application can modify (add, delete or amend) the
conditions of the licence, exclude any licensable activities, remove a DPS if
appropriate, suspend the licence/certificate for up to 3 months or revoke the
licence/certificate completely.

For transfer of Premises Licences, interim authority requests and Personal Licence
applications Members can only refuse or grant the application.

Members when deciding on an objection made against a Temporary Event Notice
(TEN) will determine whether or not to issue a Counter Notice, which if issued will
prevent the proposed event from proceeding. If a TEN has been given for a
premises that already has a licence/certificate, Members may impose any of those
conditions from the existing licence/certificate to the TEN.



& Hackney

Before the meeting starts:

The Sub-Committee Members are requested to report for business no more than half
an hour before the meeting starts to deal with any administrative/procedural issues.
This will allow Members to consider;

the appointment for any substitutes if required

the appointment of the chair

any procedural issues

obtain the list of attendees

late documents delivered prior to the meeting and to ensure all the paperwork
is in order

The Sub-Committee will not be considering any of the actual points raised within the
Report itself and no Responsible Authority or Other Person/s shall be present when
the Sub-Committee deal with the above issues.

Attending the hearing that concerns you:

All Applicants, Other Persons and Responsible Authorities involved will be informed
in writing of the date and time that their application will be considered by the
Licensing Sub-Committee. Please contact the Licensing Service on 020 8356 4970
or email licensing@hackney.gov.uk to confirm whether you wish to attend and/or
register to speak at the Sub-Committee hearing or if you wish for someone else to
speak on your behalf. If you are unable to attend, the application may be heard in
your absence.

All parties should arrive promptly at the outset of the scheduled meeting regardless
of when the item is listed to be heard on the agenda.

Please contact the Licensing Service for advice within 4 working days from the date
on the notice letter if any of the following apply;

e you have special requirements to help make your representation, because of
a disability or you need a translator for example

e you wish to supply additional [documentary] information such as photographs
and videos/DVDs

Please note that if you wish to provide additional relevant information, this should be
given at least 5 working days before the hearing. Any additional information
provided once the hearing has started will only be accepted if all parties agree.
Please note that the use of videos/DVDs is at the Sub-Committee’s discretion —
requests to show these should be made in advance to the Committee Officer.

Timings

In most cases the application will last no longer than 1 hour, and the times to be
allocated to each section are shown on the relevant hearing procedure. If you think


mailto:licensing@hackney.gov.uk

& Hackney

that your evidence is likely to exceed this time period, please let the Licensing
Service know within 4 working days of the date on the notice letter and the Sub-
Committee will be advised. If your request is agreed, all parties will also be granted
the same extension of time.

Lobbying of Councillors

If a person or an organisation wants to make a representation to the Licensing Sub-
Committee, they must NOT contact Sub-Committee Members directly. Licensing
Sub-Committee Members have to retain an open mind on any application and
determine it on its merits. Members cannot be in anyway biased towards a party.
Therefore, if a Member of the Sub-Committee has had any prior involvement they
must ensure that they come to the hearing with an open mind.

Local ward councillors may be able to speak on behalf of objectors if requested to do
so, provided that if they have a disclosable pecuniary interest (further information
provided below) they leave the meeting room when the application is being
considered unless they have been granted dispensation.

Reports

Agendas and Reports for Licensing Sub-Committees are published on the Council’s
website (www.hackney.gov.uk) 5 working days before the hearing takes place.
Copies are also available by contacting Governance Services on 0208 356 3578 or
email governance@hackney.gov.uk. Copies of applications together with the detail
of any objections will be included in the report.

Appeals

Applicants or any party to the hearing can appeal against the decision made by the
Sub-Committee. The appeal to the Thames Magistrates Court must be made within
21 days of the decision being sent formally in writing. However, TEN’s have the
added restriction that no appeals can be made later than 5 working days before the
event is scheduled to take place.

Withdrawal of an Item or Cancellation of a Hearing

An item may be withdrawn from the agenda of a Licensing Sub-Committee meeting
at short notice due to the withdrawal or resolution of the representations or
objections to an application or notice. A hearing by the Licensing Sub-Committee
may therefore be cancelled at short notice if there are no substantive items
remaining on the agenda.

As much advance notice as is practicable of the withdrawal of an item on the agenda
or cancellation of a meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee will be provided on the
Council’s website but please note that this might be as little as a few hours before
the hearing if the applicant chooses to leave it that late to satisfactorily address any
representation or objection giving rise to the need for a hearing.


http://www.hackney.gov.uk/
mailto:governance@hackney.gov.uk

&= Hackney

Contacts

If you have a query about Licensing Sub-Committee procedures and protocols then
please contact Governance Services: governance@hackney.gov.uk

If your query relates general licensing matters or to specific applications then you
are advised to speak to the Licensing Service. They can be contacted at:

Telephone: 020 8356 4970
E-mail: licensing@hackney.gov.uk



mailto:governance@hackney.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@hackney.gov.uk

& Hackney

Relevant Extracts from Hackney’s Statement of Licensing
Policy

Below are relevant extracts from the Statement of Licensing Policy 2018.
LP1 General Principles

The Council expects applicants to demonstrate:

a) That they have an understanding of the nature of the locality in which the
premises are located and that this has been taken into consideration whilst
preparing the operating schedule.

b) Where the application is for evening and night-time activity, that the proposal
reflects the Council’s aspiration to diversify the offer, whilst at the same time
promoting the licensing objectives.

LP2 Licensing Objectives

Prevention of Crime and Disorder \Whether the proposal includes satisfactory
measures to mitigate any risk of the proposed operation making an unacceptable
contribution to levels of crime and disorder in the locality.

Public Safety Whether the necessary and satisfactory risk assessments have been
undertaken, the management procedures put in place and the relevant certification
produced to demonstrate that the public will be kept safe both within and in close
proximity to the premises.

Prevention of Public Nuisance Whether the applicant has addressed the potential
for nuisance arising from the characteristics and style of the proposed activity and
identified the appropriate steps to reduce the risk of public nuisance occurring.

Protection of Children from Harm Whether the applicant has identified and
addressed any risks with the aim of protecting children from harm when on the
premises or in close proximity to the premises.

LP3 Core Hours
Hours for licensable activity will generally be authorised, subject to demonstrating LP
1 and LP2, as follows:

* Monday to Thursday 08:00 to 23:00
* Friday and Saturday 08:00 to 00:00
» Sunday 10:00 to 22:30

Hours may be more restrictive depending on the character of the area and if the
individual circumstances require it.



& Hackney

Later hours may be considered where the applicant has identified any risk that may
undermine the promotion of the licensing objectives and has put in place robust
measures to mitigate those risks. It should be noted that this policy does not apply to
those who are making an application within a special policy area (see section 3)
unless they have been able to demonstrate that the proposed activity or operation of
the premises will not add to the cumulative impact that is already being experienced.

LP4 Off’ Sales of Alcohol

Hours for the supply of alcohol will generally be restricted to between 08:00 and
23:00.

LP5 Planning Status

Licence applications should normally be from premises where:

a) The activity to be authorised by the licence is a lawful planning use or is a
deemed permitted development pursuant to the General Permitted
Development Order (1995) as amended.

b) The hours sought do not exceed those authorised by any planning
permission.

The Licensing Authority may take into account the lack of planning permission or an
established lawful use in deciding whether there is likely to be any harm to the
licensing objectives.

LP6 External Areas and Outdoor Events

The Licensing Authority will normally restrict external areas and outdoor activity to
between 08:00 and 22:00 unless the applicant can demonstrate that comprehensive
control measures have been implemented that ensure the promotion of the licensing
objectives, in particular the public nuisance objective. Notwithstanding any proposed
control measures, the Licensing Authority may restrict the hours and/or activity even
further.

LP7 Minor Variations
The Council expects applications to be made in the following circumstances only:

e Small changes in the layout/structure of the premises

e The addition of voluntary/agreed conditions

e Removal of conditions that are dated and have no impact on the operation of
the premises

e Reduction of hours for any licensable activity

LP8 Temporary Event Notices

When considering an objection to a TEN the Council will:

« Expect that any existing conditions will be maintained (where relevant) in
circumstances where an event is to take place at a premises that has an existing
authorisation.



& Hackney

* Assess any history of complaints as a result of licensable activity that may or may
not have been authorised by a TEN.

 Consider the track record of the premises user

» Consider any other control measures proposed to mitigate the objection

LP9 Personal Licences

(a) The Council will consider whether a refusal of the licence is appropriate for
the promotion of the crime prevention objective and will consider the:

(i) Seriousness and relevance of any conviction(s) (ii) The period that has
elapsed since committing the offence(s) (iii) Any mitigating circumstances that
assist in demonstrating that the crime prevention objective will not be
undermined.

LP10 Special Policy Areas — Dalston and Shoreditch

It is the Council’s policy that where a relevant representation is made to any
application within the area of the Dalston SPA or Shoreditch SPA, the applicant will
need to demonstrate that the proposed activity and the operation of the premises will
not add to the cumulative impact that is currently being experienced in these areas.

This policy is to be strictly applied.

It should also be noted that the;

» quality and track record of the management;

* good character of the applicant; and

« extent of any variation sought

May not be in itself sufficient. It should be noted that if an applicant can demonstrate

that they will not add to the cumulative impact in their operating schedule and at any
hearing, then the Core Hours Policy within LP3 will apply.

LP11 Cumulative Impact — General
The Council will give due regard to any relevant representations received where

concerns are raised and supported around the negative cumulative impact the
proposed application has on one or more of the licensing objectives.



& Hackney

Advice to Members on Declaring Interests
If you require advice on declarations of interests, this can be obtained from:

e The Monitoring Officer;
e The Deputy Monitoring Officer; or
e The legal adviser to the meeting.

It is recommended that any advice be sought in advance of, rather than at, the
meeting.

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs)
You will have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (*DPI) if it:

e Relates to your employment, sponsorship, contracts as well as wider financial
interests and assets including land, property, licenses and corporate
tenancies.

e Relates to an interest which you have registered in that part of the Register of
Interests form relating to DPIs as being an interest of you, your spouse or civil
partner, or anyone living with you as if they were your spouse or civil partner.

e Relates to an interest which should be registered in that part of the Register of
Interests form relating to DPIs, but you have not yet done so.

If you are present at any meeting of the Council and you have a DPI relating to any
business that will be considered at the meeting, you must:

e Not seek to improperly influence decision-making on that matter;

e Make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of the DPI at or before
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes
apparent; and

e Leave the room whilst the matter is under consideration

You must not:

e Participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become
aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate
further in any discussion of the business; or

o Participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.

If you have obtained a dispensation from the Monitoring Officer or Standards
Committee prior to the matter being considered, then you should make a verbal
declaration of the existence and nature of the DPI and that you have obtained a
dispensation. The dispensation granted will explain the extent to which you are able
to participate.

Other Registrable Interests

You will have an ‘Other Registrable Interest’ (ORI) in a matter if it



& Hackney

e Relates to appointments made by the authority to any outside bodies,
membership of: charities, trade unions,, lobbying or campaign groups,
voluntary organisations in the borough or governorships at any educational
institution within the borough.

e Relates to an interest which you have registered in that part of the Register of
Interests form relating to ORIs as being an interest of you, your spouse or civil
partner, or anyone living with you as if they were your spouse or civil partner;
or

e Relates to an interest which should be registered in that part of the Register of
Interests form relating to ORIs, but you have not yet done so.

Where a matter arises at any meeting of the Council which affects a body or
organisation you have named in that part of the Register of Interests Form relating to
ORIs, you must make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of the DPI at
or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest
becomes apparent. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are
also allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any
discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have
been granted a dispensation.

Disclosure of Other Interests

Where a matter arises at any meeting of the Council which directly relates to your
financial interest or well-being or a financial interest or well-being of a relative or
close associate, you must disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if
members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must
not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the
room unless you have been granted a dispensation.

Where a matter arises at any meeting of the Council which affects your financial
interest or well-being, or a financial interest of well-being of a relative or close
associate to a greater extent than it affects the financial interest or wellbeing of the
majority of inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and a reasonable
member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it would affect your
view of the wider public interest, you must declare the interest. You may only speak
on the matter if members of the public are able to speak. Otherwise you must not
take part in any discussion or voting on the matter and must not remain in the room
unless you have been granted a dispensation.

In all cases, where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that the interest in question is a
sensitive interest, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest itself.



Agenda Item 5

Licensing Sub-Committee hearings, under the Licensing Act 2003 & Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 — Type A [Re; Premises Licence, Club Premises Certificate,

Provisional Statement & Sex Establishment Licence]

Step 1 The Sub-Committee will appointment a Chair.
Appointment of
Chair and The Chair will introduce the Sub-Committee, announce the item, and
introduction establish the identity of those taking part. 5 minutes
The Sub-Committee will consider any requests to depart from normal
procedure, such as holding a private session if it is considered to be
in the public interest to do so or if a deferral/adjournment is requested
for the item.
The Chair (or Legal Adviser if asked by the Chair) will briefly outline
how the hearing will proceed. However, Members may seek
clarification on any issue raised during the hearing if required and if
requested.
Step 2 The Licensing Officer will outline the report.
Licensing Officer 5 minutes
Step 3 The Applicant will present their case in support of their application.
Applicant’s Case 5 minutes
Step 4 The Chair will invite the relevant Responsible Authorities in
Responsible attendance to highlight their reasons for objecting to the application 5 minutes
Authorities’ Case as contained within the report. each
Step 5 The Chair will invite the Other Persons in attendance to present their
Other Persons’ case, highlighting their reasons for objecting or supporting the 5 minutes
Case application as contained in their written submissions. each
Step 6 The Chair will structure and lead a discussion on the information
Discussion presented enabling Sub-Committee Members to clarify any points 15
raised and ask questions if necessary. minutes
Step 7 The Chair will ask Responsible Authorities, Other Persons, Applicants
Closing remarks and the Licensing Officer if they have any final comments to make. 10
These comments can only be in relation to issues raised during the minutes
discussion. These remarks should be brief.
Step 8 - Final Licensing Sub-Committee Members will have a final opportunity to
clarification seek clarification on any points raised, following which the Chair will 5 minutes
conclude the discussion.
Step 9 The Sub-Committee will normally withdraw to consider the evidence
Consideration that has been presented to them with the Committee Officer and 10
Legal Adviser in order that the Sub-Committee can reach a decision minutes
and obtain legal advice if required.
The Legal Adviser will repeat any legal advice given to Members
upon returning to the public hearing.
In simple cases the Sub-Committee may not consider it necessary to
retire.
Step 10 The Sub-Committee will return and the Chair will announce the
Chair announces decision. Reasons for their decision will be given, if appropriate.
the decision
The Licensing Officer will draw attention to any restrictions which will |5 minutes
affect the running of the premises and provide a written record of the
decision, which will be sent to the applicant.

The Council’s procedure rules are also incorporated into these hearing procedures in so far as it does
not conflict the procedures as set out above. The Licensing Hearing Regulations can also be viewed by
following the link below — http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/44/contents/made

Page 13



http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2005/44/contents/made

This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Sub-Committee hearings, under the Licensing Act 2003 — Type C
[Re; Review of a Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate]

Step 1 The Sub-Committee will appoint a Chair. 5 minutes
Appointment of
Chair and The Chair will introduce the Sub-Committee, announce
introduction the item, and establish the identity of those taking part.

The Sub-Committee will consider any requests to depart from

normal procedure, such as holding a private session if it is

considered to be in the public interest to do so or if a

deferral/adjournment is requested for the item.

The Chair (or Legal Adviser if asked by the Chair) will briefly

outline how the hearing will proceed. However, Members may

seek clarification on any issue raised during the hearing if

required and if requested.
Step 2 The Licensing Officer will outline the report. 5 minutes

Licensing Officer
Step 3 The applicant will present their case in support of 5 minutes
Applicant’s Case their application for calling a Review.
Step 4 The Chair will invite the relevant Responsible Authorities in 5
Responsible attendance to highlight their reasons for making a minutes
Authorities’ Case representation in relation to the Review called. each
Step 5 The Chair will invite the Other Persons in attendance to 5
Other Persons’ present their case and highlight their reasons for making a minutes
Case representation in relation to the Review called. each
Step 6 - The Premises Licence/Club Certificate Holder will respond 5 minutes
Premises to the issues raised.
Licence/Club
Certificate Holder

Step 7 The Chair will structure and lead a discussion on the 15 minutes
Discussion information presented and give Sub-Committee Members

an opportunity to seek clarification on any points raised

and ask questions, if necessary.
Step 8 The Chair will ask all parties if they have any final 10 minutes

Closing remarks

comments to make. These comments can only be in
relation to issues raised during the discussion. These
remarks should be brief.

Page 15




Step 9 - Final Licensing Sub-Committee Members will have a final 5 minutes
clarification opportunity to seek clarification on any points raised,

following which the Chair will conclude the discussion.
Step 10 The Sub-Committee will normally withdraw to consider 10 minutes
Consideration the evidence that has been presented to them with the

Committee Officer and Legal Adviser in order that

the Sub-Committee can reach a decision and

obtain legal advice if required.

The Legal Adviser will repeat any legal advice given

to Members upon returning to the public hearing.

In simple cases the Sub-Committee may not

consider it necessary to retire.
Step 11 The Sub-Committee will return and the Chair will 5 minutes
Chair announce the decision. Reasons for their decision will be
announces the given, if appropriate.
decision

The Licensing Officer will draw attention to any
restrictions which will affect the running of the premises
and provide a written record of the decision, which will
be sent to the applicant.

The Council’s procedure rules are also incorporated into these hearing procedures in so far as it
does not conflict the procedures as set out above. The Licensing Hearing Regulations can also

be viewed by following the link below —

h

J/www.legislation.

v.uk/uksi/2 44/contents/m

Page 16




Agenda Iltem 6

& Hackney

For Consideration By

Licensing Sub-Committee

Meeting Date

13 July 2023

Type of Application

Premises Licence

Address of Premises

Abney Chapel, Abney Park, 215 Stoke Newington
High Street, London, N16 OLH

Classification

Decision

Ward(s) Affected

Stoke Newington

Group Director

Rickardo Hyatt

1. Summary

1.1. This is an application for a premises licence to allow authorisation for the
provision of late night refreshment, regulated entertainment and sale of
alcohol on Monday to Sunday.

2. Application
2.1. London Borough of Hackney has made an application for a premises licence
under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.
2.2. The premises is not located within the Special Policy Area.
2.3. The applicant is seeking authorisation for the following licensable activities
and times:
Plays Standard Hours:

Mon 09:00-23:59
Tue 09:00-23:59
Wed 09:00-23:59
Thu 09:00-23:59
Fri  09:00-23:59
Sat 09:00-23:59
Sun 09:00-23:59

Films

Standard Hours:

Mon 09:00-23:59

Page 17



Tue 09:00-23:59
Wed 09:00-23:59
Thu 09:00-23:59
Fri 09:00-23:59
Sat 09:00-23:59
Sun 09:00-23:59

Live Music

Standard Hours:

Mon 09:00-23:59
Tue 09:00-23:59
Wed 09:00-23:59
Thu 09:00-23:59
Fri 09:00-23:59
Sat 09:00-23:59
Sun 09:00-23:59

Recorded Music

Standard Hours:

Mon 09:00-23:59
Tue 09:00-23:59
Wed 09:00-23:59
Thu 09:00-23:59
Fri  09:00-23:59
Sat 09:00-23:59
Sun 09:00-23:59

Performance of
Dance

Standard Hours:

Mon 09:00-23:59
Tue 09:00-23:59
Wed 09:00-23:59
Thu 09:00-23:59
Fri  09:00-23:59
Sat 09:00-23:59
Sun 09:00-23:59

Anything of a similar
description

Standard Hours:

Mon 09:00-23:59
Tue 09:00-23:59
Wed 09:00-23:59
Thu 09:00-23:59
Fri 09:00-23:59
Sat 09:00-23:59
Sun 09:00-23:59

Page 18




24.

3.1.
3.2.

Late Night
Refreshment

Standard Hours:

Mon 23:00-23:59
Tue 23:00-23:59
Wed 23:00-23:59
Thu 23:00-23:59
Fri 23:00-23:59
Sat 23:00-23:59
Sun 23:00-23:59

Supply of Alcohol
(On and Off sales)

Standard Hours:

Mon 11:00-23:59
Tue 11:00-23:59
Wed 11:00-23:59
Thu 11:00-23:59
Fri 11:00-23:59
Sat 11:00-23:59
Sun 11:00-23:59

The opening hours of
the premises

Standard Hours:

Mon 08:00-00:30
Tue 08:00-00:30
Wed 08:00-00:30
Thu 08:00-00:30
Fri  08:00-00:30
Sat 08:00-00:30
Sun 08:00-00:30

The application is attached as Appendix A. The applicant has proposed
measures that could be converted to conditions (see paragraph 8.1 below).

Current Status/History

The premises is not currently licensed for any activity.

No temporary event notices have given for this premises in current year.

Representations: Responsible Authorities

From

Details

Environmental Health Authority | No representation received

(Environmental Protection)

Environmental Health Authority | No representation received

(Environmental Enforcement)

Page 19




6.

6.1.

71.

7.2.

8.1.

1.

Environmental Health
Authority (Health & Safety)

No representation received

Weights and Measures
(Trading Standards)

No representation received

Planning Authority

No representation received

Area Child Protection Officer

No representation received

Fire Authority No representation received

Police Have confirmed no representation based on
agreed conditions as set out in para 8.1

Licensing Authority Representation received on the grounds of

(Appendix B) The Prevention of Public Nuisance

Health Authority

No representation received

Representations: Other Persons

From

Details

27 representations received
from and on behalf of local
residents. (Appendices C1-
C27)

Representation received on the grounds of The
Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public
Safety, Prevention of Public Nuisance and The
Protection of Children from Harm

Guidance Considerations

The Licensing Authority is required to have regard to any guidance issued by
the Secretary of State under the Licensing Act 2003.

Policy Considerations

Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to the London Borough
of Hackney’s Statement of Licensing Policy (“the Policy) adopted by the

Licensing Authority.

The Policy applies to applications where relevant representations have been
made. With regard to this application, policies, LP1 (General Principles), LP2
(Licensing Objectives), LP3 (Core Hours), LP4 (Off Sales of Alcohol) and
LP6 (External Areas and Outdoor Events) and LP11 (Cumulative Impact) are

relevant.

Officer Observations

If the Sub-Committee is minded to approve the application, the following
conditions should be applied the licence:

Supply of Alcohol(On/Both)

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:

(@) At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in

respect of the premises licence.

Page 20




(b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not
hold a personal licence or his personal licence is suspended.

. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be
made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises
do not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in
relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or
more of the following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried
on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for
consumption on the premises -

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are
designed to require or encourage, individuals to;

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the
period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply
alcohol), or

(i) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time

limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a
fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular
characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining
a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to
encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a
period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of
undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters
or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably
be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social
behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
manner.

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of
another (other than where that other person is unable to drink without
assistance by reason of a disability).

. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is
provided on request to customers where it is reasonably available.

. 5.1. The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder

must ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the
premises in relation to the sales or supply of alcohol.

Page 21



5.2 The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises
licences must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is
carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.
5.3. The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible
person to be under 18 years if age (or such older age as may be
specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either:-
A. a holographic mark or
B. an ultraviolet feature.

. The responsible person shall ensure that:
a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for
consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or
supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a
securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following
measures:
* beer or cider:1/2 pint;
* gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml; and
« still wine in a glass: 125ml; and
a. these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other
printed material which is available to customers on the
premises; and
b. where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify
the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that
these measures are available.

Minimum Drinks Pricing

. 7.1 A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for
consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the
permitted price.

7.2 For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 7.1 above -

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor

Duties Act 1979;

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula - P =

D+(DxV) Where -

(i)P is the permitted price,

(ii)D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the

duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(c)V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol

as if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply

of the alcohol;

(d)“relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which

there is in force a premises licence -

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence,
or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of

Page 22



alcohol under such a licence;

(e) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which
there is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the
club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or
officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(f) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance
with the Value Added Tax Act 1994.

7.3 Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8.2(b) above would
(apart from this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price
given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually
given by that sub- paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

7.4 (1) Sub-paragraph 7.4(2) below applies where the permitted price
given by Paragraph 7.2(b) above on a day (“the first day”) would be
different from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) as a
result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to
sales or supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the
period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Exhibition of Films

8. Admission of children (under 18) to the exhibition of any film must be
restricted in accordance with: -

(a) Recommendations made by the film classification body where the film
classification body is specified in the licence, or

(b) Recommendations made by the licensing authority where the film
classification body is not specified in the licence, or the relevant
licensing authority has not notified the holder of the licence that this
subsection applies to the film in question.

"film classification body" means person('s) designated under s4 of the
Video Recordings Act 1984 (c.39).

Door Supervision

9. Each individual who is to carry out a security activity at the premises must
be licensed by the Security Industry Authority.

Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

10.All events will be pre-booked and have a council representative present to
oversee activities and manage the safe operation of the site.

Page 23



11.All our events will be private or commercial events that go through full vetting
during the enquiry stages.

12.All events will be assessed and measures put in place depending on the
event on top of the standard operating procedures.

13.An events related risk assessment and public liability insurance will be
provided by the organiser.

14.No external people are able to enter the building and all activities onsite will
be supervised by the onsite events and security team.

15. Clear restrictions will be in place with regards to operating the spaces, noise
and management of the event.

16. The security team onsite for any larger events will monitor the event and its
guests and will intervene immediately where required.

Conditions derived from Responsible Authority representations

17.The premises shall maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the

minimum requirements of a Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer. All
entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every
person entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually
record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times
when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a
minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Recordings shall be
made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer.

18. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the
CCTV system shall be contactable when the premises are open to the public.

19.An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available immediately
to an authorised officer of the Hackney Borough Council or the Police, which
will record the following:
all crimes reported to the venue
any complaints received
any incidents of disorder
any faults in the CCTV system
any refusal of the sale of alcohol
any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

20.There shall be clear and prominent signage asking all customers to leave
quietly and respect local residents.

21.All instances of crime or disorder to be reported by the designated premises

supervisor or responsible member of staff to an agreed police contact point,
as agreed with the Police.

Page 24



22.Where the sale or supply of alcohol is taking place employees of the premises
must request sight of evidence of the age of any person appearing to be
under 25 years of age (Challenge 25). Such evidence may include a driving
licence or passport.

23. All staff engaged in the sale of alcohol shall be fully trained and made
aware of the legal requirements relating to underage sales and other
legal requirements relating to the sale and supply of alcohol. Such
training must take place on a 12 monthly basis and written records of
the training must be maintained on the premises for inspection by the
Police or Authorities. This training is to include the WAVE (Welfare And
Vulnerability Engagement) training.

24 SIA trained security will be employed after 4pm or anytime alcohol is
consumed. Their details and the times they started and finished are to
be recorded and made available to police or the licensing authority upon
request.

25.No open containers, bottles or glasses are to be taken outside except to
the designated area.

26. Off sales of alcohol are only to allow drinks to be consumed in the
designated outside area, and not to be taken away from the venue.

9. Reasons for Officer Observations

9.1. Conditions (10) to (16) are derived from the applicant’s operating schedule
and conditions (17) to (26) are agreed with the Police.

10. Legal Comments

10.1. The Council has a duty as a Licensing Authority under the Licensing Act
2003 to carry out its functions with a view to promoting the following
4 licensing objectives;
e The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
e Public Safety
e Prevention of Public Nuisance
e The Protection of Children from Harm

10.2. It should be noted that each of the licensing objectives have equal
importance and are the only grounds upon which a relevant
representation can be made and for which an application can be refused
or terms and conditions attached to a licence.

11. Human Rights Act 1998 Implications

11.1. There are implications to;
B Article 6 — Right to a fair hearing
B Article 14 — Not to discriminate
B Balancing: Article 1- Peaceful enjoyment of their possession (i.e. a

Page 25



licence is defined as being a possession) with Article 8 — Right of
Privacy (i.e. respect private & family life) to achieve a proportionate
decision having regard to the protection of an individuals rights
against the interests of the community at large.

12. Members Decision Making
12.1. Option 1
That the application be refused
12.2. Option 2
That the application be approved, together with any conditions or
restrictions which Members consider necessary for the promotion of
the Licensing objectives.
13. Conclusion
13.1. That Members decide on the application under the Licensing Act 2003.
Appendices:
Appendix A: Application for a premises licence and supporting documents
Appendix B: Representations from responsible authorities
Appendix C: Representations from other persons
Appendix D: Location map
Background documents
Licensing Act 2003
LBH Statement of Licensing Policy
Report Author Name: Shan Uthayasangar
Title: Licensing Officer
Email: shan.uthayasangar@hackney.gov.uk
Tel: 02083562431
Comments for the Group Name
Director of Finance and Title
Corporate Resources Email
prepared by Tel
Comments for the Name
Director of Legal, Title
Democratic and Electoral Email
Services prepared by Tel

Page 26




APPENDIX A

L =L Ul Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act
LAO1 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If
you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use
additional sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

(Insert name(s) of applicant)
apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the
premises described in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this
application to you as the relevant licensing authority in accordance with
section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 — Premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description

Abney Chapel

Abney Park

215 Stoke Newington High Street

London, N16 OLH

Post town London Postcode N16 OLH
Telephone number at premises (if any) I
Non-domestic rateable value of premises | £ Not operating currently

Part 2 - Applicant details

Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as Please tick as
appropriate

a) anindividual or individuals * O please complete section
(A)
b)  a person other than an individual *

i as a limited company/limited liability O please complete section

partnership (B)
i as a partnership (other than limited O please complete section
liability) (B)

i as an unincorporated association or O please complete section

(B)

Page 27



ga)

h)

iv  other (for example a statutory
corporation) X
a recognised club

a charity

the proprietor of an educational
establishment
a health service body

a person who is registered under Part 2
of the Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in
respect of an independent hospital in
Wales

a person who is registered under Chapter

2 of Part 1 of the Health and Social Care

Act 2008 (within the meaning of that Part)

in an independent hospital in England

the chief officer of police of a police force
in England and Wales

o o o o o O

O

please complete section

(B)
please complete section
(B)
please complete section

(B)
please complete section
(B)
please complete section

(B)

please complete section

(B)

please complete section

(B)

please complete section
(B)

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking
yes to one box below):

| am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use

of the premises for licensable activities; or
| am making the application pursuant to a

statutory function or

a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

a

Other Title
M X Mr Mis M (for example,
r O s - s H s HlRey
Surname First names
Date of birth O Please tick yes
Nationality

Current residential
address if different
from premises address

Post town

Postcode

Page 28




Daytime contact telephone
number

E-mail address
(optional)

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office
online right to work checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to
the applicant by that service (please see note 15 for information)

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)

Other Title

M Mr Mis M (for example,

r = S = S L S = Rev)
Surname First names
Date of birth lam 18 yearsold orover [0 Please tick yes
Nationality
Current postal
address if different
from premises
address
Post Postcode
town

Daytime contact telephone
number

E-mail address
(optional)

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office
online right to work checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to
the applicant by that service (please see note 15 for information)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where
appropriate please give any registered number. In the case of a partnership or
other joint venture (other than a body corporate), please give the name and
address of each party concerned.

Name
London Borough of Hackney

Page 29



Address
Hackney Town Hall
Mare St
London E8 1EA

Registered number (where applicable)

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated
association etc.) Local Authority

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Part 3 Operating Schedule

When do you want the premises licence to start? DD MM YYYY
(27 o2 o 23]

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited
period, when do you want it to end? |DD| |M|\|/I | |YY|YY| |

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1)

Grade Il listed ex mortuary chapel, Capacity of 80 people located in Abney Park &
Cemetery. Undergoing restoration alongside the rest of the park & cemetery with
lottery heritage funding. Mezzanine viewing gallery alongside a ground floor.
Toilets located at the back of the building. Venue will be used to generate income
to sustain the maintenance and running of itself.

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the

premises at any one time, please state the number

expected to attend.

Page 30



What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?

(Please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note Please tick all

2) that apply

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A) yes O
b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B) yes O
c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C) no O
d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D) no O
e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E) yes O
f)  recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F) yes O
g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G) yes O
h) gny_thi_ng ofa si_m_ilar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) =

(if ticking yes, fill in box H) yes

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I) yes =
Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)yes O

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

Page 31



A

Plays Will the performance of a play take
Standard days and place indoors or outdoors or both — Indoors u
timings (please read please tick (please read guidance note X
guidance note 7) 3)
Outdoors | O
Day | Start Finish Both
Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance
(09:00 ] 2359 |[note4)
09:00 23.59
Tue
[09.00 | 23.59
Wed State any seasonal variations for performing plays
109.00 | 23.59 | (please read guidance note 5)
Thur
(09:00 1 23.59
Fri Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the
09:00 23:59 | premises for the performance of plays at different
_______________________ times to those listed in the column on the left, please
list (please read guidance note 6)
Sat
(09:00 ] 23:59
Sun .
09 2359

Page 32



B

Films Will the exhibition of films take place
Standard days and indoors or outdoors or both — please Indoors .
timings (please read tick (please read guidance note 3) X
guidance note 7)
Outdoors O
Day | Start Finish Both O
Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance
(09:00 ] 23:59 | note 4)
Tue
(09:00 | 23:59
Wed State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films
09:00 | 23:59 | (please read guidance note 5)
Thur
(09:00 | 23:59
Fri Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the
09:00 23:59 | premises for the exhibition of films at different times to
________________________ those listed in the column on the left, please list (please
read guidance note 6)
Sat
09:00  123:59
Sun
(09:00 ] 23:59

Page 33



Cc

Indoor sporting
events

Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Please give further details (please read guidance note
4)

Day | Start Finish
Mon
Tue State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting
_______________________ events (please read guidance note 5)
Wed
Thur Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the
_______________________ premises for indoor sporting events at different times
to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 6)
Fri
Sat
Sun

Page 34




D

Boxing or wrestling
entertainments
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the boxing or wrestling
entertainment take place indoors or Indoors m
outdoors or both — please tick (please

read guidance note 3)

Outdoors | O
Day | Start Finish Both O
Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance
»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»» note 4)
Tue
Wed State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling
________________________ entertainment (please read guidance note 5)
Thur
Fri Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the
________________________ premises for boxing or wrestling entertainment at
different times to those listed in the column on the left,
please list (please read guidance note 6)
Sat
Sun

Page 35




E

Live music
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the performance of live music
take place indoors or outdoors or
both — please tick (please read
guidance note 3)

Indoors =
X

Outdoors | O

Both O

Please give further details here (please read guidance

note 4)

State any seasonal variations for the performance of

live music (please read guidance note 5)

Day | Start Finish
Mon

09:00 | 23:59
Tue

09:00 | 23:59
Wed

09:00 | 23:59
Thur

09:00 | 23:59
Fri

09:00 | 23:59
Sat

09:00 | 23:59
Sun

09:00 | 23:59

Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the
premises for the performance of live music at

different times to those listed in the column on the

left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Page 36




Recorded music Will the playing of recorded music
Standard days and take place indoors or outdoors or Indoors .
timings (please read both — please tick (please read X
guidance note 7) guidance note 3)
Outdoors | O
Day | Start Finish Both O
Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance
[09:00 | 23:59 | note 4)
Tue
[09:00 ] 23:59
Wed State any seasonal variations for the playing of
09:00 | 23:59 | recorded music (please read guidance note 5)
Thur
[09:00 | 23:59
Fri Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the
09:00 23:59 | premises for the playing of recorded music at different
_______________________ times to those listed in the column on the left, please
list (please read guidance note 6)
Sat
[09:00 | 23:59
Sun
(09:00 | 23:59

Page 37




G

Performances of

Will the performance of dance take

dance place indoors or outdoors or both — | |ndoors O
Standard days and please tick (please read guidance X
timings (please read note 3)
guidance note 7) Outdoors | O
Day | Start Finish Both O
Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance
09:00 | 23:59_| note 4)
Tue
09:00 | 23:59
Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of
09:00 | 23:59 | dance (please read guidance note 5)
Thur
09:00 ] 23:59
Fri Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the
09:00 23:59 | premises for the performance of dance at different
______________________ times to those listed in the column on the left, please
list (please read guidance note 6)
Sat
09:00 | 23:59
Sun
09:00 ] 23:59

Page 38




H

Anything of a similar
description to that
falling within (e), (f) or
(9)

Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Please give a description of the type of entertainment
you will be providing
concerts, weddings, performance

. Will this entertainment take place O
Day | Start Finish indoors or outdoors or both — please Indoors X
Mon tick (please read guidance note 3) Outdoors | O
[09:00 | 23:59
Both O
Tue Please give further details here (please read guidance
[09:00 | 23:59 | note 4)
Wed
[09:00 | 23:59
Thur 23:59 State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a
09:00 ' similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)
"""""""""""""""" (please read guidance note 5)
Fri
[09:00 | 23:59
Sat Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the
09:00 23:59 | premises for the entertainment of a similar description
------------------------ to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) at different times to
those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 6)
Sun
09:00 23:59

Page 39




Late night Will the provision of late night 0
refreshment refreshment take place indoors or Indoors
Standard days and outdoors or both — please tick X
timings (please read (please read guidance note 3)
guidance note 7) Outdoors | [J
Day | Start Finish Both O
Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance
23. . note 4)
00 |29
Tue
23:00 | 23:59
Wed State any seasonal variations for the provision of late
23:00 | 23:59 | night refreshment (please read guidance note 5)
Thur
23:00 | 23:59
Fri Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the
23:00 23:59 | premises for the provision of late night refreshment
""""""""""""""" at different times, to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 6)
Sat
23:00 | 23:59
Sun
23:00 23:59

Page 40




Supply of alcohol Will the supply of alcohol be for On the
Standard days and consumption — please tick (please | premises O
timings (please read read guidance note 8)
guidance note 7) Off the .
premises
Da | start | Finish Both -
y X
Mo 2359 State any seasonal variations for the supply of
n 1100 | " alcohol (please read guidance note 5)
Tu
e |1m00 | Y
We
d |11:00 2359
Th Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use
ur | 11.00 23.59 the premises for the supply of alcohol at different
""""""""""""""" times to those listed in the column on the left,
please list (please read guidance note 6)
Fri
SAK I
Sat
| 11.00 12359
Su
no 1100 1235

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the
licence as designated premises supervisor (Please see declaration about the
entitlement to work in the checklist at the end of the form):

Name

Stefano Del Core

Date of birth

Address

Postcode |

Page 41




Personal licence number (if known) || EEGTGEGNG

Issuing licensing authority (if known)

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other
entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give
rise to concern in respect of children (please read guidance note 9).

None

Hours premises are State any seasonal variations (please read guidance
open to the public note 5)

Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Day | Start Finish

Mon

Jos:00 | 2990
Tue

08:00 | 00:30 |
Wed

08:00 00:30

Non-standard timings. Where you intend the

premises to be open to the public at different times
Thur _ _ from those listed in the column on the left, please
| 08:00 | 00:30 [ jist (please read guidance note 6)

Fri
08:00 | 00:30

Page 42




Sat

Sun

Page 43




M Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General — all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance
note 10)

The building will undergo full risk assessments to ensure the safe operation of the
site. All events will be pre-booked and have a Council Representative present to
oversee activities and manage the safe operation of the site. The Hackney
Venues team will ensure that the building is at all times up to date on RA’s, PPM
and operated in a safe and controlled environment. After 4pm or anytime alcohol
is consumed SIA trained security will be in attendance. The Venues &Events
Coordinators are all personal licence trained.

Any booking will undergo scrutiny prior and risk assessments & insurance
documents need to be provided by the client where appropriate.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

All our events will be private or commercial events that go through full vetting
during the enquiry stages. Any inappropriate or concerning events will be denied
at this stage and can also be cancelled if we believe the content not to be suitable.
Any events that are above 40 people, involve alcohol consumption or pose a
higher risk will require security via our Council contracted supplier CIS and clear
terms and conditions are lined out for each event. Any disorder on the day will
result in the event being closed early.

c) Public safety

All events will be assessed and measures put in place depending on the event on
top of the standard operating procedures. Where large numbers or alcohol is
provided we will have the Council contracted security guards onsite to control the
event. An events related risk assessment and public liability insurance will be
provided by the organiser.

No external people are able to enter the building and all activities onsite will be
supervised by the onsite events and security team.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

Clear restrictions will be in place with regards to operating the spaces, noise and
management of the event. The security team onsite for any larger events will
monitor the event and its guests and will intervene immediately where required.
Police will be called in case of any escalation which is the worst case scenario.
Dispersal Policy will be produced to ensure patrons leave site appropriately and
30 mins prior to licensed cut off all licensable activity will stop to enable staggered
exit of guests and ensure they have time to drink up, call taxi’s etc

Page 44



e) The protection of children from harm

Children will generally have to be accommodated by an adult with most of our
events being private weddings or Community bookings this is generally well
managed. The venue is enclosed which won’t allow the public to enter the site
during an event. All events will be vetted for suitability and risk assessments will
be required. Should concerns arise these need to be mitigated or the event will not
go ahead. All caterers serving alcohol have produced personal licences to us kept
on file and challenge 25 policy will be enforced. We do not accept birthday parties
older than 16 and younger than 35 in any of the Hackney sites due to licensing
management.

Checklist:
Please tick to indicate agreement

® | have made or enclosed payment of the fee. x O

® | have enclosed the plan of the premises. x O

® |have .s.ent copies of this applicatilon and the plan to responsible 0
authorities and others where applicable. x

® | have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual | wish to 0

be designated premises supervisor, if applicable. x
® | understand that | must now advertise my application. x

® | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my
application will be rejected. x

[Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership

which is not a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited

liability partnerships] | have included documents demonstrating my
entitlement to work in the United Kingdom or my share code issued by O
the Home Office online right to work checking service (please read note

15).

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO
MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN ORIN CONNECTION WITH THIS
APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON
SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971
FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE
CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY
REASON OF THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT
WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO
EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF
THE IMMIGRATION, ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT
TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE
WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE
TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.

Page 45



Part 4 — Signatures (please read guidance note 11)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent
(see guidance note 12). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in

what capacity.

Declaration

[Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a
partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] |
understand | am not entitled to be issued with a licence if |
do not have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if
| am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work
relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity) and that
my licence will become invalid if | cease to be entitled to live
and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).

The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in
the UK (and is not subject to conditions preventing him or
her from doing work relating to a licensable activity) and |
have seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement to work,
or have conducted an online right to work check using the
Home Office right to work checking service which confirmed
their right to work (please see note 15)

Signature

K.Jacobs

Date

24.03.2023

Capacity

General Manager

For joint applications, signature of 2" applicant or 2" applicant’s solicitor or
other authorised agent (please read guidance note 13). If signing on behalf of
the applicant, please state in what capacity.

Signature

Date

Capacity

Page 46




Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 14)

Post
town

Postcod
e

Telephone number (if any) ‘

(optional)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address

Notes for Guidance

1. Describe the premises, for example the type of premises, its general situation
and layout and any other information which could be relevant to the licensing
objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you
intend to provide a place for consumption of these off-supplies, you must
include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the
premises.

2. Interms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and
23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in
community premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided
that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets
consent to the screening from a person who is responsible for the
premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides by age
classification ratings.

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances
between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 1000.

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a
contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle
wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the
audience does not exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports — defined
as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or wrestling
with one or more martial arts — are licensable as a boxing or wrestling
entertainment rather than an indoor sporting event.

Live music: no licence permission is required for:

o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day, on any premises.

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol for
consumption on those premises, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not licensed to sell
alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does
not exceed 500.

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall, community hall,

Page 47




06:| :9|BOS 7
An'00°eNej0IeURNDSIBIU0D:®  |8//ESZEBL0 I ue|d J0o|4 punoJ9 pesodoid 7

4

s}909@1}11youe

m m O L m C m g39VNVAIGITI0NINOD 38 OL
SNINVZZIW OL 3LNOY SS393

188300V 40 INIOd ITONIS @

3LON TYNOILYV¥3O

29 suolsiAey

l4vya 806707185

LV 08:L

HIVLS d310310¥d
ueld 6113 00i4 punos9 jedeyo pesodosd

Kusjouweg wed houay

ozeve+144 0 /0 0 @\ T 0zeve+ 144

a;s Il |P8===========2 oseolie)s [elds

i — —
2ueg ojeos

IVAO¥ddY TOH¥LNOD

a3s0dOdd - 13dVHI AINaV ONIQING OL 1O3raNS JONVAIEY
NI 3¥NSOTONI ¥IVLS A3ANINY

a3rvadn
ATIVNOISIAONd SIONVLSISTY Tl @ N
0Zeve~+ 144
0300V S3LONYNOLLIdaY @ THAVHO NIHI GHOOVAISOTO
38 01 LON '3¥3H000 813yd0J auod
31404 OL S3LVS VL3N N3O N
a3aav SIN3IW3T3 3¥I1d 43N Q 310N TYNOILYHIdO €00’
<
N
N
AM N =
VRV VAR VARV h Y
N
LX3 N AN
N
Joneoey -
adky weaq ooa1ap SYOWS T@ eaLt ; N

¥
semwsuel]

50 weaq J0jov1op BYOWS H@
A

[, .
Jun sse|B yeaiq 7
fousBiows [04U00 $5300Y
|aued jo1u0o WiE(e ail4
Jun eoeeul wfe 4
Jopunos pue uooeeq wiele 4 = = o0
o I | G <t
Jun sseiB yeaiq wiele 2114 _ o
Jopunos pu uoosaq ciooop — = (0]
(1eayzaouws) nnw wiefe o4 (®))
J8punos pue uooeaq == o s ——= == a
1010019p 188 WLElE 8114 T = ! 4 T
=il o
Jo10819p BoWS Wiefe 8114 , T
pd S‘M_/ ~_
y b
sieas ayows a O T~
Uim joopjusisiseleNd  NIWOS  S0904d 0ZT e+ 144 -
sjees oyows X
uimioop uelsiseI o1y NIWOE  S0804 AN
/| g (SyIWHOIId
e P N
¥O 2P '£5-6 Q3LvH / ™ ALiovavo xvi
SONINIT IYNYILNI
Koy N b
b | .
|
| o
Eell) | N =
b N\
JONVAIEY | 2201 | (=] 1201 1 !
NI SNOITIAVd OL 3NIT | i
4 = JONVAIEY
) ] I NI SNOITIAVd OL 3NIT
i
s8 zozeons onssiposnasieig 70 -
VAO¥ddY TO¥INOD | N X
S oot oy 15 022 vz~+ 144 i oNGUNgOL | © e 022 ¥~+ T4
VL 1Z0znomL uossines a 3 i /
VL 020212hivT onssJepust n O/M vaa | zwﬂ%z:%rwwwﬂﬂﬁzmh 5 i / 1 D/M X8siun
Vi ozoez onss) ep obeis 28 = i > -
Vi ozsost assiga ie POO'INY ¥00a a3aNaNY | £ 800N
e e 022 vz~+ 144 o504 022 vz~+ 144
AsoisiH uoisiAay WooY Jueld Seo - /M Xestun
SO0 L0on
029'vZ~+ 144 C__ _
Wooy Jueld 2138|3

900°WY o

Kiajes pue yyeay 0 oadsal ul suonenbas
pue eonoeid Jo Sapod JUALND [l2 LM BouRIdWOD [Ny Ul
PBINDGXG BJe SHIOM 2 JeU) INSUS pue ‘Suojeinbe Buiping
‘SPIBPUEIS USUG 'SBIEOUIIED JUBWISRIBE YSNU] UBLIND M
Wi0u0d dIUSUBUIOM PUE 'S[euslew ‘Spoob (e jeu) ainsus
JIBUS J0JORRUOD 8L “AIBIIpaLLL] 18U BU) O} SUOISILULO
10 sious ‘sapuedensip Aue uodey ‘eys UO SuoISUBWID
Ile Buppous 10} elqisuodes S| IOREAUD BUL SNUIE
ay; Jo uoisswad UBPLA B INoUIM asodind Jao Aue Joy
pasn Jou peonposd 8q 10U [12ys pue WBUAdOD S| BuMep SiuL

:SaJON [esoU0D




Letter to David Tuitt

Dear David,

Thank you for your feedback with regards to the Licence Application for Abney Chapel 215
Stoke Newington High Street.

| am happy to go with your suggestion of LP3 Core Hours as follows;

e Monday to Thursday 08:00 to 23:00

e Friday and Saturday 08:00 to 00:00

e Sunday 10:00 to 22:30

The request for further information on the venue’s booking policies

Hackney Venues has been operating since 2010 and the portfolio of venues includes Grade
[I* listed buildings located in parks such as Clissold House & The Glass House but we also
manage the operation of events within Hackney Town Hall. The venues team strive to keep
these buildings open and in good repair, to ensure the facilities remain for our residents to
hold their personal and family occasions locally. The income generated from the hires is put
back into maintenance and running costs of the buildings so that it remains a sustainable
operation for the council.

When we receive enquiries from applicants to hire the spaces, we will ask a number of
questions to vet if the event is suitable before we accept the booking and it goes to contract
stage.

What the event is

How many expected guests

Whether its open to the public or invite only

If tickets will be sold

How it is advertised

What the activity inside the venue will be

If a birthday party is stated, we ask what age. We will accept any age birthday parties/proms
on the basis no alcohol is brought into site, including for adults. We will not accept a birthday
party under the age of 35 or a prom should they require alcohol at the event as there is often
room for doubt with the ages of attendees, number of guests, a lack of budget for qualified
staffing and in our experience, no food provided, which increases the risk of intoxication.
This decision is made based on observing licensing objectives, what is appropriate for a
local authority run establishment to host and respect to local residents.

We also do not work with event or music promoters. Venue hire for concerts and theatre as
such are accepted as contracted venue hire, and our terms and conditions apply including a
decibel limit of 93 and only using an approved caterer for refreshment/alcohol.

Abney Chapel is going to be 50-80 persons capacity venue (awaiting official capacity via a
fire risk assessment), although there are hopes from some that it will be popular for music
performances the likeliness is that it will not be due to financial viability. For someone to put
this on there is the cost of hire, cleaning, security, performers, AV equipment/instruments,
furniture hire & refreshment to consider and this will likely supersede the ticket price income
for such a low number of possible attendees. So while we welcome music events within our
terms and conditions and there will be a handful, it is not likely to be often.

There is no inbuilt PA system, unless a hirer brings it in themselves we have a bluetooth
speaker appropriate for background music only. As mentioned decibel level at the venues is
set at 93, and this is monitored by the council officer onsite with a device.

Page 49



The types of events that work well within our venues and where most of our marketing is
aimed at are; community events such as yoga, antenatal class & training. Private occasions
such as wedding ceremonies, receptions, bar mitzvah, wakes and celebrations of life.
Corporate hire such as away days & conferences. Having taken what we regularly are
booked for across the other venues into consideration it is likely that only 2-3 at maximum
nights a week in the summer will likely be booked past 5pm.

Hire is only ever for inside the premises and never outside. On a sunny day it is appropriate
to let guests spill outside into immediate and designated areas with perhaps a glass of
prosecco after a wedding ceremony, however no music or service of alcohol is permitted
outside ever and drinks are not taken outside in the evening. All activity outside of the venue
itself must go through the outdoor events process with the parks team and bears no
relevance to this licence application.

SIA trained security guards, from the council’s contract CIS security are mandatory for all
events past 4pm and all events that have alcohol. The gates of the park are locked when the
sun goes down and as per Clissold Park, the security will need to lock and unlock to let
people out. Gates do not remain open during events.

A representative from the venues team is on site at all of our venues throughout the duration
of hire and is there 1 hour before and 1 hour after. All of the venues team are personal
licence holders apart from a few new members of the team who are in the process of
applying for the card but they have been and completed the BIIAB personal licence course.

Please find a copy of our T&Cs & dispersal policy which demonstrates the care and regard
we take for licensing, residents and the local area for events.

If you would like any further information do not hesitate to ask

Kimberley Jacobs

Page 50



Letter to Residents

Dear Residents and Local Organisations,

Thank you for your interest and feedback with regards to the premises licence application for
Abney Chapel N16 OLH.

| appreciate there is some concern for those of you who live locally with regards to public
nuisance from events within The Chapel, however | write to assure you that the addition of
the Hackney Venues team and events operation within the Chapel will provide a welcome
presence in the Park and | hope to alleviate some of your concerns with this letter.

Hackney Venues Team background

The Venues team established in 2010, started the hire operation of Stoke Newington Town
Hall after its renovation. It then saw the addition of Hackney Town Hall in 2012 and Clissold
House in 2016, and most recently The Glass House in Springfield Park since it opened in
2021. Our goals and purpose are to ensure that these amazing spaces within the borough
remain open and maintained for our residents and beyond to use for celebrations, personal
occasions, cultural enrichment and training/education purposes. By selling the spaces for
hire we generate income which goes back into the running costs and maintenance of these
venues thus creating a sustainable operation.

We are a team of 8 and have years of expertise and experience between us running events
and all the logistics surrounding them, including operating within public parks.

Hackney Venues Operation

The majority of events that we have are weddings, wakes, bar mitzvah, training, antenatal
class, exercise class and team away days. Based on this there is slim to none chance that
we will utilise the full licensing hours applied for, more likely we can expect activity after 5pm
at a maximum of 2-3 times per week. However the daily licence offers us the flexibility to be
available on the day the hirer prefers.

There is respect for managing all licensing objectives including preventing public nuisance
and measures are taken to ensure that this happens. For example security is mandatory at
all events past 4pm, at any events regardless of time that have external suppliers or any
events again regardless of time that are providing alcohol. Our security contract has been in
place since 2013 so we have trusted and consistent personnel who know the venues,
licensing requirements and our parks. The venues all have a maximum decibel limit
consistent at 93 and is monitored throughout the event either by a phone app or inbuilt
system depending on venue infrastructure, and as standard windows and doors are all
closed from 9pm onwards. We do not operate outside of the venue and in the park at all and
all activity taking place is strictly inside. If the weather is pleasant we allow guests to
consume their drinks outside, in a designated area which will be covered by CCTV. This will
only be in daylight hours and well before 9pm, again supervised by security. The venues
team itself does not sell alcohol or run bars, instead we operate a fixed list of caterers who
are tried and tested professionals. They submit insurance, licensing and risk assessment
documents and also sign agreements with us that they will remove all their waste from the
site and operate within the venue's guidelines. A representative from the venues team is on
site throughout to oversee all activity and provide direction where needed. We hope to build
a relationship with the on site cafe operator to provide event catering to guests at The
Chapel. We also have a dispersal policy which is clear guidance on how we evacuate guests
from the area with minimal disruption to residents and local people. This starts with music

Page 51



and drinks service ending and lights up 30 minutes before leave time so that the exit is
gradual and there are no crowds of people noisily leaving at once. It also includes displaying
clear instructions for local taxi firms, bus routes and last train times from Stoke Newington
station.

| have directly addressed some of the points raised below to clear up any confusion and
provide reassurance.

1. Unsafe pavements - As part of the restoration project there will be safe and lit
pathways to and from The Chapel from Stoke Newington High Street.

2. Public Toilets - There will be 1 public toilet, adjoined to the new cafe space and this
will be locked and closed at the same time as the cafe. The Chapel has its own
toilets, only accessible from inside.

3. Park open after dark - The park will still be locked and closed at the usual times. SIA
trained security will open and close the gates as needed to let event attendees out at
the end of an event and at no time will be left open after dark. This is a similar
operation to what we do at Clissold Park and has worked well since 2016.

4. Venue capacity - The venue capacity is approximately somewhere between 50-80
persons (to be confirmed by a fire risk assessment) and any events will be limited to
this number, references to 500 were not made by us the applicant and appear to be
part of the standard licence paperwork.

5. Outdoor Park activity and noise - The premises licence applied for permits only
events inside The Chapel. There will be no event activity including music outside of
the building from the venue's team. Previous references to noise disturbance from
events were not held or managed by the council and were at a time where there were
no windows on the building meaning it would have had more of an impact on
residents nearby. Every effort is made by us to ensure that residents are not
disturbed by events which | have detailed above.

6. Risk of increased crime - With a higher density of people in Abney Park from the new
cafe, workshop spaces and the chapel it will result in a more consistent presence of
many potential ‘guardians’ and will result in deterring and reducing some of the anti-
social behaviour. The presence of SIA trained security & council staff at events
alongside CCTYV outside will also ensure that any potential risk of crime directly from
events is managed.

7. Respect for cemetery & biodiversity - Event activity will be inside so we do not
foresee this to be an issue. Ashtrays and bins will be provided and hirers or external
suppliers will be required to take their waste away with them, this is stated in hire
T&Cs and enforced by council representatives on site. The war memorial will be
barriered off during event hire periods with signage surrounding the venue stating
there is a no photography policy featuring any tombstones. A bat emergence survey
and ecological appraisal has been undertaken for the whole project and liaison
throughout has taken place with greenspace ecology. There is a bat licence in place
and although no evidence of bat roosting was found inside the chapel a ‘bat loft’ has
been installed which means they can enter the roof void without the threat of artificial
lighting. The path lighting leading to the chapel has deliberately been kept at low
level with the avoidance of uplighting any vegetation.

8. Off licence - The off licence is to permit event attendees to take their drinks outside
on a sunny day. Drinks can only be consumed outside in a specific designated area
within the immediate vicinity of The Chapel, supervised by SIA security and covered

Page 52



by CCTV points. Under no circumstances will drinks be served outside or leave the
vicinity of the chapel and this as a policy will only be in daylight hours.

Abney Chapel is part of the overall restoration project within Abney Park & Cemetery and
you can find more information here on the project https://abneypark.org/whats-happening
For more information on Hackney Venues please see here - www.hackneyvenues.com

Please feel free to contact me if you have any further questions.

Kind regards
Kimberley Jacobs
kimberley.jacobs@hackney.gov.uk

Page 53



Outside area and Customer Dispersal Policy for Managers, Staff and Security

Outdoor smoking

Smoking will be permitted in the designated area only. Ashtrays will be provided which will
be emptied into general waste bins at the end of the evening. The security and the council
officer onsite will check the area for any cigarette butts and other litter generated and ensure
they are put into bins.

Drinks outside

Drinks served inside the venue can be consumed outside during daylight hours, in the
designated area only. No drinks can be sold or served outside of the chapel. SIA trained
security officers will manage the designated area which will be directly outside the chapel to
ensure that drinks do not leave this vicinity. The war memorial opposite will be clearly signed
with no entry and tensa barriers will be in place. SIA trained security will always remain on
the entry point throughout.

Customer Dispersal

On the evaluation of our customers waiting for transport outside the premises, we implement
a soft closure policy that will minimise any noise disturbance that our neighbours may be
subjected to, and give adequate time inside the venue to stagger leaving and plan the
journey home.

For the then final 30 minutes of an evening, we stop all licensable activity and turn the lights
on allowing customers to compose themselves, think about & plan their journey home while
they're still inside the premises. If customers require transport or taxi information, we direct
them to the signage displayed by the main entrance advertising the local taxi firm. Upon soft
closure a member of the security team will be by the high street entrance gate to unlock i,
another security guard will then escort guests through the park, on the lit path towards the
high street exit where they can meet taxis and readily use public transport to leave the area.
The gate will be locked by security when guests have left.

Any complaints from the public must be evaluated immediately by the duty manager. The
duty manager should request their contact details and note down along with the complaint
and pass on to the DPS / General Manager for investigation.

In summary the following measures must be in place on any given event day;
*Ensure that no customers leave the premises with their drinks after sundown.
*Provide taxi details, train times and bus routes to customers by way of signage and verbal
communication from staff to customers. Taxis stop just outside the park. Address to be
provided is:

215 Stoke Newington High St, London N16 OLH
*Allow extra time for drinking up and clearing out, by ending licensable activity 30 mins prior
to the end. Customers therefore leave the premises over a longer period of time. This should
minimise the congregation of crowds outside the Premises
*Security to ensure customers do not leave the designated area after sundown unless they
are leaving the park and facilitate the dispersal of these customers.

Page 54



HACKNEY VENUES B £ < ™ i

CLISSOLD STOKE NEWINGTON HACKNEY THE GLASS HOUSE THE CHAPEL
HOUSE TOWN HALL TOWN HALL

Holding an event with Hackney Venues

Venue Operations

e Please speak to your event coordinator about exact timings for your chosen venue. Your booking window
should include any set up and break down times. Rooms booked at The Tomlinson Centre can be set up to
your requirements. Please let the Admin Team know when you book.

e All music and alcohol provision will cease half an hour before the licensed cut off time

e All guests must vacate the venue by the licensed cut off time

e Before 5pm Monday-Friday there can be no amplification in the Atrium at Hackney Town Hall
e The outdoor terrace at The Glass House closes at 9pm

® Your hire in Clissold House, The Glass House & The Chapel is limited to inside the building and includes no
areas of the park.

e The venue must be returned to us in the same way it was given, with all waste and items removed and taken
off site.

e The Tomlinson Centre operates with a full day or half day session between 8.30am and 4.30pm. Staggered
arrival times may be allocated to bookings to manage the flow of attendees efficiently.

Event Management

e Each event which has external suppliers will be allocated an event coordinator with whom you will have a
logistics meeting with a minimum of four weeks prior to your event date

e Your event coordinator will be allocated six months prior, we aim for your event coordinator to be there on
the day however due to operational circumstances this may need to be handed over to another member of
the team, your event coordinator may change at any point

e The event coordinator is there to uphold the licence requirements; to keep the building in good repair; deal
with any venue related issues that may occur and manage the venue's staff.

e The event coordinator is not responsible for decorating, wedding planning, ushering or managing guests and
suppliers.

e The event coordinator will require a floor plan, running order of timings and the contact details for suppliers
four weeks prior to the event however final changes to floor plans can be done 7 working days prior to your
event.

Client’s responsibilities

e No decorations are to be stuck, pinned, hung, stapled or taped to any fixture or furniture
e No use of confetti cannons, smoke machines, helium balloons, fresh rose petals or open flamed candles
o All of the venues tables used (not kitchen tables) must be covered with linen

e All cables running across floors must be made safe with rubber matting no tape is permitted unless it is
specifically magnetic tape.

e Please do not wedge open any fire doors and keep all walkways and fire exits clear.

Page 55



HACKNEY VENUES [ £ &l ™

CLISSOLD STOKE NEWINGTON HACKNEY THE GLASS HOUSE
HOUSE TOWN HALL TOWN HALL

Moo

THE CHAPEL

I.

Public liability insurance should be purchased to cover your event to the value of £5 million. The Tomlinson
centre being a lower risk operation is a minimum of £2 million.

All electrical equipment must be PAT tested and The Tomlinson Centre does not permit external equipment
brought into the venue without prior permission.

No children under 18 are allowed behind the bar or in the kitchen. The Tomlinson Centre kitchen is not to be
used by external visitors or caterers.

Internal Hirers

Access

Setup

All cancellations will be charged in full with less than 28 days notice. Catering will also be charged in full with
less than 14 days notice.

VAT and external invoicing. Internal hire is not subject to VAT and you are not permitted to invoice internal
hire rates and VAT exemption to any external organisation.

It is against council policy to use single use plastics at events, please ensure your caterers and suppliers are
aware of this.

Floor plans and catering requests are final 7 days prior to the event and cannot be amended after this time

At the Tomlinson Centre we reserve the right to change any specific room offered to the customer for either
booking logistics or building maintenance reasons, and will select an alternate room of equal size or larger as
replacement.

The agreed Set-up time gives access to you and your event suppliers (caterers, AV, decorators, florists). Note
that no external food and drink can be brought into The Tomlinson Centre as we have an on-site catering
team

Deliveries of items may only occur outside these times with written consent from the event coordinator

The venue offers 1 hour breakdown time after guests have left, free of charge for minimum hires who have
external suppliers, however security charges still apply.

Your suppliers and guests may only arrive from the agreed contracted event start time

Guests arriving earlier than this will not be given access to the building

The venues furniture team will set up the venue’s furniture to your floor plan specifications which should be
supplied at latest 7 working days prior to the event

Please speak to your event manager for available furniture in each venue
Should alternative furniture be required, please speak to the event manager for supplier options

Please note that the maximum capacities are based on the exact layout. Should additional furniture or
elements be added, the capacity will decrease accordingly

Resets in the middle of the event are not advised however can be facilitated in some circumstances. Please
speak to your event manager to discuss options. Please note that additional costs will apply for the reset
team

No furniture is permitted to be moved by you or your suppliers

Only ceremony chairs are included in The Chapel.

Page 56



HACK

CLISSOLD STOKE NEWINGTON HACKNEY THE GLASS HOUSE
HOUSE TOWN HALL TOWN HALL

Moo

THE CHAPEL

I.

Catering & Suppliers

Parking

We operate a fixed list of caterers that the client must choose from. Catering by the client, a non-accredited
supplier or family members is therefore not possible

There may be exceptions if a regional cuisine is required that our list does not include. Please note that in
these cases the said caterer must go through the accreditation process and a buy-out fee of £500 + VAT
applies to you the hirer. Risk assessments, PAT test proof for electrical items and public liability insurance
must be received 8 weeks prior to the event date. No frying of any kind or gas is permitted.

Our kitchens are service-only kitchens and have no equipment in them other than running water and
electricity

All rubbish and food waste must be removed from the venue and taken away at the end of your event and all
areas, both front and back of house, must be fully cleaned and left in the state in which they were found.
Caterer or client must provide cleaning materials and waste sacks.

Alcohol will stop being served 30 minutes prior to the event ending
Service staff is mandatory on every event that has hot food and or alcohol

All events with alcohol require proof of a personal licence holder prior to the event to oversee the service of
this

The Tomlinson Centre has an inhouse catering partner and no external refreshment can be brought into this
venue unless agreed in writing with management.

Catering orders in the Tomlinson Centre must be provided at the time of booking by approximation, and final
confirmation on numbers provided no later than 7 days prior to the event. In the event of a cancellation less
than 14 days notice the approximate number for catering will be charged in full

There is no guest parking at any venue
Each venue can offer 2 x spaces for blue badge holders with the exception of the Tomlinson Centre

For events at Hackney Town Hall’s Assembly rooms, we provide four spaces for suppliers, registration details
for which are required by the events manager 7 days prior to the event

There is no supplier parking at Clissold House however set delivery drop off / pick up times are 08:00 - 10:00
or 12:00 - 14:00, Monday - Friday. These are the only permitted times for driving within the park, your event
manager will send you driving instructions at the four week planning meeting

There are 2 x supplier parking spaces available at The Glass House

There is no access by vehicle inside of Abney Park & Cemetery to access The Chapel.

Audio Visual at Hackney Town Hall

Bluetooth portable speaker available to use for ceremonies and events

DJs, bands and other entertainment must bring their own PA system & speakers - Risk Assessments, Public
liability insurance and PAT certificates are required from all suppliers 4 weeks before the event date.

Amplified sound must be connected to our noise limiter that is set at 93db in the assembly rooms. Atrium
events the sound limit is 85db after 5pm Monday-Friday and all day Saturday & Sunday. No amplification is
possible before 5pm Monday-Friday nor the use of loud acoustic instruments such as saxophone/brass

Page 57



HACKNEY VENUES B £ < ™ i

CLISSOLD STOKE NEWINGTON HACKNEY THE GLASS HOUSE THE CHAPEL
HOUSE TOWN HALL TOWN HALL

bands. If you need further clarification please do not hesitate to contact the venues team specifically around
this point.

e All other AV requirements should be discussed with the venues team at the stage of booking or coordination.

Audio Visual at Clissold House/ The Glass House/The Chapel

Bluetooth portable speaker available to use for ceremonies and events
DJs, bands and other entertainment must bring their own PA system - Risk Assessments, Public liability
insurance & PAT certificates are required from all suppliers 4 weeks prior to the event date.
e No amplified live music is permitted outdoors at The Glass House, Clissold House or The Chapel
The sound limit is 93db and this will be monitored on events by the events coordinator
e All other AV requirements should be discussed with the venues team at the stage of booking or coordination.

Audio Visual at The Tomlinson Centre

e This venue has a large range of in situ equipment. AV requirements should be discussed with the venues
team at the stage of booking or coordination to ensure availability on the day.

e Any specific digital provision which will require an AV Technician for support must be booked separately at
least one week in advance of any booking

Damage and Insurance

e A £1,000 (Stoke Newington Town Hall, Hackney Town Hall) / £500 (Clissold House, The Glass House & The
Chapel) damage deposit is required for all events which covers damage, loss or costs incurred by the venue.
Please see our T&Cs for full details

e Damage deposits can also be used for additional cleaning if the venue is left with waste and also to cover
staff and venue hire costs should the event or breakdown overrun.

e Public liability insurance of £5 million is required for all events and must be sent to the event team at least
one month before the event date. For Tomlinson Centre events insurance can be to the value of £2 million

TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR HOSTING AN EVENT IN

Hackney Town Hall / Clissold House / The Glass House/ The Chapel/The Tomlinson Centre

1. Introduction

1.1 These terms and conditions apply to the hire of the Venue by you.

Page 58



HACKNEY VENUES B £ < ™ i

CLISSOLD STOKE NEWINGTON HACKNEY THE GLASS HOUSE THE CHAPEL
HOUSE TOWN HALL TOWN HALL

3.1
3.2

3.3

3.4

Definitions

“Booking Deposit” means that part of the Hire Fee which is payable to the Council in order to secure the
booking. The Booking Deposit is non-refundable.

“Contract” means the contract between you and the Council for the hire of the Venue.

“Council” means the Mayor and Burgesses of the London Borough of Hackney.

“Due Date” means twenty eight (28) days prior to the Event or such other date as the Council shall notify you
as being the “Due Date” under this Contract.

“Event” means the purpose for which the Venue has been booked. Any variation of the Event must be
agreed by the Council and you unless the change is necessary to comply with safety or other statutory
requirements, then the Council may make changes without notice to you.

“Events Officer” means the person, for the time being appointed by the Council, to supervise the hire at the
Venue. The Events Officer has the authority of the Council to enforce the Contract and to represent the
Council in relation to the hire of the Venue.

“Hire Fee” means the amount you must pay the Council to hire the Venue.

“Hire Period” means the period for which you have hired the Venue, including any time prior to and after the
Event required for setting or clearing up;

“Letter of Confirmation” means the letter sent to you by the Council confirming your application has been
accepted.

“Patrons” is any person, form or company who attends the event at the invitation of you or any other person
attending the event in whatever capacity.

“Damage Deposit”“ means the sum payable to the Council to cover any loss or damage to the Venue arising
from your hire of the Venue, including, without limitation, any incidents arising from noise at the Venue.

“Venue” means the space booked for the Event, as specified on the application form, and includes the
immediate surrounding area including public highway or other land in the ownership, or control, of the
Council open to the public or as detailed on the application form.

“you” means the individual or organisation which is hiring the Venue for the Event.

Enquiries
Enquiries from charities must include a registered charity number.

All official paperwork must be made out to the individual or organisation which is personally going to use the
Venue. The booking is personal to you and you may not transfer or sublet the booking to any other person
without the prior written consent of the Council.

When deciding whether to accept your enquiry, the Council will consider whether your proposed Event
complies with:

(a) the terms of the Council’s premises licence and the objectives of the Licensing Act 2003;

(b) the Council’s relevant policies and procedures, particularly as set out in this document;

(c) relevant statutes, regulations and other laws applicable to the hiring; and

(d) equalities requirements, including consideration of whether there will be or whether there is likely

to be discrimination on the grounds of race, gender, sexual orientation, religion or age.

You will on request by the Council produce to the Events Manager copies and/or full details of any film,
photographs, pictures or other representations to be exhibited during the Event. You will also produce upon

Page 59



HACKNEY VENUES B £ < ™ i

CLISSOLD STOKE NEWINGTON HACKNEY THE GLASS HOUSE THE CHAPEL
HOUSE TOWN HALL TOWN HALL

3.5

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

request by the Council copies and/or details of the programme and/or any advertising material relating to
the Event.

The Council reserves the right to refuse any enquiry made for hire of the Venue and shall not be liable for any
costs of making an enquiry which is subsequently refused.

Confirmation

If the Council decides to accept your event, you will pay a non refundable Booking Deposit of 33% of the Hire
Fee.

The Contract comes into effect at the time your signed terms and conditions are received by the event team,
and not at any earlier time.

Indemnity

You shall fully and promptly indemnify the Council against all actions, proceedings, costs, claims, liabilities,
demands, losses, damages and expenses suffered or incurred by the Council or any other person as a
consequence (direct or indirect) of or in connection with any breach of or default by you under this Contract
or your performance or non-performance of this Contract.

Payment

Booking Deposit: Once your application has been accepted you must pay a non refundable deposit of 33% of
the Hire Fee to secure the booking (external events only). This Booking Deposit also covers any costs incurred
by the Council in the event of cancellation of the booking. The balance of the Hire Fee is payable as set out in
Clause 6.2 below

Hire Fee: You will be sent an invoice for the balance of the Hire Fee and the Damage Deposit no less than
forty two (42) days prior to the Event. This must be paid to the Council by the Due Date. The Council may
cancel your booking if the Hire Fee is not paid on time. Internal clients will be sent an invoice for the full
balance of the Hire Fee no less than forty two (42) days prior to the Event.

Damage Deposit: In addition to the Hire Fee you must pay a Damage Deposit of at least one thousand
pounds (£1,000) for the Town Halls or five hundred pounds (£500) for Clissold House, The Glass House &
Abney Chapel. Depending on the nature of the proposed Event, the amount of the Damage Deposit may be
increased at the Council’s discretion. The Council will return the Damage Deposit to you, via the method of
original payment (by cheque if made by bank transfer), within twenty-eight (28) days after the Event,
provided that there has been no damage, loss or cost incurred by the Council arising from the Event. In the
event of any such damage, loss or cost incurred, the Council will be entitled to deduct the sum of such
damage, loss or cost from the Damage Deposit and return the balance to you, via the method of original
payment (by cheque if made by bank transfer). If the damage repair costs exceed the £1,000 or agreed
Damage Deposit the hirer will be liable for all excess cost incurred by the Council arising from the repair.

Damage Deposits are not charged for internal events however in the event of any damage, loss or cost
incurred, the Council will be entitled to deduct the sum of such damage, loss or cost from the Budget Holder
assigned to the event.

Value Added Tax (VAT) and other Statutory Charges: You will be responsible for paying any VAT and other
statutory charges that may be chargeable on any payments for or arising out of the nature of the Event.

Cheques: Cheques should be made payable to the “London Borough of Hackney” and sent to Chief Cashier,
Cashiers Office, 2 Hillman Street, London, E8 1FB

The Council reserves the right to charge interest at 4% above the Bank of England base rate pending at the
time in relation to any outstanding sums due to the Council under this Contract.

Page 60



HACKNEY VENUES B £ < ™ i

CLISSOLD STOKE NEWINGTON HACKNEY THE GLASS HOUSE THE CHAPEL
HOUSE TOWN HALL TOWN HALL

6.7

CedAr Override Authorise Name and Cost Code must be provided upon application for all internal venue hire

and cancellation of venue hire with less than 28 days notice will still be charged for at the full hire fee. Cancellation of
catering will be charged in full with less than 14 days notice.

7.
7.1

7.1.1

7.1.2

7.1.3

7.1.4

7.1.5

7.2
7.2.1

7.2.2

Use of the Venue

Care of the Venue

Any costs, losses, damages, claims or expenses incurred by any Patron or any outside contractor hired by you
shall be your responsibility and you agree to indemnify and hold harmless the Council from all claims and
actions arising against it as a result thereof.

You must at all times during the Hire Period take good care of the Venue. You will be responsible for any
damage to the Venue or any part of it, or any equipment or other property of the Council within the Venue,
or in the area surrounding the Venue, caused as a result of the Event.

You must not do, or permit others to do, any of the following without the prior written consent of the
Council:

(a) remove or obscure Council notices or placards which may be displayed in or on the Venue;
(b) damage or attach anything to any furniture or structures at the Venue;

(c) create any holes or markings in or on, or cause any damage to the Venue’s walls, ceilings or any
items of furniture at the Venue;

(d) make any changes to the layout or decoration of the Venue;

(e) bring, place or erect any sign, furniture, fitting or structure or place or fix any additional or
decorative lighting in or on any parts of the Venue; or

(f) bring into the Venue:

(i) any article or substance of an inflammable or explosive nature or that produces an
offensive smell, or CFC; or

(ii) any oil, gas or other such appliances

(iii) confetti cannons, helium balloons, rose petals, smoke machines.

It is your responsibility to ensure that no noise nuisance is caused to occupiers of properties surrounding the
Venue or users of the immediate surrounding area of the Venue.

The Council will enforce a maximum noise level (93 decibels) and cut off points in line with current best
practices in noise monitoring and enforcement legislation. It is your responsibility to ensure that the noise
level does not exceed these limits. If cut-off points are reached, this will affect power supplies to the venue
and can take up to 10 minutes to re-set.

If the Event continues after licensed hours the Hirer shall pay to the Council the costs involved in ensuring
that the Event ends as soon as possible after such time. A Temporary Event Notice for extended hours can be
applied for and will be charged per hour

Litter/Waste Management

It is your responsibility to ensure that the Venue is left clear of all litter and rubbish, food and drink waste at
the end of the Hire Period. You are responsible for ensuring that no litter or rubbish is spread from the Venue
to the surrounding area.

You must ensure that the Venue is regularly cleared of litter and that sufficient bins or skips are made
available. Should the Venue not be cleaned to the satisfaction of the Events Officer, you may be liable to pay
a further charge to cover the cost of any necessary cleaning and clearing of the Venue. Where appropriate
such charge will be deducted from your Damage Deposit.

Page 61



HACKNEY VENUES B £ < ™ i

CLISSOLD STOKE NEWINGTON HACKNEY THE GLASS HOUSE THE CHAPEL
HOUSE TOWN HALL TOWN HALL

7.2.3

7.2.4

7.3
73.1

7.3.2

7.4
7.4.1

7.4.2

7.4.3

7.4.4

7.5
7.5.1

7.6

It is your responsibility to ensure that no litter or rubbish is left at the Venue after the Hire Period and all
plastic sacks/skips used to collect rubbish or litter are placed in designated areas as instructed by the Events
Officer.

You shall ensure that any unwanted liquids are removed from the Venue and not disposed of into the sewage
system or on the Venue.

Vehicles

There are no vehicle parking facilities at the Venues (other than four spaces for suppliers for Town Hall
bookings only). Patrons should be advised to use alternative means of transport to attend the Event.

Only vehicles which have been granted permission by the Events Officer prior to the Event will be allowed
access to the Venue during the Hire Period for drop off and pick up only. Limited disabled parking will be
available with prior notice for Town Hall hire only.

Entry and Access

It is your responsibility to ensure that Patrons do not block the pavement outside the Venue and that
pedestrians are allowed access along any public footpath located inside and outside the Venue. You shall
ensure that during the Hire Period Patrons do not enter onto any part of the Council’s property other than
the Venue.

You may be required to refuse admission to or remove/evict any person from the Venue and the Council
shall not be liable for any loss or damage suffered by you as a result of or arising out of this requirement.

It is your responsibility to ensure that the exit of Patrons from the Venue does not cause a disruption or
inconvenience to the local area.

You shall be responsible for maintaining good order at the Venue at all times. The Council will employ a
minimum number of door supervisors for this purpose; this is at an additional cost of the hirer.

The Council has the right to request extra security, above the minimum required, at an additional cost to the
client, if the event warrants this.

Attendee numbers must be confirmed at least five (5) working days prior to the event.

Smoking

No smoking is permitted anywhere inside at the Venue. It is your responsibility to ensure that Patrons do not
smoke anywhere at the Venue where smoking is prohibited.

Capacity

7.6.1 Depending on the nature of the proposed Event, the Council may impose additional restrictions on
the capacity of the Venue.

7.6.2  ltisyour responsibility to ensure that the number of Patrons does not exceed the maximum capacity
of the hired part of the Venue. If capacity is exceeded Patrons will be required to leave the Venue
immediately.

7.6.3  If your event falls within restrictions of social distancing measures due to the Covid-19 pandemic
then capacities will be amended accordingly following government guidelines and the Council’s internal risk
assessments per venue, per room. The Council’s internal risk assessment’s set the venue capacity and this
will be communicated via the Events Officer. Maximum capacities may have to be reduced based on current
government guidelines relating to social distancing due to Covid-19 as well as internal Health & Safety Risk
Assessments. Please speak to your Event Manager for guidance and current capacities.

Page 62



HACKNEY VENUES B £ < ™ i

CLISSOLD STOKE NEWINGTON HACKNEY THE GLASS HOUSE THE CHAPEL
HOUSE TOWN HALL TOWN HALL

7.7
7.7.1

7.8
7.8.1

7.10
7.10.1

7.11
7.11.1

7.11.2

7.11.3

7.13
7.13.1

7.14
7.14.1

7.14.2

7.14.3

7.15
7.15.1

Ticket sales

Tickets to the Event to be sold on the door of the Venue must be covered by the hirers insurance, proof of
which must be submitted to the Events Officer prior to the event.

The hirer is responsible for all staffing of the box office and for queue management.
A proof copy of the ticket must be submitted to the Events Officer prior to printing for authorisation.
The hirer must confirm with the venue where and how all tickets are sold for an event.

LBH accepts no responsibility for any cash/ sales on the premises.

Children

You shall ensure that any event involving children fully considers the welfare of those children taking part,
and shall ensure that there is a sufficient ratio of supervising adults for the number of children attending.
You shall ensure that you comply with the provision of the Children Act 1989 and any other statutory
provisions with regard to children during the Hire Period.

Animals

You must notify the Council if the proposed Event will include any exhibition, performance or entertainment
involving animals. The decision on the use of animals will be at the discretion of the Council.

Bills and advertisements

You must not post any bill or advertisement in connection with the Event at the Venue without the prior
written approval of the Council.

The Council may remove any posted material promoting the Event in contravention of clause 7.11.1 and you
shall reimburse the Council for the costs of such removal.

You shall not use the Council’s name or logo on any publicity material unless specifically approved in writing
in advance by the Council.

Commercial Traders

You shall not allow any commercial traders to trade at the Event without the prior written consent of the
Council. Any such traders must comply with all relevant consumer and trading legislation.

Collections / Lotteries

You must not permit any collections, games of chance, sweepstakes, lotteries or betting of any kind to be
conducted at the Venue during the Event without the prior written consent of the Council.

Please be aware that where the consent of the Council is given, you will be responsible for ensuring that any
necessary licences are acquired and that the terms of such licences are complied with.

If you fail to acquire or comply with the terms of any necessary licence, the Council may cancel your booking.

Equalities

You must not, in connection with the Event, use, provide or display any material, whether written or spoken,
or allow behaviour, that constitutes direct or indirect discrimination against, or harassment, victimisation or
vilification of, any person or group of persons on the grounds of race, gender, sexual orientation, disability,
religion or age.

Page 63



HACKNEY VENUES B £ < ™ i

CLISSOLD STOKE NEWINGTON HACKNEY THE GLASS HOUSE THE CHAPEL
HOUSE TOWN HALL TOWN HALL

9.1
9.11

9.1.2

9.1.3
9.14

9.1.5

9.2

10.
10.1

10.2

10.3

11.
111

11.2

Permits and Licences

General

It is your responsibility to ensure that any licence, permit or other consent which may be required (e.g. public
entertainment licence, gambling and lottery licences) is obtained from the appropriate authority. Such
licences, permits or consents must be obtained before the Event takes place and must be produced to the
Council upon request.

Even where your application to hire the Venue is accepted by the Council, this is subject to you obtaining the
necessary licences, permits or consents for the Event. If you do not obtain the necessary licences, permits or
consents the Council has the right to cancel your booking.

You must display all necessary licences, consent and permits during the Event.

You are responsible for ensuring that the Event complies with the terms and conditions of any licence, permit
or consent issued in respect of the Event. Failure to do so may result in the Council cancelling your booking or
terminating the Event.

You will pay any fees, royalties and payments due to Performing Rights Society Limited or any other similar
organisation in respect of your hire of the Venue.

Provision of Regulated Entertainment
The Venue is licensed to host events as set out in the premises licence (and indicated below):

a: Live music

b: Recorded music

c: Performances of dance

d: Anything similar to that falling within (c), (d) or (e)

Events that fall outside of those set out in the premises licence will require a Temporary Events Notice, which
the Council will apply for. You will pay any costs associated with such a licence. Any such events will only be
accepted subject to Council approval.

Health & Safety

You must ensure that a risk assessment is undertaken in respect of your Event if deemed necessary. It is your
responsibility to ensure that all Patrons and any contractors comply with all relevant Health and Safety
legislation or any other relevant guidelines at all times during the Hire Period. If requested, you must provide
a copy of the risk assessment to the Council or any other relevant body such as the Health and Safety
Executive.

You shall familiarise yourself with the evacuation procedure in case of fire or a bomb threat at the Venue.
Details can be obtained from the events team

The Council may in its absolute discretion employ police officers or other persons to maintain order at the
Venue during the Hire Period and in this event you will pay to the Council on demand the expenses so
incurred.

Indemnity and Insurance

The Council is not responsible and will not accept liability for any loss, damage, injury or death to any persons
or property in the Venue or attending or connected to the Event regardless of how or by whom it is caused
save where the death or personal injury is as a result of the negligence of a Council employee, agent or
contractor.

You are responsible for all health and safety aspects of the Venue during the Hire Period. You must accept
liability for any loss, damage, injury or death caused by any person within your control to any person or

property whilst they are in, or in the immediate vicinity of the Venue regardless of how such loss, damage,
injury or death is caused. Such liability shall, include, but shall not be limited to any loss, damage, injury or

Page 64



HACKNEY VENUES B £ < ™ i

CLISSOLD STOKE NEWINGTON HACKNEY THE GLASS HOUSE THE CHAPEL
HOUSE TOWN HALL TOWN HALL

11.3

11.4

11.5

11.6

11.7

11.8

11.9

11.10

12,
12.1

12.2

12.3

13.

13.1
13.2
133

14.
14.1

death caused by objects being expelled from the Venue by explosion or other means or being propelled or
driven off the Venue by you or by any of your employees, agents or contractors.

You agree to indemnify the Council against all claims, actions, demands, proceedings, cost or awards in
respect of any loss, damage, injury or death to any person or property for which you are responsible under
clause 11.2.

You will arrange for and maintain public liability insurance to cover any liabilities that may arise to any
persons or property out of your hire of the Venue. Such policy shall cover the hirer, guests and attendees
and any contractors or similar. The minimum level of indemnity shall not be less than five million pounds
(£5,000,000) and for certain events the Council may require a higher level of indemnity. In addition you
agree to indemnify the Council for any acts, claims, complaints or proceedings that may arise in connection
with the hire and ensure that these are dealt with promptly. For The Tomlinson Centre a minimum of two
million pounds (£2,000,000) cover is acceptable due to the event type and risk level.

You must ensure that your Public Liability Insurance covers any person and/or organisation whom you have
instructed or authorised to appear at the Event. Also see clause 11.6.

Public Liability Insurance cover can be purchased online at http://www.events-insurance.co.uk/pages/one-
off-premiums. Other options hirers can explore include contacting their Home Contents Insurers who may be
prepared to extend the liability cover for a one off event; an insurance broker would also be able to assist in
sourcing the most cost effective cover.

All insurance obtained is the responsibility of the hirer and is entirely independent of the LB Hackney.

You shall be responsible for all plant, equipment or materials or other effects which you or anyone associated
with you brings into the Venue. The Council accepts no responsibility or liability for the loss, damage or theft
of any such items regardless of how such loss, damage or theft is caused.

You must provide the Council with proof of the required levels of insurance. If you fail to do so the Council
has the right to cancel your booking.

You shall be responsible for making all arrangements for and payments to any third party contractors you
engage pursuant to this Contract, and the Council shall have no liability whatsoever to you or any third
parties with regard to any such arrangements or payments.

Property not Removed

You must ensure that all of your property and the property of any of your contractors (e.g. caterers, bands)
or Patrons is removed from the Venue at the end of the Hire Period. Any property left behind may be
removed and stored or disposed of by the Council. Any costs incurred by the Council in relation to such
storage or disposal must be reimbursed by you. The Council will not be held responsible for any damage to or
theft of by or during the course of its removal or storage.

Any property which has not been claimed twenty four (24) hours after the Event may be sold or disposed of
by the Council. The proceeds of any such sale shall belong to the Council.

The Council accepts no responsibility for lost, damaged or stolen goods deposited within the Cloakroom at
the Venue.
Variation and Special Conditions

The terms of the Contract can not be varied without the prior written consent of the Council.
The Council shall be entitled to vary the terms of this Contract at any time on giving you notice in writing.

Depending on the nature of the Event, the Council may impose additional terms and conditions to those set
out above or amend these terms and conditions. You will be informed of such changes or additions in
writing.

Cancellation

The Council and its authorised officers may with immediate effect cancel a booking if:

Page 65



HACKNEY VENUES B £ < ™ i

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

15.
15.1

16.
16.1

17.
17.1

18.
18.1

C:.{Igﬁ?jléb 5TO§5$EJW::&TDN TS;?::EIL THE GLASS HOUSE THE CHAPEL
'

(a) you do not comply with the terms of the Contract or the Council reasonably believes that the Event

is likely to be in breach of the Contract; or
(b) you act contrary to statute, regulation or other law applicable to the hiring, including those made by

the Council and the Council's bye-laws; or
(c) it comes to Council’s attention that the information provided on the booking form is not correct; or
(d) you have failed to obtain any necessary licences, permits or consents for the Event and/or the Event

would be contrary to the premises licence or the licensing objectives expressed in the Licensing Act

2003; or
(e) you commit any acts or actions being an offence under the Prevention of Corruption Acts 1889 to

1916, or section 117(2) of the Local Government Act 1972 or are charged with a serious criminal
charge or are accused, charged or convicted of drugs offences or money laundering or any activities
which could have the effect of bringing the Council’s name into disrepute; or

(f) the Event would otherwise be contrary to law.

If the Council cancels your booking prior to the Due Date (28 days before the event) for any reason given in
clause 14.1 above, the Council will refund the Hire Fee (if paid) but (for external events only) minus the non-
refundable Booking Deposit, together with any Damage Deposit paid by you

If the Council cancels your booking on or after the Due Date (28 days or less before the event) for any reason
given in clause 14.1 above, the Council will not be liable to refund any sums paid or payable by you to the
Council under this Contract with the exception of the Damage Deposit (external events only).

If you cancel your booking prior to the Due Date (28 days or more before the event), the Council will refund
in full the Hire Fee (if paid) but minus the non refundable 33% Booking Deposit, together with any Damage
Deposit paid by you.

If you cancel your booking on or after the Due Date (28 days prior or less before the event), and the Council is
not able to re-hire the Venue, the Council will not be liable to refund any sums paid or payable by you to the
Council under this Contract.

If the Council cancels your booking where you are not at fault, the Council will refund any sums paid by you
without any deductions within fourteen (14) days of cancellation.

Notice of any cancellation under this clause shall be in writing and served on the other party at the address
set out herein.
Waiver

If the Council through the Events Officer fails to exercise or delays in exercising any right or remedy under
these terms and conditions or at law it will not constitute a waiver of any such right or remedy. If the Council
through the Events Officer waives a breach or default by you of these terms and conditions it will not
constitute a waiver of any future breach or default.

Severance

If any provision of these terms and conditions shall become or shall be declared by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable in any way, such invalidity or unenforceability shall in no way
impair or affect any other provision of the terms and conditions all of which shall remain in full force and
effect.

Jurisdiction

The Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with English law and the Courts of England
shall have exclusive jurisdiction in relation to any claim or dispute or any other related matter.

Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

No person who is not a party to the Contract shall have any rights hereunder by virtue of the Contracts (Right
of Third Parties) Act 1999 or otherwise.

Page 66



HACKNEY VENUES B £ ol ™%

CLISSOLD STOKE NEWINGTON HACKNEY THE GLASS HOUSE
HOUSE TOWN HALL TOWN HALL

Moo

THE CHAPEL

I.

19 COVID-19 Restrictions

19.1 Should your event fall during a time where social distancing or operational restrictions are required
due to the Covid-19 pandemic, please speak to your event manager. If you have your event / ceremony
booked and there is a national lockdown or we enter a tier where events / ceremonies cannot take place
then you have the option to move the date within 12 months or cancel at an administration fee of £50.

19.2 Our advertised capacities are the original capacities set by Health & Safety pre COVID-19. During the
pandemic the venue capacities may be reduced due to social distancing measures in place. The price of the
venue is not reduced due to the venue capacity.

19.2 If your ceremony / event is cancelled in relation to COVID-19 with regards to a national lockdown or
a tier that prevents the council from operating then you can move your booking within the next 12 months
free of charge. Alternatively standard cancellation fees will apply.

| have read and understood these terms and conditions and agree to comply with the same.

Signed:

Date:

Print name:

In order for us to raise an invoice, please can you provide the following invoicing details:

Full Name:

Full Invoicing Address:

Tel:

Mobile:

Email Address:

Have you been invoiced by Hackney before?

If yes please provide us with your Account Number:

& Hackney

Page 67



APPENDIX B

RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY REPRESENTATION:
APPLICATION UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003

RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY DETAILS

NAME OF AUTHORITY Licensing Authority
ADDRESS OF AUTHORITY Licensing Service
Hackney Service Centre
1 Hillman Street
London
E8 1DY
CONTACT NAME David Tuitt
TELEPHONE NUMBER 020 8356 4942
E-MAIL ADDRESS david.tuitt@hackney.gov.uk
APPLICATION PREMISES
Premises Abney Park Chapel
215 Stoke Newington High Street
London
N16 OLH
Applicant London Borough of Hackney

COMMENTS

| make the following relevant representations in relation to the above application at
the above address.

1) the prevention of crime and disorder

2) public safety

3) the prevention of public nuisance X
4) the protection of children from harm

Representations (which include comments and/or objections) in relation to:

Page 68



| write to make a representation in response to this application. The premises is
described as a Grade Il listed ex-mortuary chapel with a capacity of 80 people. The
site is located centrally within Abney Park and appears to be away from residential
properties. It is noted that the proposed hours of activity are to 00:00 daily which are
in excess of the hours set out in LP3 (Core Hours). This states:

LP3 Core Hours
Hours for licensable activity will generally be authorised, subject to
demonstrating LP1 and LP2, as follows:

e Monday to Thursday 08:00 to 23:00

e Friday and Saturday 08:00 to 00:00

e Sunday 10:00 to 22:30
Hours may be more restrictive dependent on the character of the area and if
the individual circumstances require it.

Later hours may be considered where the applicant has identified any risk that
may undermine the promotion of the licensing objectives and has put in place
robust measures to mitigate those risks.

The application states that activities will be private or commercial and “go through
full vetting during the enquiry stages. Any inappropriate or concerning events will be
denied”

Further detail on this process from the applicant may be useful.

The above representations are supported by the following evidence and information.

The Licensing Act 2003, guidance issued by the Home Office under s182 of the
Licensing Act 2003

Are there any actions or measures that could be taken to allay concerns or objections?
If so, please explain.

Discussion in relation to the matters highlighted above.

Name: David Tuitt (Business Regulation Team Leader) - Licensing and Technical
Support

25 April 2023

Page 69




‘Auadoud J1ay) Jo Moeq ay) 1e swoolpaq aAeY YoIym Jo 1sow sBuljjemp [enuspisal Auew ojuo syoeq il
uonippe uj "Simo Ajjusoal [Iun pue ‘sjeq Buipnjoul- spJiq pue sjewiue [euinioou o) awoy juenodwi ue si yied Asuqy 1ybiu 1y

KauxoeH Ul pue UopuoT
ur ‘- Buiyy aJes A1aA e Ajpes Mou si siy] "saloads alel pue aJi|p|IM 8SISAIP YIIM ‘ USARY 8injeu e pue jeligey anbiun e se pasiubooal Ajlapim si yied Asuqy

HT0

9LN

uopuoT

198i41S

ubiH

uojbuimaN

OIS Gl¢

"ung 0} UOI\l 6G:€Z 01 00: 1| wody sasiwald ayj Jo pue @mn_

uo uondwnsuod 1o} [oyoo|e jo Ajlddns ay} asiioyine 0} pue ung o} uoly | AsuxoeH Aanqy
6G:€Z 0} 00:€Z WOl Juswysaual Jybiu aje| ‘ung 0} UO\ 6G:E€Z O} 00:60 0 =%

wou} uonduosap Jejiwis Jo buiyjhue ‘eouep Jo souewlopad ‘oisnw | ybnolog | TOIBUIMBN _o%co

©202/70/S2 | paplooal ‘oisnw aAll ‘swyly ‘sAejd 1o @ousdl| sesiwald e o) uoneolddy | uopuoT] M0IS Aauqy

suoneoldde-buisual)
pn'aob-Asuxoey/:sdiny (3sl €202 HOYVYIN ) suoneoiidde o 1si) JnoA uo punoj — uonediidde Buimojjoy ayy 01 swa) ajqissod jsabuous ay) ul 198[qo 0} )M |

90IAI8G Buisuadl AsuyoeH Jea(

n°Aob-Asuyoey@buisuadl>

90:81 1€ €20z Iudy 0z

obessaw |
:O___No__QQm m:_w:wo_n_ 0} :O_uoo_.n_o

10 XIAN3ddV
n‘Aob-Aauyoey@bBuisuadll> (xoqjie paleys) buisuai >§ I



Bl o N ied ews |
]

‘AInEinoA
)
o)
S
o

Ajluo ‘yeam ay} Jo 1no siybBiu maj e 0] SIY) Jiwi| 1Ses)| 1. ‘Jaylel Inq -3eam e sjybiu / 8q 0] SIy) Mojje Jou op * ases|d

" 49| sey AauyoeH saoeds |einjeu may AISA 8y} JO auo A0JjSap pjnom | v

* ysu Je AJisiaAlp |ea1bojolq s pue walsAsoos ajibed) AiaA siyy ind im 3¢

"19pJosIp 0] pes| 810048y} pue 1ybiu je adeds p|im Jeymawos ‘eble| Siy} Ul dwidd JO YSII 8y} 9Sealoul ||IM )| 2
‘@ouesinu 21jqnd Jolew e ajeaud |IM ] L

:spunoJb Buimojjol 8y uo sI siyl 0} uonoalgqo InQ

" 49| sey AauxoeH saoeds |einjeu ma} AlaA ay) JO auo AoJjsap pinom j

" yled Asuqy Jo sainies) snoloaid anbiun asay) Yjim 101juod ul Aenn si sBulusas asoy)
JO ||e UO ‘ 2ISNW pue SJUBA® ‘ |0Y02[e MO|e OS|e 0] pue ‘ Jybiupiw 0} dn yaam e syybiu ; jadeyo ay) 01 sseooe aAIB 0] Syse Yolym ‘ 8oua9l| pasodoid ay |



& Hackney

Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

APPENDIX C2
abney chapel: objection
1 message

20 April 2023 at 19:58
eply-1o:

To: licensing@hackney.gov.u

| am appalled to learn of an application for music and sale of alcohol up to practically midnight in the chapel in Abney Park. Living
in Listria Park, | have often in the past been disturbed by music in the vicinity of the chapel. By ten o'clock | am trying to go to
sleep. It's hard enough already. And the sale of take-away alcohol at midnight? |s this a joke?

B B Listria Park, N16 [}

Page 72



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Music and alcohol in Abney Park Cemetery
1 message

I — 20 Aprl 2023 a1 21:47
o: licensing ackney.gov.u

To whom it may concern,
| am appalled to hear what is being proposed regarding music and alcohol in the cemetery. As a
resident whose house overlooks the cemetery this is very concerning.

Also this is a cemetery, not a music venue. | find this deeply offensive as this is a place to show respect to people who have died
not to get drunk and party.

| really hope that there is a lot of opposition to this and that | am not the only one to feel strongly about this.

Page 73



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Abney licensing
1 message

[ ————— 20 Aprl 2023 a1 2230
o: licensing ackney.gov.u

| would like to lodge a formal objection against the licence applied for by Kimberley Jacobs.

When there is an event in Abney Park the noise carries and can be clearly heard by residents of Listria Park. It would be unfair for

us to potentially experience this every night and absolutely goes against the grain of the reason we purchased a property backing
onto a conservation / quiet area.

| object in the strongest terms.

I !IStI‘Ia !ar!

Sent from my iPhone

Page 74



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Licensing application, Abney Chapel, Stoke Newington

1 message

I —— 21 Aprl 2023 a1 0052
o: licensing ackney.gov.u

Dear officers,
| am writing to object to the application for a premises licence for the Abney chapel in Abney Park Cemetery.
The grounds for my objection are as follows:

1. A public nuisance will result from the very broad licensing categories, which include music and other noise polluting activities.

2. A public nuisance for closely adjacent properties in Listria Park will result from the very long hours in the application, meaning
potential noise from morning until midnight.

3. A public nuisance will result from the extended licensing hours for alcohol consumption.This is inappropriate in a cemetery where
people will be attending to commune in peace with their dead relatives and friends.

4. Public safety will be jeopardised as people will have access to the cemetery during darkness. During the day there are almost
always undesirable elements within the cemetery, which is a recognised "cottaging" site. During the hours of darkness the risk of
crime in the area will be increased as most of the cemetery is unlit and the undesirable elements will be able to continue their
activities for extended hours.

| hereby object in toto to the application for a licence in respect of this building. It is inappropriate from many aspects.

Yours faithfully

Listria Park

N6 i

Page 75



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

re Licensing application for Abney Park Chapel
1 message

m 21 April 2023 at 00:59
o: licensing ackney.gov.u

Dear Hackney licensing
Could you please consider this application for a licence to operate in one of London’s Magnificent Seven cemetery park
remembering that is it a Cemetery.

| object to the hours and number of days that this application is for on the grounds of : public safety, potential of public nuisance
and crime and disorder; and to protect children from harm now and into their future.

Have you seen this venue and setting? It is important that you do visit.

It is a place for connection with our ancestors, with the natural world, and with our shared humanity.
This is a place of respect, reflection, contemplation and education.

It is not a safe place for people to be walking about late at night where there are numerous hidden and unsecured cemetery
headstones, and many irregular paths.
An unrestricted licence 7 nights a week is a public nuisance for all the neighbouring residents.

Alcohol consumption often leads to crime and disorder and public nuisance.
Consumption of alcohol off the premises is a health and safety risk for all involved in a large dark park
The danger for women, children, and people from minority groups is increased in this situation.

A limited application would be more appropriate for this venue, its current users, the environment and neighbourhood.

Lordship Grove

London N16 ||}

Premises: Ward Applicant(s): Brief summary of application: Closing date for
representations:
Abney Stoke London Application for a premises licence for plays, 25/04/2023
Chapel Newington | Borough of films, live music, recorded music, performance
Hackney of dance, anything of similar description from
Abney Park 09:00 to 23:59 Mon to Sun, late night

refreshment from 23:00 to 23:59 Mon to Sun

,2\115 Stoke and to authorise the supply of alcohol for
gwmgton consumption on and off the premises from
High Street 11:00 to 23:59 Mon to Sun.

London

N16

OLH

Page 76



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Objection to Abney Park Chapel License

1 message

21 April 2023 at 10:12
o: "Licensing (Shared Mailbox)" <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Hi,

| am writing to express my concern and objection to the current application for license at the Abney Park Chapel - in particular:
Prevention of public nuisance:

Many homes including public housing surround the park - loud music events with alcohol would be disruptive to local residents.
7 days per week to 12 pm midnight would cause excessive noise and disruption.

This is unreasonably late and at 7 days per week, there would be no relief.

Thank you for considering this matter and | would like to attend a public appeal.

Warm regards,

Page 77



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Abney Chapel Licence application: Representation
1 message

21 April 2023 at 10:27
o: "licensing@hackney.gov.uk” <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Abney Chapel Licence application representation

Thanks for the opportunity to comment on the proposed licencing of Abney Chapel for private hire ( Mon- Sun
9.00am - 23.59)

| wish to object to this proposal. Abney Park is a nature reserve, a cemetery and a place for peace and reflection.
As a Hackney resident | notice, there are way fewer spaces to connect with nature, find peace and attend to
wellbeing, than there are venues for socialising with alcohol.

| support live music and cultural activity - so for me it is about a balance of what's available in Hackney for all
residents.

| would welcome a schedule of cultural events like a 'mini festival' once a year, but please let Abney Park continue
to offer residents a consistent and reliable quiet space to hear the birds, find some peace and exercise.

From a resident who uses the park every day.

Sincerely

Page 78



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Representation against application
1 message

m 21 April 2023 at 13:28
o: licensing ackney.gov.u

In reference to the below application, | would like you to consider reasons this should not be granted

1. Abney park is a park home to wildlife and nature. A large number of footfall and noise would be devastating to the animals who
live there

2. A live music venue and alcohol consumption will show no respect to the graves. This site is of religious and spiritual significant
and not seen as a.place for entertainment rather than peaceful enjoyment

3. There is no shortage of live venues in the area.

Application details below

Premises:Abney Chapel,Abney Park,Abney Park,215 Stoke Newington High Street
London

N16 OLH

Ward Stoke Newington

Applicant(s):London Borough of Hackney

Brief summary of application:

Application for a premises licence for plays, films, live music, recorded music, performance of dance, anything of similar description
from 09:00 to 23:59 Mon to Sun, late night refreshment from 23:00 to 23:59 Mon to Sun and to authorise the supply of alcohol for
consumption on and off the premises from 11:00 to 23:59 Mon to Sun.

Closing date for representations:

25/04/2023

Kind regards

Page 79



& Hackney

Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

C10

Abney chapel licence application
1 message

I —— 21 Aprl 2023 a1 2122
o: licensing ackney.gov.u

| am writing to ask that any permission granted in respect of the licence application for Abney chapel is conditional on limiting the

adverse impact on the biodiversity upon which all public safety depends e.g. limiting lighting and noise, and ensuring sustainable
waste management.

Thanks,

Listria Park
!ondon N16-

Page 80



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Abney Park licensing application
1 message

m 22 April 2023 at 13:20
o: "licensing@hackney.gov.uk™ <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Cc:
Dear Licensing Officer
First, we welcome the work taking place in Abney Park - our local green space which we have enjoyed for many years.

We are writing with serious concerns about the application for a premises license for the newly refurbished Abney Park chapel. We
are residents of Listria Park which backs onto the cemetery and we are within audible distance of events happening there.

We are concerned about the impact of the proposed license and in particularly the possibility of frequent regular events taking
place up to midnight. Unlike other local venues (eg Clissold House), the cemetery is close to residential properties and furthermore
is in an important site of biodiversity - which we know is a priority for Hackney Council. Learning should be taken from other events
venues that are in similar biodiverse locations eg Woodberry Wetlands and Walthamstow Wetlands.

Whilst we welcome the possibility of limited cultural events in the Chapel, we question the possibility of parties being held there -
which seems plausible under the current license application. Parties seem to us to be, at best, incompatible with and, at worst, in
conflict with not just the biodiversity of Abney Park but the fact that it is a cemetery and not simply a public park or similar green
space.

We are requesting the following:

- that any premises license granted has a ceiling on the number of events that can be held on a weekly and monthly basis so that
these are infrequent

- there must be an agreement on lighting and noise to minimise the impact of these on local residents and on the habitat of the
Abney Park with clear measures to enforce and monitor this

- in particular, noise including music, lighting and alcohol outside the venue needs careful consideration and limits

- entry and exit routes needs careful consideration and we would prefer that this is via Church Street and not the High Street where
the exit route runs parallel to Listria Park and thus would increase noise and disruption to Listria Park residents late at night

- consideration to be given to how visitors are kept to the pathways and not allowed to stray into other areas of the cemetery - for
example, security guards/visitor services staff

- that consideration is given to the impact on the cemetery's habitat via specialist advice and expertise to minimise damage to the
environment at the expense of generating income for the Council (ref the recent events at Finsbury Park
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-england-london-65309908)

- that sustainable waste management is implemented

- that a review is conducted after six months of the license is issued to assess the impact on the cemetery biodiversity and on local
residents.

We hope you will take our views into account and look forward to hearing further from you.

Best wishes

! !llslrlla !ar!
ondon N16-

Page 81



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Objection to Abney Park Chapel Premises Licence

1 message

m 24 April 2023 at 09:42
0: “licensing@nackney.gov.uk™ <licensing ackney.gov.uk>

co: I
Hello,

From: || | Colison Place, Manor Road, N16 || GG

Although | think it great the project to enhance Abney Park and its chapel and the thinking for a revenue stream that might help to
maintain them, | have serious concerns with the Abney Park Chapel premises licence as it currently stands. The application
appears to be lacking in key information and therefore regrettably | must object to the application until such time as more
assurances can be provided.

My concerns are as follows:

1. Abney Park’s designation as a Nature reserve does not appear to have been considered. The application makes no
reference to this special and significant setting. Noise and disturbance could have a serious detrimental impact on wildlife
and particularly birdlife of which Abney is an oasis in Central London. No events should be permitted until this impact is fully
understood and appropriate safeguards put in place.

2. The hours of the licence from 09:00 to 23:59 and closing time of 00:30 — why so early and so late? This makes no sense
given the special setting and shows no appreciation of Abney Park as one of the most tranquil settings in central London.
The requested hours give the impression that the Council are putting commercial priorities in front of nature
preservation. The later the hours that are offered the more this will encourage excess drinking which would likely lead to
increased public nuisance. The Abney Park website makes reference to the following types of events envisaged within the
restored chapel: “music performances, poetry readings, community events...and wedding ceremonies”. All of these events
should reasonably be able to finish at 9pm. Why risk the impact on the park wildlife and increase the potential for
disturbance to nearby residents with later and early unnecessary hours? Even Clissold House in Clissold park would appear
to have shorter hours of operation (11pm on Sunday) then those proposed in this application.

3. Late Night refreshment is stated as indoors (Part I) which makes sense as the events are also indoors. What does not then
make sense is why the supply of alcohol is requested both indoors and outdoors (Part J). This makes absolutely no sense.
The Council should refuse the consumption of alcohol off the premises. This could encourage people who are under the
influence of alcohol to roam around the cemetery at night which could lead to vandalism, littering and public nuisance and
increasing risk of crime. It should be noted that within the Royal Parks small events are not even permitted to provide
alcohol as part of the event.

4. The application form states ‘The building will undergo full risk assessments to ensure safe operation of the site’. Why is this
risk assessment not accompanying the application? Both the risk assessment and its proposed mitigation should be put
forward so that the event organisers then have something to comply with.

5. Have the London Fire Brigade commented on the application? In our increasingly dry and hot summers, people smoking
and glasses and bottles being dropped around the park increases the risk of wildfires. Such a fire outcome could be worse
during hours of darkness. No events should be permitted until this risk is satisfactorily addressed.

6. Noise — the licence must have the strictest sound controls. Other comparable park organisations have volunteered their
own noise restrictions. For example Event Organisers in the Royal Parks are not permitted to disturb any wildlife. In the
Woodberry Wetlands venue the London Wildlife Trust has a strict 85db noise limit (measured indoors). It is disappointing
that the applicant has not volunteered a noise limit in order to protect the Abney wildlife. | would suggest that, if at such
time a premises licence were to be granted, a 80db level maximum indoor limit be conditioned, strictly maintained and
observed. There should be approved suppliers of music (as per Woodberry Wetlands). | would request that for a temporary
period noise monitors (a power feed should be readily available from the chapel) are installed at appropriate locations near
the chapel to monitor sound levels. The cost of the installation and monitoring could be spread and recovered from the
event organisers. Monitoring noise levels, with appropriate allowances made for outside-to-inside noise differential will not
only ensure permitted noise levels are not exceededlﬂ%ﬁ)érlnaazs could be sent to Council staff if events exceed the
permitted levels) but would also provide useful data to ure event programming.

7. Crime — any introduction of people within the park at night time poses an increased risk of crime and disorder. The
application form states that a ‘Dispersal policy will be produced’ — why is this not accompanying the application now? How



can you grant a premises licence when the details of how patrons will leave the premises is not clear? Until such time as a
dispersal policy is fully understood and agreed it can only be assumed that the premises licence could increase the risk of

public nuisance.

8. The application states that ‘clear restrictions will be in place with regards to operating the spaces, noise and management of
the event’. What are these restrictions? This ‘it will be alright on the night’ attitude would be questionable in an urban
setting but in the Borough’s most important nature reserve?

9. There should be an initial limit of 1 event per week to avoid a concentration of events. This would offer not only nearby
residents but also the wildlife adequate respite. If the purpose is to create a revenue stream to help maintain the Chapel
and the park then the requisite annual contribution required should be made clear so that events do not become a money
making tool to subsidise other Council services. The events should be the minimum required to provide this defined
contribution to ensure that the primary purpose of Abney Park remains as a nature reserve and park and not an event

venue.

10. Please could the applicant explain what is meant by the ‘link to pavilions in abeyance’ annotation on the submitted drawing?

I have no doubt that if the right events are selected and appropriate management put in place the Chapel could provide a magical
setting for unique events which could be a real asset to the people of Hackney. However it is disappointing to be presented with

such little information with seemingly little to no consideration of the site’s special nature reserve status. | would recommend that
the Licensing department ask the applicant to reconsider and amend its proposals to address these concerns. Abney park is too

important an asset to get this wrong.

Kind Regards,

ICoIIison Place

Manor Road
London

N16.

Page 83



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Objection to Abney Park Chapel Premises Licence
1 message

m> 24 April 2023 at 11:27
o: "licensing@hackney.gov.uk” <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>, "gilbert.smyth@hackney.gov.uk" <gilbert.smyth@hackney.gov.uk>,

"Susan FajanaThomas (ClIr)" <susan.fajanathomas@hackney.gov.uk>, "mete.coban@hackney.gov.uk"
<mete.coban@hackney.gov.uk>

Hello

I am a local resident who lives in a property next to Abney Cemetery park. | am writing to formally lodge an objection to the
Abney Park Chapel Premises Licence.

I walk daily in Abney and know it well. | recognise the need to generate revenue for ongoing costs to upkeep and create a revenue
stream. However, | have serious concerns with the premises licence as it currently stands. The application appears to be rushed
and lacking in key information and therefore regrettably | must object to the application until such time as more assurances can be
provided

Primarily | have serious concerns that Abney Park’s designation as a Nature reserve does not appear to have been considered,
nor the fact that it is cemetery. The application makes no reference to either of these special settings.

Noise and disturbance could have a serious detrimental impact on wildlife and particularly birdlife of which Abney is a crucial oasis
in Central London. No events should be permitted until this impact is fully understood and appropriate safeguards put in place.

Whilst it is an ‘old cemetery’ it is still a place of rest for many thousands and is still used for small number of burials each year. To
request that events for up to 500 people, with alcohol being served and consumed, take place daily from 09.00-23.59 shows the
applicants have no regard of this.

My other comments are as follows:

e The hours of the licence to 23:59 and closing time of 00:30 — why so late? This makes no sense given the special setting
and shows no appreciation of Abney Park as one of the most tranquil settings in central London. These ‘tone-deaf’
requested hours give the impression that the Council are putting commercial priorities in front of nature preservation.

e The later the hours that are offered the more this will encourage excess drinking which would likely lead to increased public
nuisance. The Abney Park website makes reference to the following types of events envisaged within the restored chapel:
“music performances, poetry readings, community events...and wedding ceremonies”. All of these events should
reasonably be able to finish at 10pm, or perhaps in the exceptional case of weddings at 11pm. Why risk the impact on the
park wildlife and increase the potential for disturbance to nearby residents with later unnecessary hours? Even Clissold
House (in nearby Clissold Park) would appear to have shorter hours of operation (11pm on Sunday).

e Late Night refreshment is stated as indoors (Part I) which makes sense as the events are also indoors. What does not then
make sense is why the supply of alcohol is requested both indoors and outdoors (Part J). This makes absolutely no sense.
The Council should refuse the consumption of alcohol off the premises. This could encourage people who are under the
influence of alcohol to roam around the cemetery at night which could lead to vandalism, littering and public nuisance and
increasing risk of crime . It should be noted that within the Royal Parks small events are not even permitted to provide
alcohol as part of the event.

e The application form states ‘The building will undergo full risk assessments to ensure safe operation of the site’. Why is this
risk assessment not accompanying the application? Surely a master risk assessment and proposed mitigation should be
put forward so that the event organisers then have SB'M%&Q comply with. The cemetery is full of uneven graves, paths
and trees. The likelihood of people under the influence of alcohol, late at night and presumably in the dark wandering off
seems to not have been thought about ?



e Have the London Fire Brigade commented on the application? In our increasingly dry and hot summers, people smoking
and glasses and bottles being dropped around the park increases the risk of wildfires. No events should be permitted until
this risk is satisfactorily addressed.

« Confirmation that events after 4pm or anytime alcohol is served will have security is welcomed. Security must be sufficient
in quality and number of personnel. It is also welcomed that a Council representative would be present at each event.

* Noise — the licence must have the strictest sound controls. Other comparable park organisations have volunteered their
own noise restrictions. For example Event Organisers in the Royal Parks are not permitted to disturb any wildlife. In the
Woodberry Wetlands venue the London Wildlife Trust has a strict 85db noise limit (measured indoors). It is disappointing
that the applicant has not volunteered a noise limit in order to protect the Abney wildlife. | would suggest that, if at such
time a premises licence were to be granted, a 80db level maximum indoor limit be conditioned, strictly maintained and
observed. There should be approved suppliers of music (as per Woodberry Wetlands). | would request that for a temporary
period noise monitors (a power feed should be readily available from the chapel) are installed at appropriate locations near
the chapel to monitor sound levels. The cost of the installation and monitoring could be spread and recovered from the
event organisers. Monitoring noise levels, with appropriate allowances made for outside-to-inside noise differential will not
only ensure permitted noise levels are not exceeded (text alarms could be sent to Council staff if events exceed the
permitted levels) but would also provide useful data to inform future event programming.

e Crime — any introduction of people within the park at night time poses an increased risk of crime and disorder. The
application form states that a ‘Dispersal policy will be produced’ — why is this not accompanying the application now? How
can you grant a premises licence when the details of how patrons will leave the premises is not clear? Until such time as a
dispersal policy is fully understood and agreed it can only be assumed that the premises licence could increase the risk of
public nuisance.

e The application states that ‘clear restrictions will be in place with regards to operating the spaces, noise and management of
the event'. What are these restrictions? This ‘it will be alright on the night’ attitude would be questionable in an urban
setting but in the Borough’s most important nature reserve?

e There should be an initial limit of 1 event per week to avoid a concentration of events. This would offer not only nearby
residents but also the wildlife adequate respite. If the purpose is to create a revenue stream to help maintain the Chapel
and the park then the requisite annual contribution required should be made clear so that events do not become a money
making tool to subsidise other Council services. The events should be the minimum required to provide this defined
contribution to ensure that the primary purpose of Abney Park remains as a nature reserve and park and not an event
venue.

» Please could the applicant explain what is meant by the ‘link to pavilions in abeyance’ annotation on the submitted drawing?

e There appear to only be 3 toilets on the plans, for event of up to 500 people ? this will encourage urinating (or worse) in the
cemetery, becoming a public nuisance and potential health issue.

I have no doubt that if the right events are selected and appropriate management put in place the Chapel could provide a magical
setting for unique events which could be a real asset to the people of Hackney. However , it is disappointing to be presented with
such little information with seemingly little to no consideration of the site’s special nature reserve status and a cemetery. | would
recommend that the Licensing department ask the applicant to reconsider, amend its proposals to address these concerns and
engage with local community. Abney park is too important an asset to get this wrong.

| have cc’'d in our local councillors who | believe should be involved in this application and discussion with the local community.

Please acknowledge receipt of this objection.

Regards, Page 85



Sent from Mail for Windows

Page 86



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Objection to Abney Chapel Application for Premises License

1 message

m 24 April 2023 at 13:27
o: "licensing@hackney.gov.uk” <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>
Hello,

| am objecting to the details of the Application for a Premise License at Abney Chapel.

It is clear that by allowing people to drink alcohol on the premise until 11:59pm each day Crime and Disorder will increase. | live
next to the cemetery and we have experienced drunken disturbances, on one occasion there were approximately 12 police officers
and two helicopters chasing a single drunk man through the cemetery for a number of hours. Not only was this a huge waste of
time, a massive disturbance to all surrounding residence, but the drunk man trashed his way through the cemetery wildlife. There
is no way that crowds of up to 500 people, who have been drinking, could be controlled outside of daylight hours. The wild
cemetery grounds are not able to be patrolled without huge resource, noise and disturbance.

Without guests contained to the central chapel area and people making their way around the grounds there will be increased
rubbish and risk particularly to children who are playing in the cemetery. There is already an issue with broken glass and other drug
related dangerous litter. It is not realistic to clean up after events 7 days a week which finish in the dark after 12. How will the
cemetery be cleaned and Safe before it opens first thing in the morning? This objection is on the ground of Public Safety,
particularly children and general Nuisance.

The noise will clearly be an disturbance if not managed very closely, there is no plan for how this will be done. This will be a
massive Public Nuisance to all surrounding residents.

Perhaps a blanket application has been made to make booking events more flexible. This is not a reasonable or thought out
approach. Without a realistic and thought out plan it is a Public Safety issue.

| have also included a neighbours objection below as | agree with their points made.

Many thanks

Objection to Abney Park Chapel Premises Licence

Although | applaud the efforts and investment to restore the chapel, and to create a revenue stream that might help to maintain it
and the Park, | have serious concerns with the premises licence as it currently stands. The application appears to be rushed and
lacking in key information and therefore regrettably | must object to the application until such time as more assurances can be
provided

Primarily | have serious concerns that Abney Park’s designation as a Nature reserve does not appear to have been considered.
The application makes no reference to this special setting. Noise and disturbance could have a serious detrimental impact on
wildlife and particularly birdlife of which Abney is a crucial oasis in Central London. No events should be permitted until this impact
is fully understood and appropriate safeguards put in place. My other comments are as follows:

e The hours of the licence to 23:59 and closing time of 56‘%9@ v§n7y so late? This makes no sense given the special setting
and shows no appreciation of Abney Park as one of the most tranquil settings in central London. These ‘tone-deaf’
requested hours give the impression that the Council are putting commercial priorities in front of nature preservation.



The later the hours that are offered the more this will encourage excess drinking which would likely lead to increased public
nuisance. The Abney Park website makes reference to the following types of events envisaged within the restored chapel:
“music performances, poetry readings, community events...and wedding ceremonies”. All of these events should
reasonably be able to finish at 10pm, or perhaps in the exceptional case of weddings at 11pm. Why risk the impact on the
park wildlife and increase the potential for disturbance to nearby residents with later unnecessary hours? Even Clissold
House would appear to have shorter hours of operation (11pm on Sunday).

Late Night refreshment is stated as indoors (Part I) which makes sense as the events are also indoors. What does not then
make sense is why the supply of alcohol is requested both indoors and outdoors (Part J). This makes absolutely no sense.
The Council should refuse the consumption of alcohol off the premises. This could encourage people who are under the
influence of alcohol to roam around the cemetery at night which could lead to vandalism, littering and public nuisance and
increasing risk of crime. It should be noted that within the Royal Parks small events are not even permitted to provide
alcohol as part of the event.

The application form states ‘The building will undergo full risk assessments to ensure safe operation of the site’. Why is this
risk assessment not accompanying the application? Surely a master risk assessment and proposed mitigation should be
put forward so that the event organisers then have something to comply with.

Have the London Fire Brigade commented on the application? In our increasingly dry and hot summers, people smoking
and glasses and bottles being dropped around the park increases the risk of wildfires. No events should be permitted until
this risk is satisfactorily addressed.

Confirmation that events after 4pm or anytime alcohol is served will have security is welcomed. Security must be sufficient
in quality and number of personnel. It is also welcomed that a Council representative would be present at each event.

Noise — the licence must have the strictest sound controls. Other comparable park organisations have volunteered their
own noise restrictions. For example Event Organisers in the Royal Parks are not permitted to disturb any wildlife. In the
Woodberry Wetlands venue the London Wildlife Trust has a strict 85db noise limit (measured indoors). It is disappointing
that the applicant has not volunteered a noise limit in order to protect the Abney wildlife. | would suggest that, if at such
time a premises licence were to be granted, a 80db level maximum indoor limit be conditioned, strictly maintained and
observed. There should be approved suppliers of music (as per Woodberry Wetlands). | would request that for a temporary
period noise monitors (a power feed should be readily available from the chapel) are installed at appropriate locations near
the chapel to monitor sound levels. The cost of the installation and monitoring could be spread and recovered from the
event organisers. Monitoring noise levels, with appropriate allowances made for outside-to-inside noise differential will not
only ensure permitted noise levels are not exceeded (text alarms could be sent to Council staff if events exceed the
permitted levels) but would also provide useful data to inform future event programming.

Crime — any introduction of people within the park at night time poses an increased risk of crime and disorder. The
application form states that a ‘Dispersal policy will be produced’ — why is this not accompanying the application now? How
can you grant a premises licence when the details of how patrons will leave the premises is not clear? Until such time as a
dispersal policy is fully understood and agreed it can only be assumed that the premises licence could increase the risk of
public nuisance.

The application states that ‘clear restrictions will be in place with regards to operating the spaces, noise and management of
the event'. What are these restrictions? This ‘it will be alright on the night’ attitude would be questionable in an urban
setting but in the Borough’s most important nature reserve?

There should be an initial limit of 1 event per week to avoid a concentration of events. This would offer not only nearby
residents but also the wildlife adequate respite. If the purpose is to create a revenue stream to help maintain the Chapel
and the park then the requisite annual contribution required should be made clear so that events do not become a money
making tool to subsidise other Council services. The events should be the minimum required to provide this defined
contribution to ensure that the primary purpose of Abney Park remains as a nature reserve and park and not an event
venue.

Page 88

Please could the applicant explain what is meant by the ‘link to pavilions in abeyance’ annotation on the submitted drawing?



| have no doubt that if the right events are selected and appropriate management put in place the Chapel could provide a magical
setting for unique events which could be a real asset to the people of Hackney. However it is disappointing to be presented with
such little information with seemingly little to no consideration of the site’s special nature reserve status. | would recommend that
the Licensing department ask the applicant to reconsider and amend its proposals to address these concerns. Abney park is too
important an asset to get this wrong.

Sent from Mail for Windows

Page 89



HHacknev Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Application LA01 Abney Chapel

1 message

24 April 2023 at 15:34

I Collison Place, N16 -

To Hackney Council
Representation re your application LAO1 for premises licence for Abney Chapel

| object to this application for a premises licence as it currently stands.

| understand and appreciate all the work involved in the restoration of Abney Chapel. | also understand that the rationale
driving this application is to create a revenue stream to maintain and run it. But the current application is a blanket one,
not specific at all to the conditions and needs of the building and the environment. Its generic scope provides absolutely
no parameters for the acceptability of future applications to the Council Licensing Department. Abney Chapel and Abney
Park are very special and precious. Therefore the application needs to provide specific guidance about what is and is not
acceptable. Such assurance is vital. Outside Abney Park right now there is a large poster which reads -

Abney Park is designated as a ‘most important site of biodiversity, a listed historic park and a designated local nature
reserve’. The application makes no reference to this special setting. Noise and disturbance could have a serious
detrimental impact on wildlife and particularly birdlife of which Abney is a crucial oasis in Central London. The impact of
potential ‘events’ on the environment needs to be responsibly quantified and appropriate limits and specific safeguards
put in place for any event to be acceptable.

General licensing objectives section M.

| must object to the application until such time as the application makes more appropriate specification of
required conditions, particularly for times when the Park is not open to the general public.

With reference to public safety M c)

In our increasingly dry and hot summers, people smoking and glasses and bottles being dropped around the park
increases the risk of wildfires. Have the London Fire Brigade commented on the application? No events should be
permitted until this risk is satisfactorily addressed by them as well.

The application states that ‘clear restrictions will be in place with regard to operating the spaces, noise and management
of the event'. For public confidence, these restrictions should be specified or at least exemplified.

It would make good sense for a master risk assessmerPﬁanQﬁbsed mitigation to be put forward in conjunction with this
application so that the event organisers then have something to comply with.



Confirmation that events after 4pm or any time alcohol is served will have security is welcomed. Security must be
sufficient in quality and number of personnel. It is also welcomed that a Council representative would be present at each
event.

With reference to crime and disorder. M b)

The capacity of the Chapel is stated as being a maximum of 80 persons. Why not specify this as the maximum limit of
attendees and security staff etc for any event? References to audiences of up to 500 in the Notes for Guidance on the
final page are not relevant in this case and unhelpful.

The full vetting procedure referred to in M b) would be more reassuring if the application were specific about criteria of
suitability and referred to the special status of the place itself.

Alcohol consumption is the only activity listed as outside the Chapel. What security is deemed to be necessary to contain
event participants from dispersing throughout the Park? My house backs on to the Park and we have had unpleasant
experience of nighttime prowlers and intruders. The application form states that a ‘Dispersal policy will be produced’ —
why is this not accompanying the application now? How can you grant a premises licence when the details of how
patrons will leave the premises and the Park is not clear? Until such time as a dispersal policy is fully understood and
agreed it can only be assumed that the premises licence could increase the risk of public nuisance.

The Council should refuse the consumption of alcohol off the premises. Late Night refreshment is stated as indoors (Part
I) which makes sense as all the events are also indoors. Why then is the supply of alcohol requested both indoors and
outdoors (Part J)? This makes absolutely no sense. This could encourage people who are under the influence of alcohol
to roam around the cemetery at night which could lead to vandalism, littering and public nuisance and increasing risk of
crime. It should be noted that within the Royal Parks small events are not even permitted to provide alcohol as part of the
event.

With reference to public nuisance M d)

The last point above is also applicable to issues of prevention of public nuisance. In addition, celebratory occasions with
an alcohol licence up to 23.59 plus events with amplified music whether live or recorded, are highly likely to create noise
which disturbs both wildlife and those humans who reside in the vicinity, like me.

Noise — the licence must have the strictest sound controls. Other comparable park organisations have volunteered their
own noise restrictions. For example Event Organisers in the Royal Parks are not permitted to disturb any wildlife. In the
Woodberry Wetlands venue the London Wildlife Trust has a strict 85db noise limit (measured indoors). It is disappointing
that the applicant has not volunteered a noise limit in order to protect the Abney wildlife. | would suggest that, if at such
time a premises licence were to be granted, a 80db level maximum indoor limit be conditioned, strictly maintained and
observed. There should be approved suppliers of music (as per Woodberry Wetlands). | would request that for a
temporary period noise monitors (a power feed should be readily available from the chapel) are installed at appropriate
locations near the chapel to monitor sound levels. The cost of the installation and monitoring could be spread and
recovered from the event organisers. Monitoring noise levels, with appropriate allowances made for outside-to-inside
noise differential will not only ensure permitted noise levels are not exceeded (text alarms could be sent to Council staff if
events exceed the permitted levels) but would also provide useful data to inform future event programming.

Protection of children from harm M e)

It is wise to require children to be accompanied by an adult to events and to ensure the premises are enclosed securely
during the event. Let us hope that Challenge 25 is enforced. | understand that the licence includes birthday parties for
young people up to 16 years old but | do not understand the ‘and younger than 35’ reference. Please explain.

Finally,

| have no doubt that if the right events are selected and appropriate management put in place, the Chapel could provide a
magical setting for unique events which could be a real asset to the people of Hackney. However it is disappointing to be
presented with such little information with seemingly little to no consideration of the site’s special nature reserve status. |
would recommend that the Licensing department ask the applicant to reconsider and amend its proposals to address
these concerns. Abney Park is too important an asset to get this wrong.

But | must object to the application until such time as the application makes more appropriate specification of
required conditions.

Yours sincerely,

[ ]
Page 91



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

C16
Objection, Abney Chapel

1 message

24 April 2023 at 17:56
o: licensing@hackney.gov.u

Regarding Abney Chapel in Abney Park Cemetery

I am a neighbour of Abney Park and I’m objecting to the licensing application made for Abney Chapel in Abney Park Cemetery allowing live
and recorded music and the serving of alcohol until midnight on any night inside and outside the chapel.

Having lived next to Abney Park for 20 years I’ve experienced how noise travels across and echoes around it and it can be surprisingly
disruptive. During the day, even people just calling to each other or their dogs reverberates far and wide. Events in Clissold Park and even
Finsbury Park echo across the cemetery to the surrounding homes and are easily audible with windows closed.

When people occasionally get in to the cemetery at night they often treat it like their own private party park and make a lot of noise, especially if
they’ve been drinking. Residents surrounding the cemetery are kept awake with drunken shouting. I presume this is at least partly why the
cemetery is officially closed at night, with the gates normally shut at dusk. My street has also suffered intruders from the cemetery at night,
leading to (unrequested) police helicopter presence causing yet more disruption. Allowing entry to Abney Park at night for events is likely to
lead to more noise nuisance and crime.

Stoke Newington is not lacking music venues and drinking establishments and I love live music, clubbing and a drink. But it has one space that
is supposed to be quiet - a cemetery, which is also a nature reserve. As much as it’s lovely to see the funerary chapel restored, it is not an
appropriate place for late night drinking and loud music for large groups of people. Daytime events would be a different matter.

Mention of pavilions on the premises diagram in the licence application, and the request to serve alcohol outside the premises strongly imply a
large number of guests will be entertained outside the chapel. Presumably this would be in temporary marquees in which music will be played at
volume for night-time dancing - with not even the sound protection of the chapel walls. The permissions sought have the potential to turn the
cemetery into an outdoor nightclub.

No limit on the number of people admitted to the marquees is mentioned. The wording of the cited regulations* implies that with this licence
the chapel and its pavilions would be able to hold events for more than 500 people. I note events for under 500 people that finish by 11pm do
not require a licence - so why the need to apply for extra permissions? Extending the time to midnight or indeed the numbers of people seems
wholly inappropriate in a location prized for its serenity and delicate wildlife.

I get the impression that many locals thought there would be quiet respectful daytime wedding ceremonies in the chapel, not large night-time
receptions with multiple marquees spilling out the sides with recorded music and dancing. Information to the public does not appear to have
been explicit, comprehensive or honest.

I also note there are only three toilets. If guest numbers are significantly higher than the stated capacity (variously 70 or 80) this could well see
drinkers urinating, vomiting and discarding drinkware and other rubbish in the cemetery at large. Anyone who has spent time walking in the
cemetery knows it can be very easy to trip (on broken masonry or tree roots) or to fall in an old grave or animal ditch, as well as to get lost. At
night this risk would be multiplied. I have previously had to call an ambulance for a daytime visitor who had broken an ankle and the police for
a victim of attempted rape (the shouts being perfectly audible, despite being quite distant from my home). The paramedics found it very hard to
locate the injured walker, despite perfect daylight. Other walkers had to catry her to the Stamford Hill exit.

I would urge any authority to make themselves familiar with the dense overgrown nature of the cemetery, with all the underfoot hazards and
disorientating layout before considering any permission for night time access. The risks to health and safety alone are concerning and the public
nuisance factor, to homes on three sides, could be considerable.

Many thanks,

ICollison Place.

Page 92



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Objection to Application for live-music and late night alcohol license at Abney Park Chapel
1 message

24 April 2023 at 18:14
o: "licensing@hackney.gov.uk’ <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>
Cc:

Dear Licensing Service,

We are writing to object to Abney Park Chapel’s application for a live music and alcohol licence to midnight, seven
nights a week. We live atl Bouverie Road, N1 and our house abuts Abney Park. To have live music playing
until midnight, potentially every night of the week, and then to have people exiting until 12.30am or later will create a
significant noise nuisance not just for us, but also for the wildlife that make the park their home.

An alcohol license until midnight, 7 nights a week, with all the attendant antisocial behaviour that goes alongside
this, will further damage the peaceful nature of the park and the purpose for which it was created — to have a space
where people can remember their loved ones in a natural setting.

Abney Park is a much loved local haven of historical importance. Whilst it is wonderful to see the park and Chapel
being redeveloped, we believe this application is insensitive to neighbours, detrimental to wildlife and disrespectful
to the families of the deceased and urge the Licensing Sub-Committee to reject it.

Yours,

Page 93



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Objection to Abney Park Chapel Premises License
1 message

[ —— 24 Aprl 2023 at 1905
o: licensing ackney.gov.u

Hackney Council
The Licencing Service
1 Hillman Street
London E8 1DY

As a direct neighbour to Abney Park Cemetery, | am happy that Hackney Council is investing in this unique
natural and cultural resource, so that it can be enjoyed by more citizens. My objections are intended to help the
Council define important boundaries to the use of the chapel and the park, that should help to make use of it in
keeping with the surrounding nature and neighbourhood.

Sadly the current version of the premises licence lacks such boundaries and therefore | wish to register my
objections as follows:

1)  The hours of licence until midnight, and the closing time for the park by 0:30, are too long into the night. This
will severely disturb the wildlife in the Park, which is known to be an important (migratory) bird refuge and one of
the last remaining woodlands within the North Circular Road. Events should be limited to 22:00 and the park
should be closed for humans by 22:30.

2) There should be a clear definition of types of events permitted in the chapel. The website cites music,
poetry, community events and wedding ceremonies; in addition a limit on the number of participants is required.
3) The licence should be restricted to indoors only — at present the licence allows the provision of alcoholic
beverages indoors and outdoors.

4) | am concerned about the effects of alcoholic drinks licence on the behaviour of visitors, particularly late at
night — this may encourage vandalism, littering and additional noise.

5) There is currently no written documentation on the risk assessment although the application refers to this to
be undertaken. Clearly the licence must be conditional to a satisfactory outcome of this risk assessment. This
must include a fire risk assessment by the London Fire brigade, given the increase in hot and dry summers
leading to a risk of wildfires, particularly if visitors smoke and fail to extinguish their cigarettes.

6) There is no current definition of a noise limit — | would think 80 dB in direct vicinity of the chapel should be
the maximum tolerable noise level. How will this be monitored?

7)  Whilst | welcome the provision of security with each event, the application must be more specific how crime
(attack on people as well as nature resources) will be prevented — what are the details of the dispersal policy that
is mentioned?

8) The application mentions ‘pavilions in abeyance’ on the drawing — does this mean that there are plans to
erect temporary pavilions outside of the chapel and/or the café/library building? This would be counterproductive
in terms of noise protection and would allow attendance numbers that are not appropriate for the setting.

9) As the park and chapel are public assets managed by the council, we need to see a clear accountability for
the monitoring of such boundaries, including a method for citizens to report their ongoing concerns and see them
addressed.

| do hope that the Council will consider these objections and ask for a revised application for a licence that
defines the boundaries as above, in terms of time, restriction of outdoor activity, noise levels, security monitoring
and full risk assessment.

Yours sincerely

I Co'lison Place | Manor Road | London | N16 [

Page 94



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Objection to Abney Park Chapel Premises Licence
1 message

m 24 April 2023 at 21:00
o: "licensing@hackney.gov.uk” <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Objection to Abney Park Chapel Premises Licence (by Kimberley Jacobs on behalf of Hackney Council)
Dear Hackney Licensing,

Although | am behind the efforts of Hackney Council to invest in Abney Park and to restore the chapel (and as part of that
create revenue streams to help to maintain the Park), | have serious concerns with the premises licence application as it
currently stands.

The application is lacking in key information (specifically about the management of any events in Abney Park, involving large
numbers of people and alcohol and amplified music after normal park opening hours and after midnight each night of the
week) and therefore | must object to the application.

Primarily | have serious concerns that Abney Park’s designation as a Nature Reserve does not appear to have been
considered. Abney Park has been designated by Hackney Council as a Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC).

The application makes no reference to this special setting. Noise and disturbance is likely to have a serious detrimental impact
on wildlife and particularly birdlife of which Abney is a crucial oasis in Central London. No events should be permitted until
this impact is fully understood and appropriate safeguards put in place.

Secondly, the proposals represent a threat to the tranquil setting of the park for those animals and Hackney residents who live
near it. The hours of the licence to 23:59 and closing time of 00:30 are particularly late and will encourage
excess drinking which would likely lead to increased public nuisance. The Abney Park website makes reference to the
following types of events envisaged within the restored chapel: “music performances, poetry readings, community events...
and wedding ceremonies”. All of these events should reasonably be able to finish at 10pm.

Thirdly, Late Night refreshment is stated as indoors (Part I) which makes sense as the events are also indoors. What does not
then make sense is why the supply of alcohol is requested both indoors and outdoors (Part J). This makes absolutely no sense.
The Council should refuse the consumption of alcohol off the premises. This could encourage people who are under the
influence of alcohol to roam around the cemetery at night which could lead to vandalism, fire risks, littering and public
nuisance and increasing risk of crime. It should be noted that within the Royal Parks small events are not even permitted to
provide alcohol as part of the event.

Fourthly, the application form states ‘The building will undergo full risk assessments to ensure safe operation of the site’. Why
is this risk assessment not accompanying the application? Surely a master risk assessment and proposed mitigation should be
put forward so that the event organisers then have something to comply with.

Fifthly, as a resident of a home adjoining Abney Park | am particularly concerned about crime: any introduction of people
within the park at night time poses an increased risk of crime and disorder.

Please also note these additional points/questions:

» Have the London Fire Brigade commented on the application? In our increasingly dry and hot summers, people
smoking and glasses and bottles being dropped around the park increases the risk of wildfires. No events should be
permitted until this risk is satisfactorily addressed.

* Noise —the licence must have the strictest sound controls. Other comparable park organisations have volunteered their
own noise restrictions. For example Event Organisers in the Royal Parks are not permitted to disturb any wildlife. In the
Woodberry Wetlands venue the London Wildlife Trust has a strict 85db noise limit (measured indoors). It is
disappointing that the applicant has not volunteered a noise limit in order to protect the Abney wildlife. | would
suggest that, if at such time a premises licence were to be granted, a 80db level maximum indoor limit be conditioned,
strictly maintained and observed. There should be Fbagee@5jppliers of music (as per Woodberry Wetlands). | would
request that for a temporary period noise monitors (a power feed should be readily available from the chapel) are
installed at appropriate locations near the chapel to monitor sound levels. The cost of the installation and monitoring



could be spread and recovered from the event organisers. Monitoring noise levels, with appropriate allowances made
for outside-to-inside noise differential will not only ensure permitted noise levels are not exceeded (text alarms could
be sent to Council staff if events exceed the permitted levels) but would also provide useful data to inform future event
programming.

» Crime —as mentioned, any introduction of people within the park at night time poses an increased risk of crime and
disorder. The application form states that a ‘Dispersal policy will be produced’ — why is this not accompanying the
application now? How can you grant a premises licence when the details of how patrons will leave the premises is not
clear? Until such time as a dispersal policy is fully understood and agreed it can only be assumed that the premises
licence could increase the risk of public nuisance.

» The application states that ‘clear restrictions will be in place with regards to operating the spaces, noise and
management of the event’. What are these restrictions? This ‘it will be alright on the night’ attitude would be
guestionable in an urban setting but in the Borough’s most important nature reserve?

e There should be an initial limit of 1 event per week to avoid a concentration of events (events that are an inevitable
disturbance to nearby residents as well as the wildlife). If the purpose of the events is to create a revenue stream to
help maintain the Chapel and Abney Park then the requisite annual contribution required should be made clear so that
events do not become a money making tool to subsidise other Council services. The events should be the minimum
required to provide this defined contribution to ensure that the primary purpose of Abney Park remains as a nature
reserve and park and not an event venue.

e Please could the applicant explain what is meant by the ‘link to pavilions in abeyance’ annotation on the submitted
drawing?

It is disappointing to be presented with such little information with seemingly little to no consideration of the site’s special
nature reserve status. | would recommend that the Licensing department ask the applicant to reconsider and amend its
proposals to address these concerns. Abney park is a vital asset within Hackney and it is important to protect it.

I look forward to your acknowledgement of this objection and responses to my questions.

best wishes,

Page 96



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Objection to Abney Park Chapel Premises Licence (by Kimberley Jacobs on behalf of

Hackney Council)
1 message

[ — 24 April 2023 at 2101
o: "licensing@hackney.gov.uk” <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Objection to Abney Park Chapel Premises Licence (by Kimberley Jacobs on behalf of Hackney Council)
Dear Hackney Licensing,

Although | am behind the efforts of Hackney Council to invest in Abney Park and to restore the chapel (and as part of that
create revenue streams to help to maintain the Park), | have serious concerns with the premises licence application as it
currently stands.

The application is lacking in key information (specifically about the management of any events in Abney Park, involving large
numbers of people and alcohol and amplified music after normal park opening hours and after midnight each night of the
week) and therefore | must object to the application.

Primarily | have serious concerns that Abney Park’s designation as a Nature Reserve does not appear to have been
considered. Abney Park has been designated by Hackney Council as a Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC).

The application makes no reference to this special setting. Noise and disturbance is likely to have a serious detrimental impact
on wildlife and particularly birdlife of which Abney is a crucial oasis in Central London. No events should be permitted until
this impact is fully understood and appropriate safeguards put in place.

Secondly, the proposals represent a threat to the tranquil setting of the park for those animals and Hackney residents who live
near it. The hours of the licence to 23:59 and closing time of 00:30 are particularly late and will encourage
excess drinking which would likely lead to increased public nuisance. The Abney Park website makes reference to the
following types of events envisaged within the restored chapel: “music performances, poetry readings, community events...
and wedding ceremonies”. All of these events should reasonably be able to finish at 10pm.

Thirdly, Late Night refreshment is stated as indoors (Part I) which makes sense as the events are also indoors. What does not
then make sense is why the supply of alcohol is requested both indoors and outdoors (Part J). This makes absolutely no sense.
The Council should refuse the consumption of alcohol off the premises. This could encourage people who are under the
influence of alcohol to roam around the cemetery at night which could lead to vandalism, fire risks, littering and public
nuisance and increasing risk of crime. It should be noted that within the Royal Parks small events are not even permitted to
provide alcohol as part of the event.

Fourthly, the application form states ‘The building will undergo full risk assessments to ensure safe operation of the site’. Why
is this risk assessment not accompanying the application? Surely a master risk assessment and proposed mitigation should be
put forward so that the event organisers then have something to comply with.

Fifthly, as a resident of a home adjoining Abney Park | am particularly concerned about crime: any introduction of people
within the park at night time poses an increased risk of crime and disorder.

Please also note these additional points/questions:

» Have the London Fire Brigade commented on the application? In our increasingly dry and hot summers, people
smoking and glasses and bottles being dropped around the park increases the risk of wildfires. No events should be
permitted until this risk is satisfactorily addressed.

» Noise —the licence must have the strictest sound controls. Other comparable park organisations have volunteered their
own noise restrictions. For example Event Organisers in the Royal Parks are not permitted to disturb any wildlife. In the
Woodberry Wetlands venue the London Wildlife Trust has a strict 85db noise limit (measured indoors). It is
disappointing that the applicant has not volunteered a noise limit in order to protect the Abney wildlife. | would
suggest that, if at such time a premises licence wereRagegBZted, a 80db level maximum indoor limit be conditioned,
strictly maintained and observed. There should be approved suppliers of music (as per Woodberry Wetlands). | would
request that for a temporary period noise monitors (a power feed should be readily available from the chapel) are



installed at appropriate locations near the chapel to monitor sound levels. The cost of the installation and monitoring
could be spread and recovered from the event organisers. Monitoring noise levels, with appropriate allowances made
for outside-to-inside noise differential will not only ensure permitted noise levels are not exceeded (text alarms could
be sent to Council staff if events exceed the permitted levels) but would also provide useful data to inform future event
programming.

e Crime —as mentioned, any introduction of people within the park at night time poses an increased risk of crime and
disorder. The application form states that a ‘Dispersal policy will be produced’ — why is this not accompanying the
application now? How can you grant a premises licence when the details of how patrons will leave the premises is not
clear? Until such time as a dispersal policy is fully understood and agreed it can only be assumed that the premises
licence could increase the risk of public nuisance.

e The application states that ‘clear restrictions will be in place with regards to operating the spaces, noise and
management of the event’. What are these restrictions? This ‘it will be alright on the night’ attitude would be
qguestionable in an urban setting but in the Borough’s most important nature reserve?

e There should be an initial limit of 1 event per week to avoid a concentration of events (events that are an inevitable
disturbance to nearby residents as well as the wildlife). If the purpose of the events is to create a revenue stream to
help maintain the Chapel and Abney Park then the requisite annual contribution required should be made clear so that
events do not become a money making tool to subsidise other Council services. The events should be the minimum
required to provide this defined contribution to ensure that the primary purpose of Abney Park remains as a nature
reserve and park and not an event venue.

» Please could the applicant explain what is meant by the ‘link to pavilions in abeyance’ annotation on the submitted
drawing?

It is disappointing to be presented with such little information with seemingly little to no consideration of the site’s special
nature reserve status. | would recommend that the Licensing department ask the applicant to reconsider and amend its
proposals to address these concerns. Abney park is a vital asset within Hackney and it is important to protect it.

| look forward to your acknowledgement of this objection and responses to my questions.

best wishes,

ICoIIison Place

Page 98



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Representation against application for a license for Abney Chapel, Abney Park, 215 Stoke
Newington High Street, London, N16 OLH

1 message

m 24 April 2023 at 21:12
o: "licensing@hackney.gov.uk” <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

To the Licensing service,

| am writing to object in the strongest terms to the application made by the London Borough of Hackney for a premises license for
the above address.

As | understand the application, there is a lack of clarity on numbers of people the venue expects to cater for (a capacity of 70
given for the Chapel itself but then a reference to "Pavillions" and the fact that there is a License application at all and that it
contains a request for the supply of alcohol for consumption to be allowed both on and off the premises leads me to suspect that
numbers will be significantly more than the 70 stated for the chapel alone). Also, | am concerned that there is no management plan
attached for how people will be supervised outdoors in the park. Furthermore, although a risk assessment is mentioned in the
application, there is no risk assessment attached, nor is there the stated 'Dispersal Policy'. | would also like to see an impact
survey on the local wildlife which, | believe, should be taken into account, given the park's status as a Nature Reserve. All these
points are key to the successful running of any events in this building and need to be considered as part of this application, not
produced at a later date. | am objecting, with these issues in mind, for the following reasons:

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

Allowing events with alcohol until 23.59pm every night of the week will encourage excessive drinking which will disturb local
residents and impact negatively on the park wildlife. The events suggested on the Park website (“music performances, poetry
readings, community events...and wedding ceremonies”) do not need to go on until midnight. The contributory
factor of alcohol in acts of crime and disorder is well documented and this application, without any indication of how
the applicant will ensure that the behaviour of attendees remains orderly and legal, both in the venue and the
surrounding park, concerns me greatly. The park is a large area to take charge of, especially at night. Collison
Place, where my flat is, has already experienced incidents of people trespassing in the park then scaling the
perimeter wall around Abney Park and then causing nuisance and damage in the gated community and this has
happened when access to the park is supposedly barred at night.

Allowing people to be within Abney Park at night will increase the risk of crime and disorder because of the nature of
the environment which is a large and poorly lit woodland space. An increase in bad behaviour is very likely if this
application is approved. Shorter licensing hours are needed and a ban on the supply and consumption of alcohol
outdoors after 9 or 10pm should be agreed.

The Prevention of Public Nuisance

Many residential properties, my own included, back on to and overlook Abney Park, which has a statutory designation as a Local
Nature Reserve. The peace and quiet that the Park currently affords is of great importance to both residents and the huge array of
wildlife that lives in the Park. This application, with its requested hours of 9.00am to 23.59 / 00.30, seven days per week, seems to
totally ignore the needs of the wildlife in the Park and the wellbeing of local residents.

Allowing events until 23.59 every night in what is basically an open air setting from a sound perspective (assuming Pavillions are,
in effect, marquees) will encourage noise which will disturb local residents and impact negatively on the park wildlife. Clissold
House, in nearby Clissold Park which is a much larger space and also close to residents, has shorter hours of operation. | believe
that this license should not allow the consumption of alcohol off the premises. There is no evidence in the application showing that
the applicant intends to limit those who have been drinking from wandering around the cemetery meaning that vandalism, littering
and behaviour causing public nuisance will go unchallenged by those in charge. The Royal Parks, for example, do not allow
alcohol to be provided for small events.

| believe that the most likely form of public nuisance will be noise. The application states that ‘clear restrictions will be
in place with regards to operating the spaces, noise and management of the event’. What are these restrictions? This license
needs strict sound controls so as not to disturb local residents and park wildlife. There are comparable examples in
event management in other Hackney and London open spaces. In Woodberry Wetlands, there is a strict 85db noise
limit (measured indoors) and | would expect to see similar or lower in this application, given the proximity of
residential properties. Events in the Royal Parks are not allowed to disturb wildlife. The same is needed here. The
License should stipulate a limit on the number of events taking place throughout the year and should be set at a
level which will provide sufficient income just to cover Oaintaining the venue to ensure that the primary
purpose of Abney Park remains as a nature reserve and park and not as an events venue.



| am concerned that the plan for this venue seems to be for an unspecified large number of attendees to be present
in @ venue where alcohol will be consumed that seems to only have 3 toilets. If this is the case, the likelihood of
behaviour in the park that will be a nuisance to the public is high.

The application form talks about a Dispersal Policy but there is no evidence of one. This should be submitted as part
of the application because how attendees will leave the premises, particularly at night, if done satisfactorily, is a
very important part of building the trust of the local community in this venture. If this is not addressed, the likelihood
of attendees causing noise and public nuisance is high.

Public Safety

The application form states " The building will undergo full risk assessments to ensure safe operation of the site’ yet
there is no risk assessment attached to the application. | would like the Licensing department to see and publish, for
public scrutiny, the risk assessment and have this as part of the decision making process. | would also expect this
risk assessment to cover not just the building, but the area around the site if 'pavillions' are built and used. | would
want to see that the issue of security has been properly addressed with an expectation that organisers employ
sufficient numbers of security personnel to ensure that all park users are safe when events are taking place and that
behaviours from attendees at the events put on in the Chapel area, that could harm others or the environment within
the park and surrounding area, are prevented.

| would like you to take my objections and comments into consideration when looking at this application and request
that the applicant provides the additional information that is clearly lacking in the current application. A reduction in
the proposed hours of operation, coupled with robust management policies, would be a compromise that could
address these concerns.

Best wishes,

!OHISOH !Iace

N16 [

Page 100



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Objection - Abney Chapel Application for Premises License
1 message

N — 24 Aprl 2023 a1 2137
o: licensing ackney.gov.u

My neighbours have told me about the planning application to make the Chapel in Abney Cemetery into a venue space
and | have read the proposal circulated. Although | am very excited that the Chapel is being renovated and brought back
to life as it were | am really worried about the following:

» Noise - our home back on to the cemetery. This will be really disturbing for us and our two young children. It will
affect our sleep and will mean we can’t keep the windows open in our children’s room. | am just really concerned
that under the proposal this could happen seven days a week.

» Public order - | am also anxious about people from the events walking though the cemetery at night and the danger
that might pose to them but also disorder that we will hear. | can see that all events over a certain capacity will
need council security but | could not see where the plan was as to how you would limit peoples movement in
the cemetery if indeed that is the plan at all.

» Preservation of the environment - one of the things that makes the cemetery so special is the birds and wildlife.
Again | could not see the considerations made to wildlife and the impact of loud and regular night time noise for
them as well.

» Licensing hours - it seems that to run a number of these events each year to create income to support the chapel
and cemetery would be a great idea but the proposal allows for events every night of the week and until midnight. |
cannot see how this is fair to residents. It is like opening an outdoor pub until midnight every night. | don’t think this
would ever be allowed in fairness to residents so please can you explain further as to why this is the proposal.

| really hope we have a chance to be involved in any further consultation fir the project. | know that myself and neighbours
really want to support the cemetery but this proposal seems far from reasonable for those who like around it.

Page 101



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Objection to Planning Application for grant of a licence application to Abney Chapel

1 message

m 24 April 2023 at 21:47
o: "licensing@hackney.gov.uk” <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>
Dear Sir,

| have become aware of an application to grant a licence for a licensed premises in Abney Chapel which includes the late night
sale of alcohol for consumption on and off the premise in in a nature reserve that abuts my property,.

| strongly object to this application on the grounds of public nuisance, crime and disorder and public safety in a nature reserve
particularly given alcohol will be available for consumption outdoors. | cannot see how this will not lead to unwanted and
uncontrollable noise disturbance in an unlit nature reserve where people will be able to wander around disturbing the right of the
neighbouring properties to quiet enjoyment not to mention the disturbance to the wildlife. The lack of street lighting mens that the
risk of crime and disorder in accentuated. Is it intended that security controls will be put in place to avoid crime and disorder and to
ensure that the park is cleared of people at night when the ability to console oneself in the undergrowth is a given? What controls
are intended to be put in place to montor noise and disturbance for the residents and the wildlife?

Finally, why were representation not sought form the residents abutting the park? The first | head about these plans was yesterday
when | was sent a photo of the application posted on site. . | received no notification from the counsel that they intended to make
this application and | object ot the lack of consolation with the neighbouring properties.

Regarrds,

Abney House
1 Collison Place
Manor Road
London

N16 [}

Page 102



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Re: Abney Chapel Premises Licence - Management Strategy
1 message

25 April 2023 at 12:33
o: "Licensing (Shared Mailbox)" <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

To whom it may concern
Objection to Abney Park Chapel Premises Licence

| am a local resident who lives overlooking Abney Park in Collison Place. Although | applaud the efforts and investment to restore
the chapel, and to create a revenue stream that might help to maintain it and the Park, | have serious concerns with the premises
licence as it currently stands. The application appears to lacking in key information and also has unreasonably late hours and
therefore regrettably | must object to the application until such time as shorter hours are put forward and more assurances can be
provided.

Primarily | have serious concerns that Abney Park’s designation as a Nature reserve does not appear to have been considered.
The application makes no reference to this special setting. Noise and disturbance could have a serious detrimental impact on
wildlife and particularly birdlife of which Abney is a crucial oasis in Central London. No events should be permitted until this impact
is fully understood and appropriate safeguards put in place. My other specific comments are as follows:

1. The hours of the licence to 23:59 and closing time of 00:30 — why are the hours applied for so late? This shows no
appreciation of Abney Park as one of the most tranquil places in central London. These ‘tone-deaf’ requested hours unfortunately
give the impression that the Council are putting commercial priorities in front of nature preservation.

2. The later the hours that are offered the more this will encourage excess drinking which would likely lead to increased public
nuisance. The Abney Park website refers to the following types of events envisaged within the restored chapel: “music
performances, poetry readings, community events...and wedding ceremonies”. All these events should be able to finish at 10pm.
Why risk the impact on the park wildlife and increase the potential for disturbance to nearby residents with later unnecessary
hours? If events require more time they can always start earlier. Even Clissold House would appear to have shorter hours of
operation (11pm on Sunday).

3. Late Night refreshment is stated as indoors (Part | of the application form) which makes sense as the events are also indoors.
Why then is the supply of alcohol requested both indoors and outdoors (Part J)? This doesn't make sense. The Council should
refuse the consumption of alcohol off the premises. This could encourage people who are under the influence of alcohol to roam
around the cemetery at night which could lead to vandalism, littering and public nuisance and increasing risk of crime. By way of
comparison it should be noted that within the Royal Parks small event organisers are not even permitted to provide alcohol as part
of an event.

4. ‘The building will undergo full risk assessments to ensure safe operation of the site’ (Part M (a) of the application form). Why is
this risk assessment not accompanying the application? Surely a master risk assessment and proposed mitigation should be put
forward that event organisers' own risk assessments then needs to conform with.

5. Has the London Fire Brigade commented on the application? The premises licence proposal may increase incidences of
people smoking and glasses and bottles being dropped around the park which, in our increasingly and hot summers, could
increase the risk of wildfires. No events should be permitted until this risk is satisfactorily addressed.

6. Confirmation that events after 4pm or anytime alcohol is served will have security is welcomed (Part M (a)). However, if the
licence is permitted, this security must be sufficient in quality and in terms of number of personnel. It is also welcomed that a
Council representative would be present at each event under the proposal.

7. Noise — if the premises licence is granted it must have the strictest sound controls. Other comparable park organisations have
volunteered their own noise restrictions. For example, Small Event Organisers in the Royal Parks are not permitted to disturb any
wildlife. In the Woodberry Wetlands the London Wildlife Trust has a strict 85db noise limit (measured indoors). It is disappointing
that the applicant has not volunteered a noise limit in order to protect the Abney wildlife. | would suggest that, if at such time a
premises licence were to be granted, an 80db level maximum indoor limit be conditioned, strictly maintained and observed. |
would also suggest that the Council create an approved list of suppliers of music (as per Woodberry Wetlands) to make sure this
requirement is taken seriously.

8. In the event that the Council grants the licence, | would also request that for a temporary period, say 12-18 months, noise
monitors are installed at appropriate locations near the chapel to monitor sound levels (a power feed should be readily available
from the chapel). The cost of the installation and monitoring could be spread and recovered from the event organisers. Monitoring
noise levels, with appropriate allowances made for outside-to-inside noise differential, will not only ensure permitted noise levels
are not exceeded (text alarms could be sent to Council Staff if events exceed the permitted levels) but would also provide useful
data to inform future event programming.

9. Crime — any introduction of people within the park under the cover of darkness poses an increased risk of crime and disorder.
The application form states that a ‘Dispersal policy will be produced’ — why is this not accompanying the application now? 1 find it
hard to see how the Council can grant a premises licence wIBage cﬂa@fg of how patrons will leave the premises is not clear?
Until such time as a dispersal policy is fully understood and agreed | feel that the premises licence could increase the risk of crime.



10. The application states that ‘clear restrictions will be in place with regards to operating the spaces, noise and management of
the event’ (Part M (d)). What are these restrictions? | am disappointed that they are not made abundantly clear in this application
particularly as this is one of the Borough’s most important nature reserves.

11. There should be a limit of one late night event per week (say anything taking place after 9pm) to avoid a concentration of
events. This would offer not only nearby residents respite but also the wildlife. If the purpose is to create a revenue stream to help
maintain the Chapel and the park then the requisite annual contribution should be made clear so that events do not become a
money-making tool to subsidise other Council services. The events should be the minimum required to provide this defined
contribution to ensure that the primary purpose of Abney Park remains as a nature reserve and park and not an event venue.

12. Please could the applicant explain what is meant by the ‘link to pavilions in abeyance’ annotation on the submitted drawing?

Although my concerns are quite extensive | would emphasise that | am supportive of the Chapel being brought back into beneficial
use. | have no doubt that if the appropriate controls and management are put in place, and the right events selected, the Chapel
would provide a magical setting for unique events which could be a real asset to the people of Hackney and beyond. However it is
disappointing to be presented with such little information with seemingly little to no consideration of the site’s special nature reserve
status.

| would recommend that the Licensing department ask the applicant to reconsider and amend its proposals to address these
concerns, and in particular to reduce the hours applied for to finish much earlier. Abney park is too important an asset to get this
wrong.

Yours faithfully

Page 104



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

C25
Objection to Licensing Application for Abney Park Chapel, N16 OLH

1 message

[ 25 April 2023 at 15:29
o: licensing@hackney.gov.u
Dear LBH,

| live in Collison Place and my house borders Abney Park Cemetery. As the crow flies | am around 200 metres from the Chapel. |
am immensely pleased that the Chapel is being renovated and will be a venue for cultural events and small gatherings. | applaud
the work of Abney Park Trust in maintaining the tranquility, history and fabric of the park. Consequently my objections are to the
terms of the license rather than to the principle because:

(1) It allows for the consumption of alcohol off the premises. Abney Park is a wild-life and conserved space. There is the risk that
people could take drinks into the park during licensing hours and disturb the environment. | am certain that the Trust would not
favour this as it would conflict with their objectives in preserving the nature and tranquility of the park.

(2) The proposed hours of licensing are everyday between 11.00 andt 23.59. A 23.59 limit is beyond that in comparable local
premises such as Clissold Park and the East Reservoir. | would urge you to reduce the limit to 22.00 and for the Chapel to be
vacated by 10.45. If hirers want to stay in the chapel beyond that time they should have to justify a further application for an
extension up to midnight. Also, | would urge you to reduce the number of permitted days in a week to five in order to provide
respite from the impact of events on the park.

(3) In the interests of conserving tranquility and not disrupting the wildlife, the sound limit for music etc. should be no more than
the 85db level stipulated by the London Wildlife Trust and observed by the Woodberry Wetlands.

(4) Currently, anyone entering the park during daylight hours can wander at will. | am assuming that this will not be possible when
the chapel operates as an evening venue. Are you satisfied that the licensee, and those responsible for the management of
events, will be able to operate measures that will prevent people wandering at will after the park's normal closing times. Failure to
do so represents a further risk to the wildlife and creates the possibility of unwelcome disturbance and crime in the cemetery .
Thank you for considering these points and | look forward to hearing the outcome.

Yours sincerely

Collison Place,
London N16 ]

Page 105



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Application Received under the Licensing Act 2003: Abney Chapel, Abney Park, 215 Stoke
Newington, High Street, London N16 OLH

1 message

[ — 25 Apr 2023 a1 2229
o: licensing@hackney.gov.u

Dear Sirs,
Further to the above Licensing application currently under review, please find below my comments.

Having read through the application, | have some concerns. In general | have no objection to Abney
Cemetery and Abney Chapel being used for local community activities. It is however a nature reserve and
cemetery. Any such activities must take the latter into account and not be detrimental to flora or wildlife, or
indeed to others walking in the cemetery or living on its boundaries. Given what will undoubtedly be a
continued pressure on the council’s budget, without very clear limits being placed on the nature and extent
of activities being licensed, | can see that Hackney Council may become very tempted to push the
boundaries in order to increase their income from entertainment in Abney Chapel. We have seen just
recently what has been happening at Finsbury Park, where Haringey Council are being accused of
prioritising the council’s commercial interests over the wellbeing of the park, its wildlife and the local
community. My comments therefore are directed towards ensuring this cannot happen in Abney
Cemetery.

1) Licensing hours — Licensing hours to 11:59, daily, is excessive. Any activities which include supply of
alcohol should stop at 10:00 pm. Those in attendance should leave by 10:30 pm. No single event should
be allowed to provide alcohol for a full 12 hours. | would expect a maximum to be set, perhaps of 3 hours
for any single event. When alcohol is involved, people become noisier, less inhibited and more difficult to
control. The chances of invitees staying within the confines of the chapel are minimal. With consequent
impact on the plants and trees around the cemetery, disturbing wildlife and residents who live all around
the boundary. Expecting security staff to be able to control this is only possible if you reduce the time in
which alcohol is available and ensure guests leave at a reasonable time.

2) Licensing days — Whereas | understand the council wishes to maintain flexibility in terms of days
available for such events, it is not appropriate to approve a licence on the basis that they could if they so
wish have events on every single day of the week, every week of the year. There should be a limit in
terms of the number of events in a year. Evening events, for example, every weekend would be excessive
and would be detrimental to the quiet enjoyment which is the right of residents who border the cemetery.

| am sure that The Wildlife Trust would be able to provide input with regard to the maximum number of
events which would be acceptable to safeguard wildlife within the cemetery.

3) The council have applied for a licence for 80 participants. Looking at the plans of the Chapel submitted
by the council, the Chapel itself appears to only have permission for 70 people, including security and
performers. If people are there for an event in the Chapel, any licence should be limited to the number of
attendees allowed within the Chapel as per the previously approved planning application for the Chapel.
There are no grounds for additional attendees if they are unable to get into the Chapel for the main event.
And no reason to allow provision of alcohol outdoors, given all the events for which this licence is being
requested take place inside the Chapel.

4) | see no agreement on limits for noise levels. These should be provided to your committee and should
be reviewed and be consistent with levels set by appropriate authorities, such as The Wildlife Trust for
noise levels. Similarly there is no detail regarding the security arrangements. These should be provided
to ensure sufficient and appropriately trained security staff will be supplied to control entry and exit of
participants and control their movement around the cemetery during the event.

5) Arrangements for ensuring that the site is C'@%f@é ?fd bbish, discarded food, and any damage to the
park is properly remediated after each event shoufd also be documented and provided to your committee
for review.



Regards,

! !ollison Place
anor Road

London N16 [}

Page 107



H Hackney Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

C27
Abney Park Chapel

1 message

— 25 Aprl 2023 a1 2326
o: licensing ackney.gov.u

| am writing to object to the licensing of entertainment and of alcohol sales at the Chapel 7 days per week and late at night. This
will lead to an increase in litter - cans, bottles, smoking paraphernalia etc left in Abney Park to the detriment of the Park both as an
amenity and as a nature reserve.

People need Abney Park to remain a place of sanctuary, away from the noise of everyday life in this densely populated urban area.
They go there for peace and quiet and the refreshment that nature alone can bring. That should be the default mode for Abney
Park. Whilst it might very occasionally acceptably be used for film shoots, it should not be turned into a theme park. Wildlife will
also be disturbed by an increase in noise and artificial lighting.

There are innumerable entertainment venues in the neighbourhood and no need for any more. Any licensing for special events
should be confined to Saturday and Sunday daytime and Friday and Saturday evening only, so that residents know they can rely
on being able to enjoy the Park for meditation and reflection on a daily basis - at least Monday to Friday.

| am also concerned about how the use of the Chapel as a place of entertainment might affect people visiting the cemetery for its
original function - which still continues.

It is shocking that news of this application has not been widely circulated as very many people would be likely to object if they knew
of it.

I Benthal Rd.,

N16
25/4/23

Page 108



1

House

b ¥
\ [ e [ o
) b ¥ e Te
) \ e Y 4 I R
p&_“" \ T\ (salvation Army) 7 4 i .-?- n' A
(e \ \© y & BT & 7|3
‘ gt = Sy T
. h i i 2 [ sy B o
ik ===
LY | EIF IR E={E
) 1l g E
100 — = i.ia S U _ =L _ m
—— e o S g’,’ = Y .
3 Clevedon Pgssaq
jRCH STRE ge
= — 9 ) —
58 €8 SL 1to 12 6v he
olle|o|o]lefe Hnog L oou LA R
S| penle e Hestimo) o ool o 2
5 L] b ol
@ OF 3
® N ° = g
= ® = S] Play Area °
o - 7] ® Y .
e : : o . '—'L‘. g William Patten ° °
B L Primary School °
P ° . . =
® o3 N | —o D: :Dn e o &
- 1

+
N
NI
N N
N A
L
L]
Hugh Gaitskell N
House
1\
+
HJ o3 -
q
z
° rEII: ]
s
5 e ;Uu i
S =
T
< =
4 LL.____I_ =
= -
= [_1—‘ [
=) @
S|
|
1t
Woodman |
Apartments
8
TCH
e
i

N
NORTH

Scale: 1:2000 at A4

& Hackney

Abney Chapel, Abney Park, 215 Stoke Newington High Street, N16 OLH

PrB@@: L]J%fied

please specify copyright statement

email:

Monday, July 04, 2023




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

&= Hackney

For Consideration By Licensing Sub-Committee

Meeting Date 13 July 2023

Type of Application Review of a premises licence

Address of Premises Simmons (Formerly The Viaduct),83 Rivington Street,
London, EC2A 3AY

Classification Decision

Ward(s) Affected Hoxton East and Shoreditch

Group Director Rickardo Hyatt

1. Summary

1.1. Application for the review of a premises licence on the basis of the
prevention of crime and disorder and public safety.

2. Application

2.1. PC Sian Giles, on behalf of Metropolitan Police Authority has applied for the
review of a premises licence under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 in
respect of the above premises.

2.2. The review application is attached as Appendix A.

3. Current Status/History

3.1. Simmons (Formerly The Viaduct) has been in possession of a premises
licence since 24" November 2006. The licence was transferred to Simmons
Waterloo Limited on 24™ March 2023 and the Designated Premises
Supervisor is Mr Suresh Gurung.

3.2. The premises "Simmons" formerly known as “The Viaduct" and before that
"Cargo". The premises licence was reviewed following the receipt of an
application by the Metropolitan Police dated 29th October 2021. The holder
of the licence appealed to Magistrates against the decision to revoke the
licence made by the Licensing Sub-Committee on 14th December 2021.
Following negotiation, which included revised and additional conditions and
reduced hours, the appeal was settled and agreed via a Consent Order.

3.3. The current premises licence is attached as Appendix B.

Page 111



3.4. Temporary event notices have been submitted over the past 12 months as
follows:
Date of the event(s) Hours
01/01/2023-01/01/2023 00:01-03:00
09/01/2023-10/01/2023 23:00-02:00
Representations: Responsible Authorities
From Details
Environmental Health Authority Have confirmed no representation on this
(Environmental Protection) application
Environmental Health Authority Have confirmed no representation on this
(Environmental Enforcement) application
Environmental Health Authority No representation received
(Health & Safety)
Weights and Measures No representation received
(Trading Standards)
Planning Authority No representation received
Area Child Protection Officer No representation received
Fire Authority No representation received
Police Not Applicable, see review application
Licensing Authority Representation received on the grounds of
(Appendix C) The Prevention of Public Nuisance
Health Authority No representation received
Representations: Other Persons
From Details
Representations in support of | Representation received on the grounds of
the review application received | The Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public
from and on behalf of local Safety, Prevention of Public Nuisance and
residents.(Appendices D1-D13) The Protection of Children from Harm.
Representations: Licensee (previous)
6.1. Representation from previous licence holder is attached as Appendix E.
7. Policy Considerations
7.1. Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to the London Borough

of Hackney’'s Statement of Licensing Policy (“the Policy) adopted by the

Licensing Authority.

Page 112




7.2.

8.1.

9.1.

10.

10.1.

11.

11.1.

12.

12.1.

12.2.

13.

13.1.

14.

14.1.

14.2.

The Policy applies to applications where relevant representations have been
made. With regard to this application, policies, LP1 (General Principles) and
LP2 (Licensing Objectives) are relevant.

Guidance Considerations

The Licensing Authority is required to have regard to any guidance
issued by the Secretary of State under the Licensing Act 2003.

Officer Observations

The applicant is seeking additional measures of the premises licence.

Reasons for Officer Observations

N/A

Legal Implications

A legal representative will be in attendance to advise members.

Legal Comments

The Council has a duty as a Licensing Authority under the Licensing Act
2003 to carry out its functions with a view to promoting the following

4 licensing objectives;

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

Public Safety

Prevention of Public Nuisance

The Protection of Children from Harm

It should be noted that each of the licensing objectives have equal
importance and are the only grounds upon which a relevant
representation can be made and for which an application can be refused
or terms and conditions attached to a licence.

Human Rights Act 1998 Implications

There are implications on Article 6, Article 8, Article 14 and the First Protocol
of Article 1.

Members Decision Making

Members must, having regard to the application and any relevant
representations, take such steps (if any) as it considers necessary
for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

The steps are:

A. Option 1
Take no action

Page 113



Option 2
Modify the conditions of the premises licence.

C. Option 3
Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the
premises licence.
D. Option 4
Remove the designated premises supervisor.
E. Option 5
Suspend the premises licence for a period not exceeding three
months.
F. Option 6
Revoke the licence.
15. Conclusion
15.1. That Members decide on the application for review of the premises licence

under the Licensing Act 2003.

Append

ices:

Appendix A: Application for the review of a premises licence and supporting

documents

Appendix B: Current Licence

Appendix C: Representation from responsible authorities
Appendix D: Representation from other persons
Appendix E: Representation from previous licence holder
Appendix F: Location map

Background documents

Licensin

g Act 2003

LBH Statement of Licensing Policy

Report Author Name: Shan Uthayasangar

Title: Licensing Officer
Email: shan.uthayasangar@hackney.gov.uk
Tel: 02083562431

prepared by

Comments for the Group Name
Director of Finance and Title
Corporate Resources Email

Tel

Page 114



Appendix A

PROTECTIVE MARKING

Form 691

Application for the Review of a Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate
under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that
your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I PC Sian Giles 229287

apply for the review of a premises licence under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003
for the premises described in Part 1 below

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or club premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description:
The Viaduct 83 Rivington Street
Post town: Hackney POSt el EC2A 3AY
(if known)
Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known):
Eden Garden Entertainment Ltd

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known):

LBH-PRE-0480

Part 2 — Applicant details

| am:
Please tick Yes
@ an individual, body or business which is not a responsible authority ]
(please read guidance note 1 and complete (A) or (B) below)
2 aresponsible authority (please complete (C) below) X
3 amember of the club to which this application relates (please complete section (A) below) []

Page 115



PROTECTIVE MARKING

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

Any other
Mr ] Mrs ] Miss ] Ms ] title (e.g. ]
Rev.)
Surname: First Names:
| am 18 years old or over ]

Current postal address if different from premises address:

Post town: Post code:
Daytime Email:
Tel. No.: (optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

Name and Address:

Telephone Number (if any):

Email address: (optional)

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Name and Address:

PC Sian Giles CE Licensing unit, Metropolitan Police. Shoreditch Police Station

Telephone Number (if any): ||| G

Email address: (optional) sian.giles@met.police.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes

1 The prevention of crime and disorder X
2 Public safety X
3  The prevention of public nuisance |:|
4  The protection of children from harm []

Please state the ground(s) for review: (please read guidance note 2)

please see attached documnetation for our evidence for the review application.

Page 116



PROTECTIVE MARKING

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application: (please read guidance note 3)

Please see attached.

Page 117




PROTECTIVE MARKING

Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before? M (Please tick yes)
Day Month Year

If yes, please state the date of that application: 1 6 0 9 2 0 2 1

If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state what they were and when you
made them:

Police requested a review of the premises Licenses for Cargo at 83 Rivington Street EC2A 3AY Licence numbers LBH-PRE-
0480 refers. The Metropolitan police has serious concerns that the following Licensing objectives are at risk.

The prevention of Crime and disorder
The prevention of Public Nuisance
Public safety .

A hearing was held on 14" December 2021 and a decision to revoke the premises licence was made by the committee.
This was then appealed and settled by means of a consent order.
The venue then reopened under its new business name of the Viaduct.

please see attached for further.

Page 118



PROTECTIVE MARKING

Please tick Yes |

| have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities and the premises =
licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate, as appropriate.

| understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my application will be rejected. X

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER
SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH
THIS APPLICATION.

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance note 5). If signing
on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature: - Date: 06/03/2023

Capacity: Police Officer

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with this
application: (please read guidance note 6)

Post town: Post code:

Telephone Number (if any):

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address, your e-mail address (optional):

Notes for Guidance

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other statutory bodies which
exercise specific functions in the local area.

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

3. Please list any additional information or details, for example dates of problems which are included in the
grounds for review if available.

4. The application form must be signed.

5. An applicant’s agent (for example, solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they have
actual authority to do so.

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Retention Period: 7 years
MP 321/12

Page 119



Appendices

1- Premises Licence for The Viaduct

2- Consent order

3- Opening party email chain

4- Email chain regarding 24th September 2022 assault

5- Email from Mr Khan titled The Viaduct, early engagement

6- Incident report of GBH 11" February 2023.

7- CCTV montage of the incident — this CCTV is the venues CCTV.
.

8- confirmation of SNOW radio call to The Viaduct

9- SIA log from 17" February 2023

10- SIA log from 11th Feb 2023

11- SIA log from 6th January

12- SIA log from 7th January

13- SIA log from 13th Jan

14- SIA log from 14™ Jan

15- SIA log from 20th Jan

16- SIA log from 21* Jan

17- SIA log from 27th Jan

18- SIA log from 28" Jan

19- SIA log from 3™ Feb

20- SIA log from 4" Feb

21- SIA log from 10" Feb

22- log of SIA numbers on duty Aug 22-Feb 23

23- email from Mr Khan.

Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Annex 1 - Mandatory Conditions
Supply Of Alcohol (On/Both)

1.

5.

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:

(a) At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises licence.

(b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended.

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a
person who holds a personal licence.

(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not

carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the
premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the
following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises -

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are
designed to require or encourage, individuals to;

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible
person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or (ii) drink as much alcohol as
possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage
or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less
in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or
in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone,
encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness
in any favourable manner.
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a
disability).

The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request
to customers where it is reasonably available.

5.1. The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure
that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to

the sales or supply of alcohol.

5.2 The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licences must

Page 125 Page 5 of 14



ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the
age verification policy.

5.3. The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be
under 18 years if age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce
on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date
of birth and either:-

A. a holographic mark or

B. an ultraviolet feature.

6. The responsible person shall ensure that:

a. where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance
ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the
following measures:

* beer or cider:1/2 pint;

* gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml; and

« still wine in a glass: 125ml; and

b. these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other
printed material which is available to customers on the
premises; and

c. where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to
be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

Minimum Drinks Pricing
7. 7.1 A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for
consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

7.2 For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 7.1 above -
(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic

Liquor Duties Act 1979;

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula - P =
D+(DxV) Where -

(i) P is the permitted price,

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged
on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(i) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added
tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of

the alcohol;

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence -

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of

Page 126 Page 6 of 14



alcohol under such a licence;

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which

there is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club
present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to
prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with

the Value Added Tax Act 1994.

7.3 Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 7.2(b) above would
(apart from this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price
given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by
that sub- paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

7.4 (1) Sub-paragraph 7.4(2) below applies where the permitted price

given by Paragraph 7.2(b) above on a day (“the first day”) would be different
from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a
change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or

supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days

beginning on the second day.

Exhibition Of Films

8. Admission of children (under 18) to the exhibition of any film must be restricted in

accordance with: -

(a) Recommendations made by the film classification body where the film

classification body is specified in the licence, or

(b) Recommendations made by the licensing authority where the film

classification body is not specified in the licence, or the relevant licensing
authority has not notified the holder of the licence that this subsection applies

to the film in question.

"film classification body" means person('s) designated under s4 of the Video

Recordings Act 1984(c.39).

Door Supervision

9. Each individual who is to carry out a security activity at the premises must be licensed

by the Security Industry Authority.

Page 127

Page 7 of 14



Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the
minimum requirements of a Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer.

All entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person
entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the
premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when customers remain
on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with
date and time stamping. Recordings shall be made available immediately upon the
request of Police or authorised officers throughout the preceding 31-day period.

A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of

the CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are
open to the public. This staff member must be able to show a Police or
authorised council officer recent data or footage when requested.

There shall be a SIA registered door supervisor employed at the premises every day
from 2100 hours at a ratio of 1:100. On Friday and Saturday a minimum of 5 door
supervisors shall be present from 2200 hours. Extra SIA will be considered continually
as part of an ongoing operational risk assessment. All door supervisors shall enter
their full details in the premises daily register at the commencement of their work.
They shall record their full name, home address and contact telephone number, their
SIA registration number, and the time they commence and conclude working. If the
door supervisor was provided by an agency the name, registered business address
and contact telephone number will also be recorded. This register will be made
available to police or authorised officers immediately upon request.

Door supervisors engaged in duties outside shall wear a high visibility vest or jacket
so that they are clearly identifiable.

(I) All persons entering the venue will be counted in and out by a member or members
of door staff using coordinated mechanical clicker devices, capable of identifying the
number of persons within the premises at any time. These will be supplied by the
venue.

(2) There shall be a risk assessment carried out for each day that the premises' are
to be open to the public. Such assessments shall identi the total numbers of persons
(including staffi performers and contractors), who can be safely accommodated on
the premises. La

(3) The person or persons responsible for monitoring entry to the premises shall be
notified in writing of the maximum number of admissions permitted.

Signs will be prominently displayed at all exit points reminding customers to leave
quietly and respect local residents.

The premises will have a venue man agreement policy, approved by the police
licensing officer and/or Crime prevention officer, detailing the following;

a. Entry and search policy

b. Drugs Policy, which shall include Hackney Police local Policy 2011 (or as amended)
c. Queuing and dispersal policy

d. Security Policy

e. Noise Policy

f. Smoking Policy

Page 128 Page 8 of 14



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

g. Alcohol Policy
h. Theft Reduction Policy, as per Hackney Police Local Policy 2011 (or as amended)

The premises shall operate an Identification Scanner which shall be used for all
customers entering the venue from 19:00 every day of the week.

All customers queuing to enter thé venue shall be monitored by SIA door staff to
ensure the queue is maintained in an orderly manner. A barrier system is to be used
so that any queue does not cause obstruction to the public highway. Any customers
found to be consuming alcohol or other intoxicating substances (such as Nitrous
Oxide) in the queue shall be refused entry to the premises.

A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the
only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic
identification cards, such as driving licence or passport.

An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an
authorised officer of the council or the police, which will record the following.

a. All crimes reported:

b. All ejections of patrons

c. Any complaints received.

d. Any incidents of disorder.

e. Seizure of drugs or offensive weapons.

f. Any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning equipment. Any
refusal of the sale of alcohol.

g. Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

Signs will be prominently displayed by entry and exit points reminding
customs:

a. CCTV in operation.

b. Drugs policy.

c. Weapons policy.

d. To leave quietly and respect local residents .

All staff shall receive training on the legislation relating to the sales of alcohol to
underage persons, drunken persons. the four licensing objectives and WAVE (Welfare
and Vulnerability Engagement). All staff shall have refresher training on these topics
every 12 months at least. tWritten records of such training shall be kept on the
premises and produced to a police officer or other authorised officer upon request.

The licensee shall be a member of local Pub watch scheme and SNOW (insert full
name) radio. The licensee or a representative.shall take all reasonable steps to
attend all meetings and maintain a record thereof. The licensee shall use his/her best
endeavours to ensure that all necessary communication equipment is in full working
order at all times the premises are open to the public.

Reasonable steps to be taken to ensure that an authorised person is a
member of Pubwatch and SNOW.

The pavement from the building line to the kerb edge immediately outside
the premises, including the gutter/channel at it's junction with the kerb edge,
shall be swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored
in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements.

Page 129 Page 9 of 14



26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

Patrons will not be allowed to take open containers outside of the premises at any
time.

The door at arch 3 shall be locked in an open position when arch 3 is in use.

The Licensee shall ensure that all staff are fully trained and made aware of the legal
requirement of businesses to comply with their duty of care as regards the disposal of
waste produced from the business premises. The procedure for handling and
preparing for disposal of the waste shall be in writing and displayed in a prominent
place where it can be referred to at all times by staff.

The Licensee shall ensure that any contract for general and recyclable waste disposal
shall be appropriate in size to the amount of waste produced by the business. The
Licensee shall maintain an adequate supply of waste receptacles provided by his
registered waste carrier (refuse sacks or commercial waste bins) in order to ensure all
refuse emanating from the business is always presented for collection by his waste
carrier and shall not use any plain black or unidentifiable refuse sacks or any other
unidentifiable or unmarked waste receptacles.

The Licensees premises are situated in an area within which refuse may only be left
on the public highway at certain times (time bands). If the Licensees waste carrier
cannot or does not comply by collecting the refuse within an hour after the close of
any time band imposed by the waste authority, the Licensee must remove the refuse
from the public highway and/or keep it within the premises until such time as his
waste carrier arrives to collect the refuse.

The Licensee shall provide a safe receptacle for cigarette ends t o be placed outside
for the use of customers, such receptacle being carefully placed so as not to cause an
obstruction or trip.

All amplified recorded and live music played within the premises, shall be
subject to the control of noise limiter so noise and vibration is inaudible in the
nearest noise sensitive premises between the hours of 23:00 and 07:00 on
any day and does not cause nuisance at all other times anytime.

The noise limiter should be kept in a secure, lockable cupboard or similar
location. The system is to be completely independent of control by persons
other than the Licensee.

Patrons of the premises shall be encouraged, by signs within the premises
visible at all exit points, to disperse from the area of the premises quietly.
Door supervisors shall also supervise persons leaving the premises after
entertainment has taken place and where necessary, request that persons
leaving the premises do so in an orderly manner as quickly as possible.

There shall be no off-sales of alcohol from the Premises.

Arch | shall operate as a restaurant, in which the sale of alcohol shall not be sold,
supplied, or consumed on the premises otherwise than to persons who are taking
substantial table meals and that the consumption of alcohol by such a person is
ancillary to taking such meals. The supply of alcohol shall be by waiter or waitress
service only.

Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages are to be available throughout the
Premises in all locations and at all times that alcohol is available for sale.

Page 130 Page 10 of 14



38. The maximum capacity of the Premises, not including staff and performers. is 550 (or
any lesser figure if indicated by the fire safety risk assessment, & copy of which shall
be served on the licensing authority)

39. When licensable activity is taking place in the premises on Thursday. Fridays and
Saturdays the venue shall deploy toilet attendants. to be stationed in both male and
female toilets between 21:00 hours and closing.

40. All of the SIA personnel employed by or contracted to tire venue shall be equipped
with a working and effective Body-worn Video Camera. The footage derived from
each such device shall be retained for a minimum of 31 days and provided upon
request to the Police or other authorised officers immediately, or with minimum delay
and in any event no later than 48 hours following such a request. All SIA personnel above.
are to be the Head Door Supervisor and Any Door Supervisor(s) stationed at the entrance
to the Premises.

41. From 21:00, the venue shall employ clearly identifiable members of staff to act as welfare
officers.

42. The venue shall employ | welfare officer for the first 200 customers at the venue. Thereafter
there shall be an additional welfare officer for each additional 200 customers (or part
thereof). Where there is more than one welfare officer at least 50% must be female,

43. Each welfare officer must be in a position to evidence their having undergone Welfare and
Vulnerability Engagement training prior to undertaking their appointed role.

44. No third-party DJ led promoted events shall take place at the Premises. For any other
promoted events. a risk assessment shall be carried out, this risk assessment will include
but not be limited to:

a. checks the venue has undertaken into any performing acts.

b. contacting venues where they have performed previously to see if there were any
adverse issues.

c. checking artists/promoters' social media to identify any potential issues.

d. The risk assessment shall also demonstrate any measures to be put place to mitigate any
identified risks, together with the rationale applied.

e. A copy of all risk assessments shall be retained on the premises for immediate inspection
by police or responsible authorities upon request.

45. No queue will be permitted outside the venue (as defined by the red line on the plan
attached to this Premises Licence) once the full capacity of the venue is reached.

46. Any queue that forms outside the venue (as defined by the red line on the plan attached to
this Premises Licence) once the venue has achieved the safe capacity identified for that day
will be immediately and safely dispersed by benue staff or SIA approved personnel or
contractors.

Page 131 Page 11 of 14



47. From 21:00, a designated member of staff shall monitor the CCTV system installed at the
premises whenever licensable activity is taking place and communicate with operational
staff and/or SIA approved personnel or contractors, as appropriate.

48. Prior to the premises providing licensable activities a dispersal policy for the premises
applicable to standard operating nights and promoted events shall be drawn up and agreed

with the police.

49. Amended plans of the premises to be attached to the premises licence, compliant with
regulations, are to be lodged with the council

Page 132 Page 12 of 14



Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
Not Applicable

Page 133 Page 13 of 14



Annex 4 - Plans
PLAN/LBH-PRE-T-0480/120608

Page 134 Page 14 of 14



Page 135



Page 136



1. Licensable hours are amended to:

Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Monday to Thursday - 10:00 to 23:00

Friday and Saturday — 10:00 to 00:00
Sunday - 12:00 to 22:30,

Regulated Entertainment
Monday to Thursday — 10:00 to 23:00

Friday and Saturday — 10:00 to 00:00
Sunday - 12:00 to 22:30

Late Night Refreshment
Friday and Saturday — 23:00 to 00:00

2. Opening Hours are amended to:
Monday to Thursday — 09:00 to 23:30

Friday and Saturday - 09:00 to 00:30
Sunday - 11:00 to 23:00

3. The following conditions are added to the premises licence:
i.  There shall be no off-sales of alcohol from the Premises.
ii.  Arch | shall operate as a restaurant, in which the sale of alcohol shall not be sold. supplied.
or consumed on the premises otherwise than to persons who are taking
substantial table meals and that the consumption of alcohol by such persons is

ancillary to taking such meals. The supply of alcohol shall be by waiter or waitress

service only.

Page 137



Page 138



xi.

xii,

Xiil.

Xiv,

b. contacting venues where they have performed previously to see if there
were any adverse issues.

c. checking artists/promoters’ social media to identify any potential issues.
d. The risk assessment shall also demonstrate any measures to be put place
to mitigate any identified risks, together with the rationale applied.

e. A copy of all risk assessments shall be retained on the premises for

immediate inspection by police or responsible authorities upon request.

No queue will be permitted outside the venue (as defined by the red line on the plan
attached to this Premises Licence) once the full capacity of the venue is reached.

Any queue that forms outside the venue (as defined by the red line on the plan
attached to this Premises Licence) once the venue has achieved the safe capacity
identified for that day will be immediately and safely dispersed by venue staff or

SIA approved personnel or contractors.

From 21:00, a designated member of staff shall monitor the CCTV system
installed at the premises whenever licensable activity is taking place and
communicate with operational staff and/or SIA approved personnel or

contractors, as appropriate.

Prior to the premises providing licensable activities a dispersal policy for the
premises applicable to standard operating nights and promoted events shall be

drawn up and agreed with the police.

4. The following amendments are made to the existing conditions on the premises

licence

Condition 14 to be amended to:

14(1) All persons entering the venue will be counted in and out by a member or
members of door staff using coordinated mechanical clicker devices, capable of
identifying the number of persons within the premises at any time. These will be

supplied by the venue.

Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



3- Opening party email chain

Subject: RE: Missed call catch up

.?

Sian.Giles@met.police.uk Thu, 15 Sept
2022, 13:58
to Rocky

You are viewing an attached message.

London Borough of Hackney Mail can't verify the authenticity of attached messages.

Hi Rocky,

Thank you for your email. Although | acknowledge your reasons why such notice wasn’t given and |
do not expect you to inform us of every event going forward. However | would have thought an event
of this nature — a launch party at a venue where the previous licence had been revoked would have
qualified for a courtesy email ensuring Police and the local authority were aware.

Nevertheless, looking ahead... we would of course welcome working in partnership with yourselves.
Many thanks

Sian

From: Rocky

Sent: 13 September 2022 10:17

To: Giles Sian - CE-CU <Sian.Giles@met.police.uk>

Subject: Re: Missed call catch up

Hi Sian,

Thank you for your email.

The event was an invitation only preview for marketing purposes and a thank-you for our own
redevelopment team. We invited bloggers and food critics to come and see the refurbished premises
and generate public interest in the new brand. To be clear, we had invited around 200 people to come
to the venue over a 4 hour period, to ensure they all got so see the results of our work. This meant we
had a peak occupancy of 77 “guests” (many of whom where our own staff) on the premises at any
one time, and by 10pm that was down to 43 guests, with the premises closed and empty by 10.30pm.
Whilst | thought such a closed-door event, not open to the public, would not be of interest to the
Police, | will certainly endeavour to share with you such marketing/blogging/tasting events moving
forward. It will likely be difficult to share every single one with you because we are hosting a lot of
limited number marketing events given the venue is brand new, and often these are agreed at short
notice when key influencers are available.

| am sorry you feel that we may have deliberately not informed you and that there may have been a
lack of transparency. We certainly did not try and hide this event from you and | feel this is evidenced
by Jane informing you when you passed by the premises at 3pm on Thursday. As | have said, we
didn’t tell you sooner as we did not think it would be of interest to the Police. It wasn’t a commercial
ticketed grand public launch party and was intended to see a fraction of our Licensed capacity figure
actually on site. | can assure you that | and the team are committed to working in partnership with the
Police and value your guidance very much.

Kind regards

Rocky

Sent from my iPad

On 12 Sep 2022, at 14:41, Sian.Giles@met.police.uk wrote:

Hi Rocky,

Yes | called after | learnt from Jane you were holding an opening party at The Viaduct on Thursday
night. | was surprised by this as it was agreed, and you offered, that no such event would take place.
You also assured us that we would been forewarned of any events at the location.

| acknowledge that you may have been working within your licence, however | would have
appreciated that you let me know that you had invited over 200 people, had a DJ and was holding a

Page 142



launch party. It leads me to question why | wasn'’t informed.

Going forward and in keeping with our working relationship which | had hoped would be transparent
and open please could | kindly request that you inform me of any such future events.

Many thanks
Sian

From: Rocky

Sent: 09 September 2022 19:23

To: Giles Sian - CE-CU <Sian.Giles@met.police.uk>
Subject: Missed call catch up

Hi Sian, Apologies | missed your call yesterday; was a bit manic my end.
Please let me know if there is anything you may require from me?

Kind regards,
Rocky

Sent from my iPhone

NOTICE - This email and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may be
confidential. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender and delete it from your
system. Do not use, copy or disclose the information contained in this email or in any attachment
without the permission of the sender. Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) communication systems are
monitored to the extent permitted by law and any email and/or attachments may be read by
monitoring staff. Only specified personnel are authorised to conclude binding agreements on behalf of
the MPS by email and no responsibility is accepted for unauthorised agreements reached with other
personnel. While reasonable precautions have been taken to ensure no viruses are present in this
email, its security and that of any attachments cannot be guaranteed.

Page 143



4-Email chain regarding 24th
September 2022 assault

Subject: RE: Assault inside Viaduct

?

Sian.Giles@met.police.uk Tue, 4
Oct
2022,
11:30
to jane

You are viewing an attached message.

London Borough of Hackney Mail can't verify the authenticity of attached messages.

Thanks Jane, link sent

From: Jane

Sent: 03 October 2022 14:23

To: Giles Sian - CE-CU <Sian.Giles@met.police.uk>

Subject: Re: Assault inside Viaduct

Hello,

Yes, | have the footage for arch 3, can you send me a download link please and | will put this on for
you.

Thanks,

Jane

From: Sian.Giles@met.police.uk <Sian.Giles@met.police.uk>
Sent: 03 October 2022 11:34

To: Jane I

Subject: RE: Assault inside Viaduct

Hi Jane,

Thank you for this and the footage.

Do you have coverage from the camera inside Arch 3 on the incident please?
Many thanks

Sian

From: Jane I >

Sent: 30 September 2022 16:41

To: Giles Sian - CE-CU <Sian.Giles@met.police.uk>
Cc: Rocky [

Subject: Re: Assault inside Viaduct

Hello,
Please see attached as requested.
Regards,

Jane

Page 144



From: Sian.Giles@met.police.uk <Sian.Giles@met.police.uk>
Sent: 30 September 2022 09:00

To: Jane I

Subject: RE: Assault inside Viaduct

Hi Jane,

Thank you for this information.

Please may | request CCTV of the incident and the incident log.
| will send you a link now for the CCTV to be uploaded.

Many thanks

Sian

From: Jane

Sent: 29 September 2022 20:39

To: Giles Sian - CE-CU <Sian.Giles@met.police.uk>
Cc: Rocky

Subject: Re: Assault inside Viaduct

Dear Sian

Thank you for your email. | am aware of an altercation that took place between 2 IC1 males who were
friends of each other inside The Viaduct at 21:38 on Saturday 24th September 2022. They were part
of a group of 9 (4 IC1 females and 5 IC1 males). The group entered the premises at 20:25 and took a
table in arch 3. At 21:37 the 2 males | 10/06/20 - “victim” and
15/02/99 - “aggressor”) leave arch 3 to enter arch 2 where they are having a discussion which
becomes heated and |l 'ashes out. Security are immediately on the scene to attend to both
males. Pinnacle Operations and SBG Operations attended the scene and called for the medics using
the SNOW radio. The injured male claimed he had fallen and did not want to escalate the incident. At
21:43 Hackney Enforcement arrived to assess what had happened. At 21:48 both males involved in
the altercation left together with a female friend and made their way to Shoreditch High Street.

If there is anything further you may require please don’t hesitate to ask.
Regards,
Jane

On 29 Sep 2022, at 09:45, Sian.Giles@met.police.uk wrote:

Dear Jane and Rocky,

There has been a report of an assault inside The Viaduct at the weekend. Are you aware of this?
Many thanks

Sian

<image001.png> | PC Sian Giles

<image002.jpg> | Licensing Officer

Page 145



Central East BCU (Hackney & Tower Hamlets)
Metropolitan Police Service

07796 183078

Stoke Newington Police Station

www.met.police.uk

sian.giles@met.police.uk

Committed to policing excellence and making Central East safer for all, by improving quality of life and
reducing crime.

<image003.png>
Unless otherwise stated this email is GSC Code — Official

NOTICE - This email and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may be
confidential. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender and delete it from your
system. Do not use, copy or disclose the information contained in this email or in any attachment
without the permission of the sender. Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) communication systems are
monitored to the extent permitted by law and any email and/or attachments may be read by
monitoring staff. Only specified personnel are authorised to conclude binding agreements on behalf of
the MPS by email and no responsibility is accepted for unauthorised agreements reached with other
personnel. While reasonable precautions have been taken to ensure no viruses are present in this
email, its security and that of any attachments cannot be guaranteed.

NOTICE - This email and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may be
confidential. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender and delete it from your
system. Do not use, copy or disclose the information contained in this email or in any attachment
without the permission of the sender. Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) communication systems are
monitored to the extent permitted by law and any email and/or attachments may be read by
monitoring staff. Only specified personnel are authorised to conclude binding agreements on behalf of
the MPS by email and no responsibility is accepted for unauthorised agreements reached with other
personnel. While reasonable precautions have been taken to ensure no viruses are present in this
email, its security and that of any attachments cannot be guaranteed.

NOTICE - This email and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may be
confidential. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender and delete it from your
system. Do not use, copy or disclose the information contained in this email or in any attachment
without the permission of the sender. Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) communication systems are
monitored to the extent permitted by law and any email and/or attachments may be read by
monitoring staff. Only specified personnel are authorised to conclude binding agreements on behalf of
the MPS by email and no responsibility is accepted for unauthorised agreements reached with other
personnel. While reasonable precautions have been taken to ensure no viruses are present in this
email, its security and that of any attachments cannot be guaranteed.

Page 146



5-Email from Mr Khan titled
The Viaduct, early engagement

Subject: The Viaduct; Early Engagement

.?

I Fri, 20
Jan,
08:43

to Sian.Giles

You are viewing an attached message.

London Borough of Hackney Mail can't verify the authenticity of attached messages.

Dear Sian,

Thank you and Mike very much for your time yesterday. It is very helpful to commence early
engagement prior to any License application being put together for The Viaduct. It is my absolute
priority to ensure all concerns and risks identified by police are allayed in any application we may
eventually submit. | am incredibly proud of our working partnership over the last years. | know it has
been instrumental in the development of The Viaduct as a venue which upholds the licensing
objectives and offers a facility to both our community and visitors to Shoreditch- thank you very much
for all your time and guidance in this regard. | look forward to continuing this invaluable partnership-
working deep into the future.

| note that Police would submit representations against any license application. Notwithstanding this, |
appreciate the opportunity to continue with our early engagement in order to ensure any license
application allays police concerns and encompasses key operational procedures which would uphold
licensing objectives robustly.

| was very pleased to hear that there aren’t any crimes recorded at the premises since its opening and
| am pleased to say that we are slowly but surely building up a client base which | am confident will
grow and help the premises flourish. However there are some key areas of the current premises
license which, if varied, would greatly assist viability of the premises whilst not compromising the
licensing objectives.

When | initially presented plans for the creation of The Viaduct, over a year ago, we had discussed
that later hours of opening could be considered once the premises had opened and traded in line with
licensing objectives for a period of 6 months.

We will continue to submit some TENs applications for the premises and would appreciate your
consideration of these alongside the respective risk assessments we shall submit.

We also discussed the opportunity to meet with Superintendent Andy Port and Chief Inspector Lucky
Singh; | would like to thank them for the partnership working which | have found invaluable over the
last year and would be keen to attain their feedback on The Viaduct. From our very early discussions
to now, | believe we have delivered on all commitments that were made for The Viaduct and are
proud to have got to this stage through our efforts and partnership-working.

I look forward to continuing with our early engagement. It is our priority to ensure any license
application is supported by the police, if at all possible.

Kind regards

Rocky

Sent from my iPad

Page 147



Helpline

6-Incident report of GBH
11th February 2023

Accident, Incident or Near Miss

Data Protection Notice: Ensure the individual is aware that personal information is
collected in the Helpline for the purposes of monitoring and managing incidents,
restricted to Helpline users who have a legitimate basis to access it. Shield Safety
Group Limited are the providers of this service & will not share your personal
information with third parties unless compelled by law.

Status

Opened by

Date created

Updated by

Last updated

Status

Page 148

Open

Jane Griffits

12/02/2023 01:39

Jane Griffits

12/02/2023 01:40



General details

Location The Viaduct
Your reference N/A
Date and Time of incident 11/02/2023 23:00
Notified by In Person

Describe what happened

Two IC1 males were at the bar in the tap room stood drinking, a third IC1 male who was with a
mixed group sat outside comes to the bar beside them to get a drink. There is a conversation
between the three. As the third male leave the bar with his drink one of the initial two males
follows and is physically violent towards him. Two other males in the victims group step in are
violent back. Security intervenes to de-escalate and separate the parties. The initial aggressor
is held while police are called on the snow radio. all parties are held and kept separate until
police arrive. Medics are called to give assistance to the victim.

Page 149



Subject: Viaduct

.7

samantha.mathys@hackney.gov.uk

to channing.riviere, david.tuitt, karen.law, Sian.Giles

You are viewing an attached message.

8-confirmation of SNOW radio
call to The Viaduct

Fri, 24 Feb,
15:58 (10
days ago)

London Borough of Hackney Mail can't verify the authenticity of attached messages.

Hello,

Regarding the Viaduct call, there is nothing on the logs from them regarding the last assault. The only

calls coming into control from that time were Rochester and EO10.

We are confident that no attempt was made.

Sam Mathys

Late Night Levy Manager / Hackney Nights
Community Safety, Business Regulation & Enforcement

Climate, Homes and Economy

London Borough Hackney
Hackney Service Centre

1 Hillman Street

London

E8 1DY

(M) 07783 871 716

Samantha Mathys

Late Night Levy Manager
London Borough Hackney
Hackney Service Centre

1 Hillman Street

London

E8 1DY

(T) 07513 845 764

Disclaimers apply, for full details see: https://hackney.gov.uk/email-disclaimer

Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



22- log of SIA numbers on duty Aug 22-Feb 23

DATE NUMBER OF SIA ON DUTY

18/08/2022
19/08/2022
20/08/2022
26/08/2022
27/08/2022
02/09/2022
16/09/2022
24/09/2022
19/11/2022
24/11/2022
december missing
06/01/2023
07/01/2023
13/01/2023
14/01/2023
20/01/2023
21/01/2023
27/01/2023
28/01/2023
03/02/2023
04/02/2023
10/02/2023
11/02/2023
17/02/2023
24/02/2023

assault takes place

P NEFR, NMNNDDOO D

date blank in book. Night of assault

DO R PR R RRRRRRRR

Page 164



23- email from Mr Khan

Subject: Re: Incident at The Viaduct 11/2/23

.?

. Thu, 2 Mar,
19:52 (4 days
ago)

to Sian.Giles, jane

You are viewing an attached message.

London Borough of Hackney Mail can't verify the authenticity of attached messages.
Hi Sian,

Please see below a short timeline of the incident:

22:55:01 — 3 Males at bar. 2 in a pair (buff coat and check shirt) and 1 on own (glasses with short
hair and beard).

22:56:14 — Buff Coat and Glasses speak as Glasses leaves the bar. Glasses makes gesture to Buff
Coat and grabs own crotch. Buff Coat takes off coat and proceeds after Glasses for 2 to 3 steps then
is stopped by Check Shirt.

22:57:57 — Male with beard and glasses returns to bar and immediately becomes aggressive. Male in
buff coat takes off coat. Friends on both sides intervene.

22:58:43 — Glasses leaves bar area with coat belonging to Buff Coat.

22:59:13 — Glasses is struck by Buff Coat.

22:59:24 — Buff Coat pushed/hit ends up on floor. White Jacket (friend of Glasses) kicks Buff Coat.
22:59:58 — White Jacket strikes Buff Coat. Security on scene. White Coat continues to be
aggressive. Strikes Check Shirt. Black T-Shirt (with White Jacket) also strikes at Check Shirt.
23:00:54 — Additional Security on scene. Parties separated.

23:02:02 — Altercation as White Jacket has evaded security and strikes at Buff Coat. DPS also on
scene attempting to separate parties.

23:02:55 — Male in all black seen de-escalating White Jacket.

23:04:02 — White Jacket leaves bar area

23:08:28 — White Jacket back and remonstrating with Buff Coat.

23:09:33 — White Jacket pushed back by 2 security.

23:12:53 — Police on scene.

During the incident we had 1 SIA Door Supervisor on site and a response team connected to the on-
site SIA Door Supervisor via a radio system. From the moment the assault occurred at 22:59:13,
additional SIA were onsite within 1 minute and 43 seconds. In total 6 SIA responded to the situation
and both victim and suspect were detained, and Police informed and brought to the premises. At the
time of the incident there were 27 customers within the premises. The initial altercation occurred
directly between 2 people, with a total of 3 of their friends then becoming involved.

The SIA on site I 2"d the team that responded, should have dealt with the situation
better. We are disappointed with the response, communication, and effective management of the
situation. We have taken this up directly with the Director of Pinnacle Security and are attaining
commitments that SIA standards will be improved. Our management do have radios.

Thursday 9™ March 2023 for a meeting at Stoke Newington Police Station works well. Please let me
know what time you would like for me to attend.

Kind regards,
Rocky

Sent from my iPhone

Page 165



On 28 Feb 2023, at 13:24, Sian.Giles@met.police.uk wrote:

Dear Rocky,

Unfortunately i cannot meet on the 8™ what availability do you have for that week and we can try to
suit a date/time that suits all?

Again- can one of you respond to my enquiries below?

Many thanks
Sian

From: Rocky [ >

Sent: 28 February 2023 13:12

To: Giles Sian - CE-CU <Sian.Giles@met.police.uk>
Ce: Jane I

Subject: Re: Incident at The Viaduct 11/2/23

Dear Sian,

Could we please meet at the police station on Wednesday 8th March? Anytime that maybe most
convenient your side.

Kind regards,
Rocky

Sent from my iPhone

On 26 Feb 2023, at 02:18, Sian.Giles@met.police.uk wrote:

Dear Rocky and Jane,
Can one of you respond to my enquiries below?

Many thanks
Sian

From: Giles Sian - CE-CU

Sent: 21 February 2023 07:13

To: Rocky I

Ce: Jane I

Subject: RE: Incident at The Viaduct 11/2/23

Hi Rocky,

Are you able to meet on 6™ March at Stoke Newington Police Station?

Can i ask if you have watched the footage? if you haven'’t then i suggest you do. From it you will see
how the incident log does not capture the incident in its entirety. | know there was only one SIA on
duty at the time, a breach of your licence. This one SIA struggled to contain large scale disorder
within your venue. Do your staff have radios to communicate with the SIA? If they do why weren’t
they used? Why was only one SIA on duty?

Many thanks
Sian

Page 166



From: Rocky

Sent: 17 February 2023 10:24

To: Giles Sian - CE-CU <Sian.Giles@met.police.uk>
Ce: Jane I

Subject: Re: Incident at The Viaduct 11/2/23

Dear Sian,

Apologies for the delay in response. | have had some unavoidable commitments and | am away until
2 March as is Jane next week. Would it be possible to organise the meeting for 3 March onwards?

It would be helpful, at this stage, if you could kindly share what the number of failings are and any
shortcomings in the incident log. We can certainly get to work on these asap.

Kind regards,
Rocky

Sent from my iPhone

On 15 Feb 2023, at 17:30, Sian.Giles@met.police.uk wrote:

Dear Rocky,
| have read the incident log and watched the CCTV.

| suggest a meeting is needed next week, the incident log is insufficient and does not capture the true
extent of the incident. There are a number of failings here which i would like to speak to you about. |
would also like to speak to Jane and the SIA on duty at the time.

Can i propose a meeting at Stoke Newington Police Station on Monday at 1400.

Many thanks
Sian

From: Rocky

Sent: 13 February 2023 17:56

To: Giles Sian - CE-CU <Sian.Giles@met.police.uk>
Ce: Jane I

Subject: Re: Incident at The Viaduct 11/2/23

Hi Sian,
Please find incident report attached. The CCTV footage has also been uploaded.

Kind regards
Rocky

Sent from my iPhone

On 13 Feb 2023, at 09:29, Sian.Giles@met.police.uk wrote:

Dear all,

Please may i request an incident log and CCTV for the incident which occurred on 112 Males
fighting.

Page 167



Many thanks

PC Sian Giles
Licensing Officer
Central East BCU (Hackney & Tower Hamlets)
Metropolitan Police Service
07887332604
Stoke Newington Police Station
www.met.police.uk
sian.qgiles@met.police.uk

Committed to policing excellence and making Central East safer for all, by
improving quality of life and reducing crime.

Unless otherwise stated this email is GSC Code — Official

NOTICE - This email and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may be
confidential. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender and delete it from your
system. Do not use, copy or disclose the information contained in this email or in any attachment
without the permission of the sender. Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) communication systems are
monitored to the extent permitted by law and any email and/or attachments may be read by
monitoring staff. Only specified personnel are authorised to conclude binding agreements on behalf of
the MPS by email and no responsibility is accepted for unauthorised agreements reached with other
personnel. While reasonable precautions have been taken to ensure no viruses are present in this
email, its security and that of any attachments cannot be guaranteed.

NOTICE - This email and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may be
confidential. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender and delete it from your
system. Do not use, copy or disclose the information contained in this email or in any attachment
without the permission of the sender. Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) communication systems are
monitored to the extent permitted by law and any email and/or attachments may be read by
monitoring staff. Only specified personnel are authorised to conclude binding agreements on behalf of
the MPS by email and no responsibility is accepted for unauthorised agreements reached with other
personnel. While reasonable precautions have been taken to ensure no viruses are present in this
email, its security and that of any attachments cannot be guaranteed.

NOTICE - This email and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may be
confidential. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender and delete it from your
system. Do not use, copy or disclose the information contained in this email or in any attachment
without the permission of the sender. Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) communication systems are
monitored to the extent permitted by law and any email and/or attachments may be read by
monitoring staff. Only specified personnel are authorised to conclude binding agreements on behalf of
the MPS by email and no responsibility is accepted for unauthorised agreements reached with other
personnel. While reasonable precautions have been taken to ensure no viruses are present in this
email, its security and that of any attachments cannot be guaranteed.

NOTICE - This email and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may be
confidential. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender and delete it from your
system. Do not use, copy or disclose the information contained in this email or in any attachment
without the permission of the sender. Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) communication systems are
monitored to the extent permitted by law and any email and/or attachments may be read by
monitoring staff. Only specified personnel are authorised to conclude binding agreements on behalf of
the MPS by email and no responsibility is accepted for unauthorised agreements reached with other
personnel. While reasonable precautions have been taken to ensure no viruses are present in this
email, its security and that of any attachments cannot be guaranteed.

Page 168



APPENDIX B

This premises licence has been issued by:
Licensing Service
1 Hillman Street
London E8 1DY

PART A - PREMISES LICENCE
Premises Licence Number
LBH-PRE-T-0480

Part 1 — Premises details

Simmons (Formerly The Viaduct)
The Arches

83 Rivington Street

Hackney

London

EC2A 3AY

Where the licence is time limited the dates
Not Applicable
Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Films

Live Music

Recorded Music

Performance of Dance

Other Entertainment Similar to Live or Rec Music or Dance Performance
Late Night Refreshment

Supply of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of Licensable activities
Films Standard Hours:

Mon 10:00-23:00
Tue 10:00-23:00
Wed 10:00-23:00
Thur 10:00-23:00
Fri 10:00-00:00
Sat 10:00-00:00
Sun 12:00-22:30

Live Music Standard Hours:
Mon 10:00-23:00
Tue 10:00-23:00

Page 169 Page 1 of 14




Wed 10:00-23:00
Thur 10:00-23:00
Fri  10:00-00:00
Sat 10:00-00:00
Sun 12:00-22:30

Recorded Music

Standard Hours:

Mon 10:00-23:00
Tue 10:00-23:00
Wed 10:00-23:00
Thur 10:00-23:00
Fri  10:00-00:00
Sat 10:00-00:00
Sun 12:00-22:30

Performance of
Dance

Standard Hours:

Mon 10:00-23:00
Tue 10:00-23:00
Wed 10:00-23:00
Thur 10:00-23:00
Fri  10:00-00:00
Sat 10:00-00:00
Sun 12:00-22:30

Anything of
Similar
Description

Standard Hours:

Mon 10:00-23:00
Tue 10:00-23:00
Wed 10:00-23:00
Thur 10:00-23:00
Fri  10:00-00:00
Sat 10:00-00:00
Sun 12:00-22:30

Late Night
Refreshment

Standard Hours:

Fri 23:00-00:00
Sat 23:00-00:00

Supply of Alcohol

Standard Hours:

Mon 10:00-23:00
Tue 10:00-23:00
Wed 10:00-23:00
Thur 10:00-23:00
Fri  10:00-00:00
Sat 10:00-00:00
Sun 12:00-22:30

Page 170

Page 2 of 14



The opening hours | Standard Hours:
of the premises
Mon 09:00-23:30
Tue 09:00-23:30
Wed 09:00-23:30
Thur 09:00-23:30
Fri  09:00-00:30
Sat 09:00-00:30
Sun 11:00-23:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or
off supplies

On Premises

Page 171 Page 3 of 14



Part 2 -

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and e-mail (where relevant) of
holder of premises licence

Simmons Waterloo Limited

3" Floor, 120 Charing Cross Road
London

WC2H 0JR

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number
(where applicable)

14298581

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor
where the premises authorises the supply of alcohol

Suresh Gurung

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the
supply of alcohol

Licence No: I
Issuing Authority: I

Date of Grant: 24 November 2006

Gerry McCarthy
Head of Community Safety, Enforcement and Business Regulation

Document re-issued: 10 May 2023

Page 172 Page 4 of 14



Annex 1 - Mandatory Conditions

Supply of Alcohol (On/Both)

1.

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:

(a) At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect
of the premises licence.

(b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended.

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not
carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to
the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of
the following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the
purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the
premises -

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to
require or encourage, individuals to;

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which
the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(i) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or
otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed
or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular
characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a
licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to
encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period
of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining
a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or
flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be
considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to
refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner.

dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other
than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by
reason of a disability).

5. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on

Page 173 Page 5 of 14



request to customers where it is reasonably available.

6. 5.1. The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must
ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in
relation to the sales or supply of alcohol.

5.2 The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licences
must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in
accordance with the age verification policy.
5.3. The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person
to be under 18 years if age (or such older age as may be specified in the
policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification
bearing their photograph, date of birth and either:-

A. a holographic mark or

B. an ultraviolet feature.

7. The responsible person shall ensure that:
a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for
consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied
having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed
container) it is available to customers in the following measures:
* beer or cider:1/2 pint;
* gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml; and
» still wine in a glass: 125ml; and
a. these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed
material which is available to customers on the premises; and
b. where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the
quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these
measures are available.

Minimum Drinks Pricing

7.1 A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for
consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted
price.

7.2 For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 7.1 above -

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties
Act 1979;

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula - P = D+(DxV)
Where -

()P is the permitted price,

(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty
were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(c)V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if
the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the
alcohol;

(d)“relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there
is in force a premises licence -

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol
under such a licence;

Page 174 Page 6 of 14



(e) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there
is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club
present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to
prevent the supply in question; and

(f) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the
Value Added Tax Act 1994.

7.3 Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8.2(b) above would (apart
from this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by
that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-
paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

7.4 (1) Sub-paragraph 7.4(2) below applies where the permitted price given
by Paragraph 7.2(b) above on a day (“the first day”) would be different from
the permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change
to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days
beginning on the second day.

Exhibition of Films

8. Admission of children (under 18) to the exhibition of any film must be restricted in
accordance with: -

(a) Recommendations made by the film classification body where the film
classification body is specified in the licence, or

(b) Recommendations made by the licensing authority where the film
classification body is not specified in the licence, or the relevant licensing
authority has not notified the holder of the licence that this subsection
applies to the film in question.

"film classification body" means person('s) designated under s4 of the Video
Recordings Act 1984 (c.39).

Door Supervision

9. Each individual who is to carry out a security activity at the premises must be
licensed by the Security Industry Authority.

Page 175 Page 7 of 14



Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the
minimum requirements of a Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer. All entry
and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person
entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the
premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when customers
remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31
days with date and time stamping. Recordings shall be made available
immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officers throughout the
preceding 31-day period.

A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the
CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open to
the public. This staff member must be able to show a Police or authorised council
officer recent data or footage when requested.

There shall be a SIA registered door supervisor employed at the premises every
day from 2100 hours at a ratio of 1:100. On Friday and Saturday a minimum of 5
door supervisors shall be present from 2200 hours. Extra SIA will be considered
continually as part of an ongoing operational risk assessment. All door supervisors
shall enter their full details in the premises daily register at the commencement of
their work. They shall record their full name, home address and contact telephone
number, their SIA registration number, and the time they commence and conclude
working. If the door supervisor was provided by an agency the name, registered
business address and contact telephone number will also be recorded. This
register will be made available to police or authorised officers immediately upon
request.

Door supervisors engaged in duties outside shall wear a high visibility vest or
jacket so that they are clearly identifiable.

(I) All persons entering the venue will be counted in and out by a member or
members of door staff using coordinated mechanical clicker devices, capable of
identifying the number of persons within the premises at any time. These will be
supplied by the venue.

(2) There shall be a risk assessment carried out for each day that the premises'
are to be open to the public. Such assessments shall identi the total numbers of
persons (including staffi performers and contractors), who can be safely
accommodated on the premises.

(3) The person or persons responsible for monitoring entry to the premises shall
be notified in writing of the maximum number of admissions permitted.

Signs will be prominently displayed at all exit points reminding customers to leave
quietly and respect local residents.

The premises will have a venue man agreement policy, approved by the police
licensing officer and/or Crime prevention officer, detailing the following;

a. Entry and search policy

b. Drugs Policy, which shall include Hackney Police local Policy 2011 (or as
amended)

c. Queuing and dispersal policy

Page 176 Page 8 of 14



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

d. Security Policy

e. Noise Policy

f. Smoking Policy

g. Alcohol Policy

h. Theft Reduction Policy, as per Hackney Police Local Policy 2011 (or as
amended)

The premises shall operate an Identification Scanner which shall be used for all
customers entering the venue from 19:00 every day of the week.

All customers queuing to enter thé venue shall be monitored by SIA door staff to
ensure the queue is maintained in an orderly manner. A barrier system is to be
used so that any queue does not cause obstruction to the public highway. Any
customers found to be consuming alcohol or other intoxicating substances (such
as Nitrous Oxide) in the queue shall be refused entry to the premises.

A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the
only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification
cards, such as driving licence or passport.

An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an
authorised officer of the council or the police, which will record the following.

a. All crimes reported:

b. All ejections of patrons

c. Any complaints received.

d. Any incidents of disorder.

e. Seizure of drugs or offensive weapons.

f. Any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning equipment.
Any refusal of the sale of alcohol.

g. Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

Signs will be prominently displayed by entry and exit points reminding customs:
a. CCTV in operation.

b. Drugs policy.

c. Weapons policy.

d. To leave quietly and respect local residents.

All staff shall receive training on the legislation relating to the sales of alcohol to
underage persons, drunken persons. the four licensing objectives and WAVE
(Welfare and Vulnerability Engagement). All staff shall have refresher training on
these topics every 12 months at least. tWritten records of such training shall be
kept on the premises and produced to a police officer or other authorised officer
upon request.

The licensee shall be a member of local Pub watch scheme and SNOW (insert full
name) radio. The licensee or a representative.shall take all reasonable steps to
attend all meetings and maintain a record thereof. The licensee shall use his/her
best endeavours to ensure that all necessary communication equipment is in full
working order at all times the premises are open to the public.

Reasonable steps to be taken to ensure that an authorised person is a member of
Pubwatch and SNOW.

Page 177 Page 9 of 14



25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

The pavement from the building line to the kerb edge immediately outside the
premises, including the gutter/channel at it’s junction with the kerb edge, shall be
swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance
with the approved refuse storage arrangements.

Patrons will not be allowed to take open containers outside of the premises at any
time.

The door at arch 3 shall be locked in an open position when arch 3 is in use.

The Licensee shall ensure that all staff are fully trained and made aware of the
legal requirement of businesses to comply with their duty of care as regards the
disposal of waste produced from the business premises. The procedure for
handling and preparing for disposal of the waste shall be in writing and displayed
in a prominent place where it can be referred to at all times by staff.

The Licensee shall ensure that any contract for general and recyclable waste
disposal shall be appropriate in size to the amount of waste produced by the
business. The Licensee shall maintain an adequate supply of waste receptacles
provided by his registered waste carrier (refuse sacks or commercial waste bins)
in order to ensure all refuse emanating from the business is always presented for
collection by his waste carrier and shall not use any plain black or unidentifiable
refuse sacks or any other unidentifiable or unmarked waste receptacles.

The Licensees premises are situated in an area within which refuse may only be
left on the public highway at certain times (time bands). If the Licensees waste
carrier cannot or does not comply by collecting the refuse within an hour after the
close of any time band imposed by the waste authority, the Licensee must remove
the refuse from the public highway and/or keep it within the premises until such
time as his waste carrier arrives to collect the refuse.

The Licensee shall provide a safe receptacle for cigarette ends t o be placed
outside for the use of customers, such receptacle being carefully placed so as not
to cause an obstruction or trip.

All amplified recorded and live music played within the premises, shall be subject
to the control of noise limiter so noise and vibration is inaudible in the nearest
noise sensitive premises between the hours of 23:00 and 07:00 on any day and
does not cause nuisance at all other times anytime.

The noise limiter should be kept in a secure, lockable cupboard or similar location.
The system is to be completely independent of control by persons other than the
Licensee.

Patrons of the premises shall be encouraged, by signs within the premises visible
at all exit points, to disperse from the area of the premises quietly. Door
supervisors shall also supervise persons leaving the premises after entertainment
has taken place and where necessary, request that persons leaving the premises
do so in an orderly manner as quickly as possible.

There shall be no off-sales of alcohol from the Premises.
Page 178 Page 10 of 14



36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

45.

Arch | shall operate as a restaurant, in which the sale of alcohol shall not be sold,
supplied, or consumed on the premises otherwise than to persons who are taking
substantial table meals and that the consumption of alcohol by such a person is
ancillary to taking such meals. The supply of alcohol shall be by waiter or waitress
service only.

Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages are to be available throughout the
Premises in all locations and at all times that alcohol is available for sale.

The maximum capacity of the Premises, not including staff and performers. is 550
(or any lesser figure if indicated by the fire safety risk assessment, & copy of which
shall be served on the licensing authority).

When licensable activity is taking place in the premises on Thursday. Fridays and
Saturdays the venue shall deploy toilet attendants. to be stationed in both male
and female toilets between 21:00 hours and closing.

All of the SIA personnel employed by or contracted to tlre venue shall be equipped
with a working and effective Body-worn Video Camera. The footage derived from
each such device shall be retained for a minimum of 31 days and provided upon
request to the Police or other authorised officers immediately, or with minimum
delay and in any event no later than 48 hours following such a request. All SIA
personnel above. are to be the Head Door Supervisor and Any Door Supervisor(s)
stationed at the entrance to the Premises.

From 2I:00, the venue shall employ clearly identifiable members of staff to act as
welfare officers.

The venue shall employ | welfare officer for the first 200 customers at the venue.
Thereafter there shall be an additional welfare officer for each additional 200
customers (or part thereof). Where there is more than one welfare officer at least
50% must be female.

Each welfare officer must be in a position to evidence their having undergone
Welfare and Vulnerability Engagement training prior to undertaking their appointed
role.

No third-party DJ led promoted events shall take place at the Premises. For any
other promoted events. a risk assessment shall be carried out, this risk
assessment will include but not be limited to:

a. checks the venue has undertaken into any performing acts.

b. contacting venues where they have performed previously to see if there were
any adverse issues.

c. checking artists/promoters' social media to identify any potential issues.

d. The risk assessment shall also demonstrate any measures to be put place to
mitigate any identified risks, together with the rationale applied.

e. A copy of all risk assessments shall be retained on the premises for immediate
inspection by police or responsible authorities upon request.

No queue will be permitted outside the venue (as defined by the red line on the
plan attached to this Premises Licence) once the full capacity of the venue is
reached.

Page 179 Page 11 of 14



46.

47.

48.

49.

Any queue that forms outside the venue (as defined by the red line on the plan
attached to this Premises Licence) once the venue has achieved the safe capacity
identified for that day will be immediately and safely dispersed by benue staff or
SIA approved personnel or contractors.

From 21:00, a designated member of staff shall monitor the CCTV system installed
at the premises whenever licensable activity is taking place and communicate with
operational staff and/or SIA approved personnel or contractors, as appropriate.

Prior to the premises providing licensable activities a dispersal policy for the
premises applicable to standard operating nights and promoted events shall be
drawn up and agreed with the police.

Amended plans of the premises to be attached to the premises licence, compliant
with regulations, are to be lodged with the council

Page 180 Page 12 of 14



Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

Not Applicable.

Page 181 Page 13 of 14



Annex 4 — Plans

PLAN/LBH-PRE-T-0480/120608

Page 182 Page 14 of 14



APPENDIX C

RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY REPRESENTATION:
APPLICATION UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003

RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY DETAILS

NAME OF AUTHORITY

Licensing Authority

ADDRESS OF AUTHORITY Licensing Service
1 Hillman Street
London E8 1FB

CONTACT NAME Channing Riviere

TELEPHONE NUMBER

020 8356 4622

E-MAIL ADDRESS

Channing.riviere@hackney.gov.uk

APPLICATION PREMISES

NAME & ADDRESS OF PREMISES

Viaduct

83 Rivington Street
Hackney

London

EC2A 3AY

NAME OF APPLICANT

PC Sian Giles

COMMENTS

I make the following relevant representations in relation to the above application.

public safety

the prevention of crime and disorder X

the prevention of public nuisance X
the protection of children from harm

Page 183



Representations (which include comments and/or objections) in relation to:

The Licensing Authority has considered the application and submits the following comments.

The Premises known as Viaduct, 83 Rivington Street, Hackney, London, EC2A 3AY was
formerly known as “Cargo”. Cargo was subject to a review application from the Metropolitan
Police in 2021, the review hearing took place on 14th December 2021.

The issues identified by the Metropolitan Police at the time demonstrated a risk to the
promotion of the licensing objectives, in particular the prevention of crime and disorder and
public safety. The outcome of the review hearing was a revocation of the premises licence.

The operators of the premises appealed the decision of the Licensing Sub-Committee and
engaged in discussion and mediation with the Responsible Authorities. This eventually led to
the appeal being settled by way of Consent order.

During the mediation, the operators of the premises accepted various conditions and
modifications would be added to the premises licence.

The operators also indicated that they would seek to change the fundamental nature of the
premises, away from the previous “night club” model to a more bespoke offering, including a
restaurant area, brewery etc. The forthcoming changes were shown to Responsible
Authorities via presentations and during a number of meetings with the operators and their
respective staff.

Given the substantive engagement that has been undertaken by the Police and Local
Authority . The Licensing Authority are extremely disappointed to learn that a serious incident
has taken place at the premises. Further to this, it would appear that the Premises Licence
conditions agreed via the Consent Order were not being followed. The operator would have
had a clear idea of the conditions having only agreed to them after lengthy negotiation. This
would suggest that the Licensing objectives are at serious risk of being undermined.

The Licensing Authority now has serious doubts about the ability of the operator to conduct
the premises in a manner that promotes the Licensing objectives. The situation is further
exacerbated by the fact that the premises is located within the Shoreditch Special Policy Area.

The Licensing Authority supports the application for the review.

The premises is located in the Shoreditch Special Policy Area (Shoreditch SPA), the Shoreditch
SPA has been designated as such due to the impact of the number of premises within the area
and their impact on the licensing objectives as well as the local amenity.

“LP10 Special Policy Areas — Dalston and Shoreditch

It is the Council’s policy that where a relevant representation is made to any application within
the area of the Dalston SPA or Shoreditch SPA, the applicant will need to demonstrate that the
proposed activity and the operation of the premises will not add to the cumulative impact that
is currently being experienced in these areas. This policy is to be strictly applied.

It should also be noted that the;

Page 184




e quality and track record of the management;

e good character of the applicant; and

e extent of any variation sought

May not be in itself sufficient.

It should be noted that if an applicant can demonstrate that they will not add to
the cumulative impact in their operating schedule and at any hearing, then the
Core Hours Policy within LP3 will apply.”

The above representations are supported by the following evidence and information.

The Licensing Act 2003, Statement of Licensing Policy 2016 and Guidance issued by the Home
Office.

Are there any actions or measures that could be taken to allay concerns or objections? If so,
please explain.

N/A

Name: Channing Riviere (Principal Licensing Officer)

Date: 03/04/2023

Page 185




Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

APPENDIX D1
License Review The Viaduct, The Arches, 83 Rivington Street, London, EC2A 3AY

1 message

24 March 2023 at 17:04
o: Licensing <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Dear Sir/Madam,

As a actual neighbour of Shoreditch | would like to strongly support the license review of The Viaduct and
therefore remove them this license for once and all.

This venue is an actual threat to the area promoting criminal behaviour and also not being able to prevent it
when the have an incident. This rebranding sounds exactly like the old Cargo with numerous crime reports.

This represents a mayor issue for public safety and therefore children like ours who live in the area.

We have a kid and find very difficult not just to explain the problematic that we have to live with and how the
Council fails to protect them from this kid of harm.

Thank you,
Kind regards,

Page 186



D2

Viaduct - PERMANENTLY Revoke Licence

3 April 2023 at 19:28
o: "licensing@hackney.gov.uk” <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>
Cc:

To Whom it may concern,

| have lived on Boundary Street between Calvert Avenue & Navarre Streets for 7 years. Over the course of these years ASB
behaviour has made my street unsafe and unbearable to live.

My street has been closed countless times as a result of knife crime, literally right outside the entrance to my residence. (see
attached photos)

| previously objected to Cargo’s licence because of this. | am shocked and feel unsafe knowing the same management
continues to violate the conditions of their licence and blatantly

jeopardises the safety of our community for financial gain.

| have seen people park in my street and going to the venue, and returning after to blast music from their cars after the club
closes.

They have used their cars as weapons, drink and take drugs just outside my windows. Streets are littered with broken bottles
and gas canisters the morning after the club has been open.

Evidence can always be found immediately outside the club itself at the intersection of Rivington and Shoreditch High Street.

The only way | manage to sleep is with white noise machine and earplugs. (see below videos of the noise and violence | have
to try and sleep through)

Extreme Driving / Violence - Boundary Street
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=glvzZ830ILA

Middle of Night Car Gathering / Car Bar - Boundary Street
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jnvew1g4nXo

Glass Throwing / Chasing - Boundary Street
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=c555QVnXk2E

Viaduct's licence must be PERMANENTLY revoked to ensuring our neighbourhood can be kept safe.
Thank you for your help.

Sincerely,

Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

D3
License review: The Viaduct, The Arches, 83 Rivington Street, London EC2A 3AY

1 message

3 April 2023 at 19:53
o: "Licensing ared Mailbox)" <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Dear Licensing
| would like to support the police request for a full revocation of the license at this venue:
The Viaduct, The Arches, 83 Rivington Street, London EC2A 3AY

It is clear from the Police submission that the venue's owner, Mr Khan, has no respect for the conditions
applied after this venue was previously closed back in Dec 2021.

Because he didn't adhere to the conditions which were put in place to prevent crime and increase Public
Safety, a young visitor to his venue now has life-changing injuries.

The evidence provided by the Police upholds 2 of the licensing objectives:

* the prevention of crime and disorder
* public safety

As a local resident, | would argue that this venue and its owner have long been a public nuisance in
Shoreditch, both as Cargo and now as The Viaduct. The name change has not resulted in a culture
change and the disregard for residential neighbours and authority partners continues today.

* the prevention of public nuisance

Will the arches be used in future? Residents feel that there is a strong employment future in the arches
that does not involve the licensed economy.

Neighbouring businesses are gyms, Print works, design studios. None of these requires a license and
involves employment opportunities with more secure job tenure.

There is an employment future for Shoreditch that doesn't involve alcohol.

| note that Eden Gardens Entertainment is also the license holder on a further 12 venues in the Shoreditch
Town Centre area. If the rot starts with the top management team this raises concerns over the
management of the other Eden Gardens Entertainment venues.

| therefore, support the full revocation of the license at The Viaduct, Rivington Street, Shoreditch.
Regards

esident
| do no consent to my information being shared with any 3rd parties

Page 190



Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

D4
The Viaduct, The Arches, 83 Rivington St EC2A 3AY

1 message
3 April 2023 at 20:17

o: "Licensing ared Mailbox)" <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Dear all,
RE: Licensing Review at The Viaduct, The Arches, 83 Rivington St EC2A 3AY

| strongly support the the above licensing review. In particular, on the grounds of prevention of crime and disorder
and of public safety. In addition to the obvious dangerous incidents that took place inside The Viaduct, it seems
that the venue is not able to control anti-social and dangerous behaviour. This hugely augments the feeling of living
in an unsafe neighbourhood when large groups of rowdy patrons are discharged in the streets from the venue. The
scale of its operation multiplies the negative cumulative impact of the night economy on the area such as anti-
social behaviour, use of substance such as Nitrous Oxide (often seen in the nearby streets), urination, streets fights
etc. | do not feel safe with such venue in the area.

| strongly urge that the licence is revoked.

Yours sincerely,

Charlotte Road
London ECZA-

Page 191



Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

D5

Cargo / Viaduct Licence Review Submission
1 message

—— 3 Apil 2023 at 2042
O: licensing@hackney.gov.u

Cc
Dear Licensing team
My wife and | are residents of Calvert Avenue, Shoreditch - not far from Cargo/the Viaduct.

We submitted an impact statement in connection with the original Cargo licence review because of the shocking levels of antisocial
behaviour we were regularly experiencing, which we believed (albeit based on circumstantial evidence) were connected with
Cargo. The closure of Cargo made a remarkable difference to the character of Shoreditch almost overnight and antisocial
behaviour in our street has dramatically declined, at least until recently.

We were very disappointed when the Viaduct reopened under the same management, especially having heard - through the Cargo
licence review process - about the lack of records and safeguards with which Cargo turned out to be operating. However, we were
initially quite pleased at the seemingly fairly empty venue with minimal activity. In recent weeks activity seems to have picked up.
Hearing today that the Viaduct is being reviewed (again) for breaches - including lax security, a key concern last time - beggars
belief.

We wholeheartedly agree with the assessment of the police that a venue cannot be trusted to adhere to any conditions if it
chooses to ignore the ones imposed on it during the process of review and appeal.

Please allow residents of Shoreditch to continue to experience the peace we have enjoyed since Cargo closed and do not put your
faith in the promises of a group that is seemingly as unreliable as its corporate ownership structure is convoluted.

Yours sincerely

Page 192



Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

D6

The Viaduct, The Arches, 83 Rivington Street, London EC2A 3AY - please review and

permanently revoke the license
1 message

3 April 2023 at 23:37
o: 'licensing@hackney.qov.uk” <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>
Cc:

Dear licensing team,

| am a resident on the Boundary Estate. | fully support the license review of The Viaduct. | was one of the
residents who spoke at the review of the Cargo license two years back. | raised my concerns that
Shoreditch Bar group should not be allowed to re-open at the same venue. At that review, they spoke of
changing the concept and redecorating -my reply was as long as the venue continues to encourage heavy
drinking and late night events and parties, | cannot imagine how the situation would improve. | hate to say
that my comments were proven correct.

The Shoreditch Bar Group had been given many opportunities and warnings before the review of Cargo
two years back; the Cargo revocation was also a wake up call for them. Yet, the latest incident has once
again shown that they cannot and will not change their operating and business model - which is to open
large venues, pack in the crowds, encourage heavy drinking and rowdy unruly gatherings with no safety to
patrons and the public. We cannot condone such a violent incident especially as it happened at such close
proximity to a large residential estate.

My neighbours and | who live on the Boundary estate have suffered the problems of crime and anti-social
behaviour. We have suffered sleepness weekends and a couple of residents have shared how the
situation had affected their mental health.

If this review results in the revocation of The Viaduct, my request would be to make this a final review and
permanent revocation of the license at this premise. There should not be another iteration of the same
thing in a different name.

Thank vou and regards,

Resident on the Boundary Estate
Chair of the Boundary Tenants & Residents Association

Page 193



Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

D7
LICENCE REVIEW - The Viaduct

1 message

[ —— 3 Apil 2023 o 16:25
O: licensing@hackney.gov.u

Cc:

The Viaduct, The Arches, 83 Rivington Street, London EC2A 3AY

| understand that Viaduct (formerly Cargo, under the same ownership and management) is subject to a new licensing review. |
write as chair of the Tower Hamlets Weavers Ward Safer Neighbourhoods Panel and vice-chair of the Boundary Tenants and
Residents Association. The Boundary TRA represents 800 homes on the Boundary Estate and nearby streets spanning the border
between Hackney and Tower Hamlets, and in close proximity to Rivington Street and The Viaduct.

During the last review in 2021 we submitted a lengthy collection of impact statements demonstrating how mismanagement of this
venue affects the everyday lives of local residents.

A number of us spoke at the hearing and the community as a whole was hugely relieved when the licence was revoked. Life
improved immediately following the closure of the bar. Mass night time urination along Virgina Road stopped occurring straight
away. ASB on the Boundary Estate associated with car bars and the night time economy was greatly reduced.

We were thus disappointed that Shoreditch Bar Group chose to appeal and reopen, albeit under a new brand, and that a new
licence agreement was made with Hackney Council licensing officers.

And now we are devastated to discover that while the bar has undergone a rebranding exercise, it has continued to be run by the
same owner with a continuing disregard to the licensee's duties to uphold licensing objectives.

We fully endorse the concluding words of the police submission:

Mr Khan and business were given a second chance after the initial review hearing with it being settled
by Hackney Council at appeal. The violation of imposed conditions demonstrates a blatant disregard to
the subcommittee. its members and the licensing legislation. It also illustrates again how the business
puts financial gain over the safety of the public. Police are of the opinion that how could the venue
possibly be trusted to adhere to any conditions rf they chose to ignore the ones Imposed on

them during the process of revocation review and appeal.

And would add that this also shows a blatant disregard for the local community who have expressed their concerns so forcefully
during the previous review.

We SUPPORT the review of this license, and would ask that the council REVOKE the licence fully and finally. The owners and
managers have proven themselves to be untrustworthy and unfit to run this venue under any current or future branding.

A venue of this size cannot be tolerated to continue under poor management when it has the capacity to make such an impact on
the everyday lives of so many nearby residents, many of whom are council tenants who do not have the choice to move
elsewhere.

As a reminder of why this matters so much to the residents of the Boundary Estate, | attach the impact statements submitted for
the previous Cargo licence review.

Best wishes

v impact statements v2.3.pdf Page 194

2325K



Impact statements - Boundary Estate and other nearby residents

| have lived on and near to the Boundary Estate for nearly thirty years. As Chair of the Weavers
Ward Safer Neighbourhoods Panel | am closely connected with local crime and ASB issues. |

am also a member of the Columbia Tenants and Residents Association, and a founder of the
Boundary Tenants and Residents Association.

For ten years (2000-2010) | was owner, licensee and personal licence holder of a successful
venue on Old Street, Shoreditch EC2 and was a member of the Shoreditch Pubwatch.

From these various activities and backgrounds | have considerable experience of night time
economy issues and the way they affect the local community.

The night time economy in Shoreditch has transformed in the last few years in a way that is
now having a considerably harmful impact on the amenity of local residents. It particularly affects
residents who live on the Boundary Estate which spans the border between Hackney and Tower
Hamlets, to the east of Shoreditch High Street. It is also affecting residents of the Columbia TRA
estates stretching along Columbia Road and generally all of the residential community to the
east of Shoreditch High Street, from Hackney Road to Bethnal Green Road.

| am submitting 14 impact statements from residents living in this neighbourhood. The
submitters all wish to remain anonymous but | can vouch for the identity of each one of these
authors.

| am also submitting an ASB diary for the month of August. This contains reports made to our
community WhatsApp groups. Many (but not all) of these were also reported to police or
council. CAD numbers are included where recorded.

The concentration of bars, partcularly on the Rivington St / Shoreditch High Street axes is now
creating predictable, regular weekend scenes that some residents have described as ‘carnage’.
The pattern is well-established. Clubgoers use the Boundary Estate as a car park from early
evening, often lingering by their cars for some ‘pre-loading’ drinking activity accompanied by
loud music. When the clubs close, these visitors return to their cars and the party continues
often until dawn. Peak activity tends to be 3-5am, after the bars have closed.

There is an extraordinary amount of policing deployed around the Shoreditch bars on these
nights, but enforcement tends to end shortly after the bars have closed, when their customers
have theoretically dispersed. Many of them just relocate to the residential streets of the
Boundary Estate and continue their activities unpoliced. Residents suffer hugely from this
behavior, as the attached impact statements attest.

During the weekend, there is so much activity involving such a large number of bars, that
it is almost impossible to evidentially connect a specific crime or ASB incident occuring on
residential streets after the bars have closed with one or other specific venue.

On the night on Monday 6 September and morning of Tuesday 7 September a large number of
incidents were reported via our community social media (WhatsApp) and some of these were
also reported to the police. | am aware of at least 6 CAD numbers connected with night time
econony ASB that night. On this occasion, most of the bars were closed or very quiet. It is

_ Impact Statements I
Page 195



clear that one bar must have been running a large promotion, and on this occasion it should be
possible to connect these distrurbances to once specific venue. | suspect but do not know that
this is Cargo, as Cargo does seem to be the main ‘attactor’ hub for nights of high disturbance.

| would like to note in addition that Cargo is one of over 20 licensed venues in the Shoreditch
area all owned by one company, Shoreditch Bar Group. | am concerned that effective action
will need to be taken at the corporate level. If conditions are attached to one of their venue’s
licenses, or a licence is suspended, this company can simply move their activities across to one
of their many other venues.

24 November 2021

[l Chambord Street
London E2 -

_ Impact Statements 2
Page 196



Resident I, Abingdon House, Boundary Estate (Boundary Street)

| live on the ground floor of Abingdon House with my 3 young children. On the weekends

the level of noise at night is awful. It scares my children, disturbs their sleep, terrifies me too.
Reckless adults stand or sit directly outside my windows with loud music, using drugs, leaning
on our windows, graffiti on my kitchen window, urinating directly on the walls near my windows
and | am afraid to even ask them to move as they become angry and make the situation worse,
as if they are entitled to act in this way on our estate and that | have no right to ask them to
stop. My children wake up from sleep, and this affects them the next day at school and affects
my focus at work the next day as well. If | go out on the weekend | am afraid to come home

at night with my children and only come home if | am accompanied by a family member. | have
had druggies at my security door blocking me from going in to my house and trying to scare me
and children with their dog.They also ring our buzzer at early hours and try to gain entrance
into the building. | will attach a picture of the graffiti on my kitchen window.They leave half filled
cups with alcohol on my window ledge.

| feel as though i have no right to live here safely with my children and there are not enough
measures being taken for our safety.

_ Impact Statements 3
Page 197



Resident 2, Abingdon House, Boundary Estate (Boundary Street)

Living in Calvert Avenue has become almost unbearable on weekend and now increasingly
weeknight evenings. We are woken up at all hours of the morning and night to the sound of
fighting, glass breaking and loud music being played from parked cars. | feel unsafe coming home
on a Friday/Saturday evening, so much so that | now actively plan to be home early enough to
avoid the large groups of drunk and therefore often aggressive revellers who congregate on
Calvert Avenue after the clubs, pubs and bars close. | am amazed every weekend by the sheer
volume of anti-social behaviour | am witness to; groups of people taking and selling Nitrous
Oxide, groups drinking in and around double-parked cars that play loud music (these same
people who then presumably drive away inebriated) and groups of people physically fighting in
the street (recently two men were filmed firing paintball guns that looked like semi-automatic
rifles at a group of people whilst 2 police officers looked on!). These are all things that | believe
me and my fellow residents should not have to deal with.We should all be able to sleep through
the night without being woken multiple times and we should all be able to feel safe coming
home at whatever time we wish. | am saddened that now it seems commonplace to wake up on
a Saturday/Sunday morning to the news of yet another stabbing on or around Calvert Avenue
and the Boundary Estate.

Venues like Cargo and The Lighthouse (both located on Rivington street) now not only host
events into the early hours of Friday, Saturday and Sunday mornings, but events/parties are now
held on many weeknights as well. These venues do not do enough, if in fact anything at all, about
limiting the violent and anti-social behaviour of their patrons when the clubs close and swarms
of drunk people fill the streets. This is unacceptable and these venues must be held accountable
for the part they play in fuelling the anti-social behaviour and violent crime that is a regular
occurrence in Shoreditch.

_ Impact Statements 4
Page 198



Resident 3 - Cookham House, Boundary Estate (Old Nichol St)

| live on the Boundary Estate in Tower Hamlets. It’s a lovely part of the city but is somewhat
marred by the impact of the nighttime economy nearby. Unfortunately, the bars and clubs (many
of which are in Hackney) lead to a lot of ASB on the estate, which is rarely if ever policed, which
includes - inter alia public drinking, drug taking and dealing, theft and vandalism, littering, car bars
and drink driving, urination and defecation and loud music and shouting. Unfortunately it also
leads to violence and verbal and physical abuse which I've experienced firsthand.

In my view, a lot of the issues result from the presence of non-residents driving in and parking
on the estate, where they will hold informal parties by the cars, taking drugs and drinking,
playing music loudly etc. all of which is very disruptive for local residents, given it will often
continue to 5 or 6 in the morning with no enforcement from police or other agencies.This is
despite the area being residents only for parking during the weekend.

The other issues is that even when the Parties are over, the streets are left littered with trash,
NO2 cannisters, urine and faeces and broken glass. This is often not cleared up until several days
later - if at all. A lot of this rubbish and detritus can be linked back to these groups of partygoers
and their vehicles.

I've noticed that Hackney council have street cleaners at the weekend which clear up after this.
This is very absent in Tower Hamlets. It is evident on Boundary St on a Saturday or Sunday
morning where one side of the street has been cleaned (Hackney) while the other is covered in
litter, gas cannisters and excrement - usually until the middle of the week.

Unfortunately I've heard many tourists comment on the state of the streets which is a shame
given the contribution from tourism to the local economy, and the fact that the Boundary Estate
is a historic area with some beautiful buildings.

_ Impact Statements 5
Page 199



Resident 4 - Sivill House, Dorset Estate (Columbia Road)

For anyone walking home from work from Old Street station on a Friday night, the area is like
a war zone.The energy is aggressive and puts me on my guard.A friend of mine nearly had his
bike snatched by a group of black guys sitting outside Busaba on Old St and the only reason he
didn’t is because he stood up to them and gave them the same filthy look they were giving to
passers us.

The area is not welcoming. It is dirty and edgy.The streets are filthy due to the sheer volume of
people. Many of whom simply drop their litter on the floor.

The western end of Columbia Road is a joke. Friday and Saturday mornings week in week out
the section outside Leopold Buildings is left in a disgusting state.

The rubbish is made up of a mixture of fast food, drink bottles and NOX canisters strewn
across the pavement but there is also rubbish which looks to have been left by cars that are

parked up.

The street cleaner does a fantastic job but the source of the problem, which is relentless, is not
being dealt with.

Car bars are present in the middle of the night Thursdays to Sundays playing unbelievably loud
music outside people’s windows.The perpetrators:

|. Do not live in the area.

2. Do not care about the impact that their behaviour has on others.

3. Downgrade the area by their presence.

A lot of local residents have lived in the area before the whole ‘Shoreditch’ thing took off. It has

brought an ever increasing number of problems for residents who's lives have been affected by
this extra dimension.

_ Impact Statements 6
Page 200



Resident 5 - Wargave House, Boundary Estate (Navarre Street)

This is a relatively peaceful residential area. | have lived here for over 30 years and have never
known of such relentless weekend disturbance and violence by people who are drawn to the
area to supposedly ‘have a good time’. | believe some of the perpetrators get a kick out of
creating the noise and disturbing this quiet area.That’s how it feels!

| am constantly on edge on fridays and saturdays. | witness and am frequently woken up
between lam to 5am and sometimes later by angry voices, altercations, women screaming, loud
music and breaking glass. Parking for residents after |0pm has become a problem from fridays.
My neighbour was verbally abused when he tried to park his car after work. Its alarming to

see how the impact of the Licencing Policy requires such a heavy police presence along with
the Territorial Support Group every weekend. Despite this police presence violence, stabbings,
excess drinking fuelling aggression, car bars, nightly disturbance, abusive attitudes towards
residents continues, public urination, drug crime and serious assaults continue.

It’s actually frightening to live here with the potential for a violent incident any weekend. Most of
the blocks of flats along Boundary Street and Calvert Avenue are family units and many children
have been awoken and disturbed by the violence and noise. This will have a long term impact as
it has been going on for years.

The first disturbing incident woke me in the early hours of the morning. It was a hysterical
woman screaming in Boundary Street.When | walked along the street the next morning there
was blood on the pavement. Later | saw the film of the incident. It was a very violent incident
and shocking! This was the first of many similar violent incidents happening mainly on Fridays
and Saturdays.

Regular incidents include Car-bars from 9.30pm (loud music blasted from cars combined

with alcohol, Nox and drugs), altercations and a violent mass brawl involving over 70 to 100
individuals and recently there have been at least three stabbings and a serious assault, all
incidents occurred in the area of Calvert Avenue and Boundary Street in the early hours of the
morning after police have left the area.The sheer numbers of people attracted to the area and
overflowing into the quiet streets of Shoreditch is disturbing. The courtyards and streets are
used as toilets. Women frequently using the courtyard outside my kitchen window.

Hackney Council’s licencing policy has allowed South Shoreditch to develop into ‘Clubland’
without regard for the health and well-being of Hackney residents and those in Tower Hamlets
and other neighbouring boroughs.

There was a brief lull during Lockdown when the clubs shut and there was a sense of relief.
However, it made me realise how much | had been disturbed and put on edge by all the
various disturbing incidents occurring during the early hours after the clubs closed.As soon as
Lockdown ended the groups gathered on the streets to party. It actually makes me angry, upset
and reinforces the disquiet in me to have write this.

_ Impact Statements 7
Page 201



Resident 6 - Cleeve House, Boundary Estate (Calvert Avenue)
We have owned a flat on Calvert Avenue for over 3 years now.

We are regularly impacted by Cargo-related ASB. Calvert Avenue is very wide and people move
from Cargo into the road here and cause significant disruption.This includes loud street parties,
consuming drugs and alcohol, aggressive behaviour etc. There are frequent large fights that break
out leaving us fearing our own safety. This happens every Friday and Saturday, as well as any time
Cargo hosts a specific event.

We try to report all of these events to the Met Police, but there are so many that occasionally
it gets overwhelming.We have also tried to contact Hackney Council about these issues. No
one in our flat gets sufficient sleep on these nights which is impacting both our mental and
emotional health.

_ Impact Statements 8
Page 202



Resident 7 - Walker House, Calvert Avenue

| have lived on Boundary Street between Calvert Avenue and Navarre Streets for 6 years. Over
the course of these years ASB behaviour has made my street increasingly unsafe and unbearable
to live. Cargo being the largest and nearest to my residence is a magnet for partygoers and
clubbers from across London.

| have seen people parking in my street and going to Cargo, and coming here after they have
been the club. They have used their cars as weapons, drink and take drugs on my street, blast
music and scream in the streets just outside my windows. Streets are littered with broken
bottles and gas canisters the morning after Cargo has been open. Evidence can always be found
immediately outside the club itself at the intersection of Rivington and Shoreditch High Street.

My street has been closed three times within the past 9 months as a result of extreme knife
crime, literally right outside the entrance to my residence. (see attached photo)

The only way | manage to sleep is with white noise machine and earplugs. (see below videos of
the noise and violence | have to try and sleep through)

Extreme Driving /Violence - Boundary Street
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=glvzZ830OILA

Middle of Night Car Gathering / Car Bar - Boundary Street
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jnvew | g4nXo

Glass Throwing / Chasing - Boundary Street
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=c555QVnXk2E

Cargos licence must be revoked and not renewed unless there are significant MET patrols and
resources devoted to ensuring our neighbourhood can be made and kept safe.

_ Impact Statements 9
Page 203



Resident 8 - Virginia Road

AS STATED BELOW, RESIDENT 8 & FAMILY IS EXPECTING TO LEAVE SHOREDITCH PERMANENTLY
DUETO THE IMPOSSIBILITY OF LIVINGWITH THIS LEVEL OF ASB. THEY ARE EXPECTING TO HAVE
MOVED BYTHE END OF THEYEAR.

My husband and disabled mother in law have lived in our home on the boundary estate on
Virginia road for for 31| years.

We have dozens of men and women come onto my road to urinate as it is slightly quiter than
Calvert Avenue. People will urinate on our doorsteps, beneath my kitchen window in-between
cars or on the primary school wall. These people will use our private vehicles or my windowsill
as a shelf to leave their belongings on whilst urinating. | can often see people using cocaine
outside my home too.Whilst people are urinating or parking their cars, they will often be loud
and rowdy. Glass bottles will be chucked and discarded on the road or pavements.We often
get woken up by people parking up getting ready to go out to the club.We often hear women
loudly talk whilst urinating outside our homes discussing their plans for the night including the
club names such as Cargo.

This is a regular occurrence every friday and saturday night, even more so when Cargo has a big
promotion night.

This leaves us anxious, sleep deprived and dreading the weekends.We have had to purchase a
white noise machine to block out most of the noise to try and have some peace within our
homes. Our road smells of stale urine especially in the hot summer.When we have politely
asked club goers to move on, we have had violent reactions which has lead to us having to call
999 for our safety. The typical response from these people is that it is OUR faults for living in
Shoreditch. Despite us living here long before Cargo arrived.VWe are left anxious every weekend
hoping that it will not be too loud and rowdy outside our homes.We cannot enjoy our
weekends and often left sleep deprived depending on the behaviour outside on our road.We
struggle to find parking spaces as club goers will take up resident bays.

As a result of this, we are looking to leave my husbands childhood home and relocate out of the
area causing us much emotional and financial stress.

We actively avoid going out on Friday and Saturday night'’s because it is not safe. It upsets us
greatly when we witness people throw their rubbish, NOX cannisters and alcohol bottles
around our homes. Every Saturday and Sunday morning, | find myself cleaning outside my home
tidying up the litter and also washing away the smell of urine. On the latest Cargo promotion
night, there was cocaine residue left on my windowsill which | also had to clean. | do not feel
safe as a woman alone walking 2 minutes from a bus stop if | am working late and as a result will
order a taxi to my door instead.

_ Impact Statements 10
Page 204



Resident 9 - Culham House, Boundary Estate (Rochelle Street)

| am a resident of the Boundary estate and | am writing this impact statement regarding the
horrific antisocial behaviour | and my neighbours have to suffer as a result of after hours
partying from people going to Cargo and other local clubs.

| have seen large groups of people leaving the nightclubs specifically Cargo and heading to the
bandstand in the middle of my estate. They leave their cars parked in our parking spaces then
some of the cars open up and do what the Americans call “tailgating” selling Alcohol, N0O2
canisters, illegal drugs ranging from skunk weed to cocaine and ketamine. | do not have any
issue with people who wish to take drugs it is their choice what they put into their bodies.
However they play loud music and there is regular fighting sexual assaults and some of them
will enter our buildings and use them to defacate and urinate on stairwells and in lifts. Most of
the people who live in the estate have to take sleeping tablets and even those are useless due
to the extreme levels of noise. | have been attacked in my own building by these people and
found drug paraphenalia including used syringes without the lid on, we have children who live
here and one had a needle-stick injury.The morning after the entire estate is littered with empty
NO2 canisters and balloons, broken glass vomit and faeces. Those of us who have to work have
our ability to perform severely compromised as a result of this reoccurring extreme antisocial
behaviour.We live in fear every weekend and | have personally seen so many stabbings and fights
that | have developed complex post traumatic stress disorder and have been put on psychiatric
medication.

Our lives, my life on a weekend is like a living hell and | am sick of the refusal of the council and
police to do anything about it.

My particular block on the estate is run by Providence Row, a housing provider who specialise
in helping homeless and people with special needs, such as emerging from drug and alcohol
addiction. Many residents in my block are coping with mental health issues.They are already
casualties and this housing is intended to help them recover back in to society. Many cannot
read or write and there is a large ratio of high-support needs individuals with serious mental
and physical health issues.

My troubled neighbour keeps getting his windows smashed in and it has had the effect of making
him hypervigilant. He’s one of those “I'm so hard | eat rocks and shit gun powder” types and his
cat got out and hasn’t come back and he’d rather eat his own foot than show emotions in front
of another man and he’s been crying like a kid who dropped his ice cream in the sand for days.

He’s living in a state of perpetual fear, lacks the ability and support to be able to process his
situation and he’s going to end up on psychiatric drugs for the rest of his life.

_ Impact Statements I
Page 205



Resident 10 - Anlaby House, Boundary Street
| write as a long term resident and RTM Director of Anlaby House, Boundary Street.

Anlaby House consists of 69 residential flats and 3 commercial units, the residential flats
including my own flat, which is located on the third floor of Anlaby House, as residents we
are tormented and at “our wits end” over the utter chaos that descends upon our area of
Boundary Street from Friday evenings until Monday mornings.

Typically the “car bars” will arrive to start their parties around midnight on the Friday evening,
prior to the occupants going to a club or bar on Rivington Street, unfortunately Boundary
street and surrounding streets make a convenient place for pre and post club activities and also
a convenient toilet for party goers. | have hours of CCTV footage of fighting, car bars, partying,
verbal and physical abuse and work a lot with the Met police supplying them with relevant
material where and when requested when a crime has been committed.

Unfortunately, ASB is not a crime nor are car bars or the use of our street as public toilet, it is
utterly shocking to me that this is allowed to happen and go unchallenged by the local councils,
who clearly are making more £££££ from the nighttime economy and letting the residents take
the full force of the outcomes.

Within Anlaby House we have a residents WhatsApp group that regularly report ASB, scuffles,
car bars etc etc to “noise patrols” there are 76 residents who are members of this group, and |
am sure | speak for the majority when | say “This must stop” or at least be policed appropriately
such that we can feel safe in the evenings and sleep well rather than dreading the weekends

_ Impact Statements 12
Page 206



Resident 11 - Anlaby House, Boundary Street
We live in a block just off Shoreditch High St.

The flat next door is an Airbnb and the guests come for the night life in Shoreditch.We are
constantly disturbed and woken throughout the night especially on Thursdays, Fridays, Saturdays
and Sundays. Ve are woken most often between 2 and 5am ( 4.30 am is a recurring time) and
regularly cannot get back to sleep as the guests ( returning from bars and clubs ) continue to
party in the flat. The noise has impacted our well-being and our safety has been threatened
several times. There are several of these flats in our block now - completely fuelled by
shoreditch’s nighttime economy.

We do not feel safe going out of the block at night time - we have car bars outside our
entrance most weekends (which the airbnb guests regularly frequent).

| moved to this flat 18 years ago and | can honestly say it is horrible living here now.The night
time economy has gone through the roof and it feels very out of control and unsafe. In the
mornings particularly around the weekend the streets are filthy , stinking and strewn with
debris vomit and worse from the night before however this is nothing compared to the
situation at night and the way it has impacted us.

_ Impact Statements 13
Page 207



Resident 12 - Sandford House, Boundary Estate (Arnold Circus)

| am a 32 year old woman who moved to the Boundary Estate in August 2020. Oftentimes on
the weekend, and also sometimes during the week, | am unable to sleep for many hours in the
night due to the noise in my surrounding environment ever since lockdown was lifted.

| live on the ground floor, so | feel particularly vulnerable to the spillage from the nighttime
economy into the Boundary Estate and especially the “car bar” phenomenon, as sometimes
these parties take place right outside my bedroom window. The street garbage can out front
my bedroom window is often used as a urinal for women to crouch behind.

As someone who already suffers from insomnia, my use of prescribed medication to aid in sleep
has increased since moving to the area (and it doesn’t always help).There have also been several
night time stabbings occurring blocks from my flat on multiple occasions which are particularly
concerning to my safety as | feel extremely vulnerable if | am returning home late at night.

Taking all this into consideration, | strongly feel that adequate regulation of the night time
economy is needed in Shoreditch to control the anti-social behaviour stemming from the
industry.

_ Impact Statements 14
Page 208



Resident 13 - Cleeve House, Boundary Estate (Calvert Avenue)

We are a married couple in our late 30s and have lived in Cleeve House on Calvert Avenue,
Shoreditch, since 2015. One end of Calvert Avenue joins Shoreditch High Street near the
junction with Rivington Street.We are both professionals with relatively demanding jobs.

Before the lockdown in 2020, it was rare for us to report anti-social behaviour.VWe understood
well that Shoreditch has a lively night time economy and that it would ordinarily be quite
unreasonable to suggest that this is a nuisance.

Since June 2021, however, anti-social behaviour has become much more frequent and disruptive
than before. Particularly in the period between June and sometime in October 2021, we
experienced regular disruption to sleep, extended periods of sleeplessness and various
associated physical symptoms (fatigue, exhaustion, irritability, anxiety etc.). It is difficult for us

to do our jobs in these circumstances.There is widespread concern in the Boundary Estate (in
Hackney and Tower Hamlets) about the issue of anti-social behaviour and we have seen that in
recent months several residents have shared stories of their experience with the local Tenants
and Residents Association. The exact concerns vary, for example some people are far more
affected by public urination than we are, but the common theme is regular anti-social behaviour
and loud noise at night.

For us, one particularly obvious example of anti-social behaviour since June 2021 has been
the widespread use of nitrous oxide. Paraphernalia can be seen strewn along Rivington Street,
swept up onto the corner of Shoreditch High Street and scattered down Calvert Avenue
several mornings each week.The late-night bars and clubs have signs up saying they prevent
entry by those ’seen’ taking nitrous oxide.The following three photographs, taken by us, show
Rivington Street on the morning of 22 August 2021:

Photo A: Rivington Street at c. 07.55am on 22 August 2021

_ Impact Statements 15
Page 209



Photo B:Area in front of office building on Rivington Street at c. 07.55am on 22 August 202 |

Photo C: Corner of Rivington Street and Shoreditch High Street at c. 07.55am on 22 August 2021

In this statement, we describe three examples of the disruption we experienced in September
2021.

In fairness, since sometime in October 2021 we have noticed a larger police and local authority
presence on Calvert Avenue on Friday and Saturday nights.There does appear to have been a
reduction in anti-social behaviour, at least on Friday and Saturday nights before 03.00am.

_ Impact Statements 16
Page 210



Night of Monday, 6 September, to Tuesday, 7 September
This was a remarkable night of disruption, as set out below.All photographs were taken by us.

At around 01.45am, we were woken up when a fight broke out on the south side of Calvert
Avenue.There was screaming and shouting followed by two sets of people restraining the two
arguing individuals.We were alarmed by the commotion, which was unexpected on a Monday
night.We reported the matter to the Metropolitan Police via their website with reference BCA-
98557-21-0193-00. After 30 minutes or so the shouting subsided. We noted during this time
that there was a surprisingly high volume of foot traffic on the street for a Monday and multiple
private hire cars appeared to be picking people up and turning at the corner with Boundary
Street.We could hear nitrous oxide balloons being filled further towards Shoreditch High Street
(2 now familiar background sound on weekend nights but more unusual on Monday nights).The
noise level was unusually high for a Monday but at length we were able to get back to sleep, not
long after 02.30am.

Photo D: Fight at c. 01.48am on Calvert Avenue

_ Impact Statements 17
Page 211



Photo E: Fight at c. 01.48am, Calvert Avenue

Impact Statements

Page 212



Photo F:c. 02.28am Nitrous Oxide dispensers in black Mercedes, Calvert Avenue

_ Impact Statements
Page 213



Photo G: c. 02.29am Nitrous Oxide dispensers in Range Rover, Calvert Avenue (near Shoreditch High
Street Corner with large crowd around them)

_ Impact Statements 20
Page 214



Between not long after 02.30am and around 04.00am on the same night we slept fitfully, being
woken up a number of times by loud noises such as music playing and shouting in the street.
There was no one persistent disruption so we did not report anything.

At 04.10am, however, we were woken abruptly by very loud music. Two cars were parked on
the other side of Calvert Avenue beside the Church. Both were surrounded by people taking
nitrous oxide from balloons that were being filled in the first car.That car was playing loud
music from its stereo and everyone was laughing, singing, shouting and swaying.We reported
this to the police by telephone with reference CAD-951-07/09/21. It was difficult to get back to
sleep from this point on until we had to get up at 06.00am.

Photo H:c. 04.14am Car bar and nitrous oxide dispensers, Calvert Avenue

_ Impact Statements 21
Page 215



Photo I: c. 04.16am Car bar and nitrous oxide dispensers with numerous happy customers lined up
against the railings, Calvert Avenue

The next morning, one of us had to go into, and play a leading role in, an important all-day
meeting. The lack of sleep was so disruptive that it made us think about our options and
question whether people with professional jobs like us are still welcome living in this part of
Shoreditch. It is incredibly difficult to do a job requiring prolonged periods of concentration to a
high standard following a night like this, and especially when sleeplessness and broken sleep are
experienced regularly.

Night of Friday, 10 September, to Saturday, |1 September

We were delighted to sleep through a whole Friday night for the first time in several weeks.
Unfortunately, when we went outside, we learned from the police who were present on the
road that the reason for this seemed to be a brutal stabbing on Calvert Avenue around 01.00am.
Calvert Avenue had been closed off by the police at the junction with Shoreditch High Street
from around that time for the rest of the night. This was at least the second stabbing leading to
a prolonged overnight road closure since mid-June. It was striking to see the number of nitrous
oxide canisters lying around the area on the Saturday morning — no street sweepers had been
able to get through to tidy up after revellers.

_ Impact Statements 22
Page 216



Weekend of Friday, 24 September, to Monday, 27 September

We were away from home for a few days after the above events. Soon after our return, however,
we were woken up multiple times on Friday, Saturday and (most disappointingly) Sunday night.
While awake late at night we witnessed car stereos playing loud music, street drinking, shouting,
public urination (not into the urinals provided), nitrous oxide taking and dispensing, etc.

Overall, the cumulative effect of frequently disrupted sleep throughout September had, by
this time, made us feel increasingly anxious, irritable and impatient much of the time. Our
concentration had become impaired and we experienced fatigue, headaches and bouts of low
mood. Our ability to do our jobs was affected.

_ Impact Statements 23
Page 217



Resident 14 - Abingdon House, Boudary Estate (Boundary Street)

| am a resident of Abingdon House, Boundary Street in Tower Hamlets and have lived here for
10 years

This statement is a community impact statement, written to provide local context surrounding
the issues the specific locality, and in this instance, The Night Time Economy area of Shoreditch,
is currently facing.

Over recent years, the Shoreditch area has become home to busiest night time economy area
in Hackney, and the second biggest in London.There are numerous busy bars which attract
thousands of people over a weekend. Most of the venues are open past midnight with some
open until 3 am, and all frequently utilising Temporary Event Notices to extend their operating
hours until 6 am.Alongside these bars and clubs are local businesses, shops, houses, flats, train
and tube stations, parks, hotels and so on. Close to Liverpool Street and The City, Shoreditch
attracts a mixed crowd, local workers, and people young and old and from far and wide.

A significant enough portion of these cause ASB related problems which is having a dramatic
detrimental impact on local residents. The specific problems that have arisen alongside the Night
Time Economy include:

¢ Violence and public disorder, with frequent instances of grievous bodily harm
(including knife crime).There is usually at least one altercation / assault which takes place on
Boundary Street per fortnight

¢ Drug use and drug dealing, both for the local homeless population and for partygoers,
which results in many intoxicated individuals in the streets late at night and often leads to
violence or dangerous driving under the influence.This can be easily witnessed during any
given week

¢ Prostitution, with people making use of local residents’ courtyards to conduct their
business

¢ Vandalism and littering, including everything from smashing windows of local shops, to
spray painting on walls or vehicles parked in the street, to broken glass on the pavements, to
people urinating / defecating on residents’ door steps

¢ Antisocial noise levels throughout the night and into the early hours of the
morning. This is most directly felt by residents when groups of partygoers arrive to the area
by car, park outside residents windows on Boundary Street and play loud music from their
vehicles to party, drink and take drugs either before or after going to a local venue.This
can take place for hours at a time and is impossible to ignore as Abingdon House is only
permitted single pane windows due to building regulations, so the sound barrier is negligible.
During the summer months when this is most problematic, | will have to ask partygoers to
move on multiple times per night on Thursday, Friday, Saturday and Sunday nights. Many react
aggressively or turn the volume of their music up further.The matter is often aggravated
by the noise of young children crying, who have been disturbed. Raising the issue with law
enforcement often does not lead to officers arriving for another hour or so

This all takes place in close proximity to places of residence and is not confined to local venues
or even the main streets. The antisocial noise levels during the night are therefore the biggest
issue, stopping residents from sleeping, especially those who live on the ground floor or those
with young children.

_ Impact Statements 24
Page 218



Measures implemented to date (e.g. the through-the-night police / parking patrols) are not
nearly sufficient to address the issue.We need additional measures, in particular to stop the
antisocial behaviour in such close proximity to places of residence.There are many viable
options available, including: closing the street to nonpermit-holder vehicles in the evenings;
stepping up police and parking warden patrols to move on partygoers; implementing an
automatic ticketing system (like those in place in many car parks) to fine non-permit-holder
vehicles for parking in the area during the evenings; allowing for double glazing to keep the noise
out; etc.

To put it in context, here are some statistics which highlight the problem

Since Jan 2020 to Sept 2020, 331 | crimes have been recorded in Shoreditch.These consist of
| 742 Thefts, 565 Violence, 268 Robbery, 252 Burglary, 161 Drugs, 51 Sexual Offences, and 275
miscellaneous.

Alongside these, a total of 1018 separate ASB incidents have been recorded.These range from
rowdy behaviour, littering, begging, noise, drugs, and a number of others.

These also take into account the majority of the year being heavily influenced by COVID.
These figures of 3311 and 1018 are actually significantly down from what it would be the year
previously.

With all this in mind, it is imperative that ASB is taken seriously by all concerned. Offenders
should be dealt with effectively and robustly..

_ Impact Statements 25
Page 219



Resident 15 - Walker House, Calvert Avenue

| am a 55 year old married man. My wife and | live in a one-bedroomed flat on the second
floor of Walker House, on the corner of Boundary Street and Calvert Avenue, E2.We are
leaseholders and have lived in our flat since 2007.

Over that last 3 to 4 years, our sleep on Thursday, Friday, Saturday and Sunday nights has
become increasingly disturbed as we have experienced a proliferation of club goers in the area,
particularly between the hours of 01.00 and 05.00, who seem intent on continuing to party in
the street having left clubs or bars in the area.This includes drinking, shouting, revving of car
engines and (most miserably of all for the local residents) the high incidence of ‘car bars’ in the
area, where the car owners sell alcohol and NOX balloons from the backs of their cars, doors
open, with music being blared at full volume.

This has also led to various other instances of ASB, not least the running battles being fought
between 00.00 and 02.00 along Boundary Street on the night of 6/7 September, after the
evening’s ‘entertainment’ at Cargo had finished and the ‘clientele’ exited the club.

We tend to sleep with foam ear plugs in to dim the traffic noise, but now on Thursday through
Sunday nights we know that we will STILL be woken up throughout the nights by various acts of
ASB relating to the ‘night time economy’. This has become progressively bad over the last four
years.

This lack of sleep has led to prolonged bouts of anxiety and mild depression. Despite us both
being healthy and fit, we are also now reticent to leave our properties after 21.00 on Thursday,
Friday, Saturday and Sunday nights, particularly having experienced aggressive behaviour by night
time economy clientele.

We believe that Cargo, amongst others, and its late licences and questionable theme nights has
materially contributed to these myriad and consistent acts and instances of ASB that has led to
us feeling like prisoners in our own home on Thursday through Sunday nights.

_ Impact Statements 26
Page 220



Resident 16 - Laleham House, Camlet Street (Boundary Estate)

| have been a resident of the boundary estate for the past 8 years.The area has a reputation of
being a “lively” with a strong night time economy. However; since | moved to the area, this has
gone from a higher than average amount of drunken shouting to a point where the antisocial
behaviour and indeed crime has become out of control. This has undoubtedly been fuelled

by the night time economy, as made apparent when the crime dropped significantly during
lockdown when the bars were shut.

The crime is frequent, pretty much on a daily basis, however it increases notably at weekends
or when certain licenced venues hold events. It consists of public urination, screaming in the
early hours of the morning, car bars, drug and nitrous oxide use and trade, public sexual acts,
vandalism and theft of bikes, homes, public property, violence, threats of violence, dangerous
driving, drink and drug driving and intimidation.

| have personally been affected by all of the above issues. Sadly reporting to local authorities and
the MET, with little if any action taken, is the norm.

Dealing with all of these issues has had a significant effect on my mental health. I've been
prescribed anti anxiety medication. Our buildings are single glazed and the impact has become
so great I'm having to pay several thousand pounds to install secondary glazing to try and have
some restbite from the noise.

| worry constantly about mine and my family’s safety and the long term impact it’s having on our
emotional well-being.

_ Impact Statements 27
Page 221



Resident 17 - Virginia Road

| am 38 years old, | have a wife and young son, and have lived in the area for close to 5 years.
From the outset, | would like the make it clear that | enjoy socialising and going out to
restaurants, bars and clubs myself, so | am not writing this from the point of view that all noise
is bad noise or that having fun is off limits.We live in a big city and people have the right to live
their lives and enjoy themselves, | accept the hustle and bustle that comes with living in London
and thrive off the energy.

With that said, the sort of crowd Cargo attracts and the manner in which they comport
themselves before entering the venue and upon leaving the venue is shocking and beyond my
comprehension. Over the last few years, | have witnessed a number of stabbings, countless fights
between groups of men and groups of women. | was once woken up in the early hours by a lady
screaming that her friend had just been sexually assaulted on Rivington Street. Leaving the house
on a Sunday morning has become an exercise in seeing which shop windows have been smashed
in the area, which bins have been kicked over and how many people are lying on the pavement
unconscious from consuming too much alcohol or too many drugs. Urine flows down the
pavements like the Nile and the level of rubbish left for binmen to clean up seems to increase by
the week. Don’t get me started on those silver nitrous oxide canisters.

Sunday through to Thursday there are seldom any issues in the area, believe it or not it has a
family feel to it. The problems start on Friday night and go through to the early hours of Sunday
morning. Unless Cargo holds a Tim Westwood sponsored event on Sunday in which case the
chaos flows through to Sunday evening.

To come back to my original premise, | have no issue with people having a good time, in fact |
welcome and encourage it, but | do have an issue with a venue of Cargo’s profile and experience
drawing the crowds in and then taking no responsibility in keeping the area directly surrounding
the venue safe and liveable. | do not believe this is an issue for Cargo to solve alone, there needs
to be strong cooperation between Cargo and the council and measures need to be put in place
to curb the despicable behaviour the venue attracts.

One club should not be allowed to have such a detrimental impact on a neighbourhood without
consequences.

Thank you for taking the time to read my statement. | hope it has helped provide you with a
perspective into what it’s like to live in the area.

_ Impact Statements 28
Page 222



Resident 18 - Cleeve House, Boundary Estate (Calvert Avenue)

Since moving to Cleeve House on Calvert Avenue just over a year ago, | have experienced the
deterioration in the situation on the boundary estate as a result of the night time economy in
Shoreditch. Not only are we subjected to nightly disturbances, public urination, fighting, loud
music played until sunrise, distribution of drugs with impunity - the past few months have seen
an increase in violent crime. At least 3 stabbing incidents between Rivington Street and Calvert
Avenue have been serious enough to cause police on the scene to maintain a cordon for days
while they waited to determine whether the victim would survive.

| am uncomfortable coming home late at night, afraid to invite guests over without endangering
them, unable to sleep, and unable to reasonably request understanding from revellers for fear

of an aggressive response.The atmosphere of lawlessness and the impunity with which the law
is flouted in the presence of police is a direct result of the unmanageable situation created by
the outflow of drunk and disorderly people from nearby bars, the most troublesome of which is
Cargo - regularly attracting the heaviest police presence.This creates an environment in which
tensions flare and violence is the inevitable result. It is a matter of time before someone loses
their life as a result - this is entirely predictable. If Hackney Council does not act, this will be a
life sold for profit in business rates and night time levies.

_ Impact Statements 29
Page 223



Resident 19 - Calvert Avenue

| write this statement to hopefully give you some idea of what it is like to live on Calvert Avenue
and be impacted by the flow-on effects of the night-time economy.

To provide some context for my experience, my flat faces Calvert Avenue. Directly below the
windows of my living and bedroom there are car parking spaces, which are nowadays almost
always filled with car bars in the early hours of Friday and Saturday. | also have a direct view
onto the street.

Since moving into my flat in April 2019, | have seen a continued worsening of anti-social
behaviour.What is a peaceful street of small businesses and flats during the day descends into
complete chaos as a result of intoxicated and disorderly people on Friday and Saturday nights.
Worryingly, the trend also seems to be for more and more incidents to occur on weeknights as
well as the weekend.

The peak times for anti-social behaviour are when people first arrive and park their cars to go
into Shoreditch (around 7/8pm) and then again around 2am going through to about 5am, when
it seems people leave bars and clubs for the surrounding streets.

| can’t stress enough that this is not just people being a bit loud and having a good time. Late
on Friday and Saturday night, the street becomes lawless — people are out of control and have
complete disregard for basic norms of behaviour. Some examples include:

. the street being parked-up with cars (3 cars deep) that blare music through
amplified system with drinking, smoking weed inside cars and on the streets, doing cocaine off of
bin lids,and NOX use and dealing happening in and around the cars in the middle of the street
and all over the pavement;

. people screaming at each other in the middle of the street;

. shouting matches and fights breaking out (noting that there have been at least
two stabbings on this street in the last few months and more in the nearby area);

. incessant shouting and beeping of car horns;

. urination on doorsteps, windows, in planters etc.;

. defecation in the street.

The aftermath in the morning is that street is covered in piles of rubbish (bottles, NOX
canisters, balloons, food and drink packaging), smells terrible and there is often significant
damage (e.g. the barber on the corner recently having its windows smashed).

Because a lot of the anti-social behaviour congregates around car bars parked in front of my
block of flats and the awning to my front door, | feel pretty unsafe walking through this and
always make sure | am home well before it all starts.

However, the biggest impact on me has been the noise and not being able to sleep through
the night on weekends. Since the lift of lockdown, | have been woken almost every Friday and
Saturday night in the early hours (2-4am) by the noise from the street. Even with earplugs |
get woken because of the bass of the amplified music and because a lot of the noise is quite
alarming — it is not just loud but often aggressive or distressed shouting/screaming.

The anticipation of knowing that you are going to get woken up and not going to be able to
sleep is also very stressful. The only reprieve is colder weather and rain - it has gotten to the

_ Impact Statements 30
Page 224



point where | hope for heavy rain on the weekends knowing that this might mean a full night’s
sleep.

| (and | know other residents) have also felt completely powerless to do anything about the
situation. Neighbours have experienced verbal and physical confrontations when they have made
polite requests for people to be quieter or not urinate on their doorstep. Residents have also
been explicitly told by some of the groups that patrol the area (e.g. park guard) not to confront
anyone.Whilst we can make reports to the council and police this almost never results in any
action being taken to stop the situation.VVe are also constantly told that whilst things are bad
in our street and around the Boundary Estate, much worse is happening in Shoreditch proper
and so the police can’t prioritise residents’ concerns.That is understandable from a police
perspective, but it means residents continue to suffer exactly the same issues night after night,
week after week.There are many times when | have just wanted to throw something out of the
widow in frustration and | can genuinely see a dangerous situation arising if residents are driven
to direct confrontation or otherwise take the situation into their own hands.

The sustained impact of all of the above is that | have had to make the difficult decision to move
out of my flat. Being constantly woken up in the middle of the night and not being able to rely
on getting a full nights sleep’ has become an unliveable situation. | want to note that being able
to move away is such a luxury and a level of flexibility that most residents simply do not have -
nor should they be forced to make this choice.

To me, it is completely unacceptable that a residential area that houses 1000s of people needs
to put up with the behaviour that we do.The night-time economy that fuels the whole situation
is making a large amount of profit at the expense of residents’ wellbeing (including many families
and children). Not to mention the massive drain this is on already strained police and council
resources.

It is clear from my experience that sufficient resources are not available to deal with the
levels of anti-social behaviour caused by the masses of people drawn to the bars and clubs in
Shoreditch.The only solution would be to either significantly increase resources dedicated to
the problem or reduce the scale of the night-time economy to match the resources that are
currently available.

_ Impact Statements 31
Page 225



Resident 20 - Calvert Avenue

| am a Hackney resident and council tax payer. | have lived in a flat on the Boundary Estate for
ten years. My adult son visits me frequently from his university.

Friday and Saturday nights have always been lively. However, with the growth and promotion
of the night time economy in Shoreditch over recent years, weekend nights have become
unbearable.

It'’s hard to put a finger on exactly when or why things got worse, but | would say that they
definitely have over the last three or four years.The impacts are very clear: our sleep is
disrupted, and we feel intimidated and uneasy on the streets.

You have to understand what a late license means for nearby residents. 3 am closing means
there are people on the streets until 4 or 5am.They are drunk or intoxicated, sometimes
amiably so, but many times aggressively. Our sleep is interrupted every weekend by shouting in
the street. A few weeks ago | was woken by guys fighting at 4am; last month by the sound of the
shop downstairs having its window broken at about 4am.

In order to get some sleep, | have to leave the radio on to drown out the noise; | also take
sleeping pills.Without these, | can only sleep patchily, being woken several times each night. |
hadn’t realised quite how much we have been putting up with until the lockdown when clubs
were shut.

The streets have an intensity that didn’t seem to be there a few years ago.With so many

clubs so tightly packed in, the streets are not just crowded but tense. | don’t know if this is
intoxication or turf wars. | lose count of the times my son or | have been offered drugs. | worry
about him walking back from the tube if he visits family on a weekend evening. My partner and
younger son don’t like to visit at weekends, and if they do, don’t like to go out on the streets.
We saw with the stabbing on |10th September that our anxiety wasn’t exaggerated.

The police presence doesn’t seem to help much. It doesn’t seem like public order in a residential
neighbourhood is their priority, when there is mayhem on the streets around the clubs.The
extra resources enabled by the night time levy don’t seem to have much effect.

The frustrating thing is that the growth of the clubs has been actively promoted by local

and regional government under the concept of the night time economy. If | go to a football
match, there are police in neighbouring streets to manage the crowd and roads are closed so
matchgoers don’t park there and are directed out of the area to public transport after the
game. Here, Calvert Avenue is treated as if it is part of the club area: | look out of my living
room window onto two urinals, part of a temporary public infrastructure that tolerates and
normalises anti-social behaviour.

In summary, the impacts of clubs such as Cargo on neighbours are huge, and existing attempts
to manage the coexistence of a club area and a large residential neighbourhood make little or
no difference.There is a direct correlation between the clubs’ closing time and the worst anti-
social behaviour and disruption for residents. On this basis we ask the council to revoke Cargo’s
late license.

_ Impact Statements 32
Page 226



| August 2021 5:30am, Boundary Street - argument and
abuse between driver and passengers, police intervention.
View from residents bedroom window,.

| August 2020 | 1:30pm, Shorditch High Street, junction with
Rivington Street.Two Territorial Support Group police vans
parked as part of their routine weekend night time policing.
Indicative of the ‘normal’ level of night time economy disruption.
Enforcement is focussed around the clubs and tends to end at
3am while residents continue to be disrupted until dawn.

15 August 2021 ~3am, Calvert Avenue.Typical car bar activities invariably include loud music, raised voices, arguments, threats of

violence, urination and defacation.

I5 August 2021, Calvert Avenue. 61 5g nitrous oxide
containers gathered for waste collection. These
industiral-sized cannisters are used by criminal
Pageggrzﬁwho sell by the balloon to car bar clubgoers.

|2 September 2020, Calvert Avenue. 8g nitrous
oxide cannisters collected by shopkeepers clearing
up the previous night’s clubbing activites.



Appendix
ASB Diary 31 July - 7 September 2021
Compilation of reports via community WhatsApp Groups

Boundary Tenants and Residents Association
Weavers Community Action Group

Images and videos associated with these reports can be downloaded from this Google Drive link
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/ | IMVNowTqcfgWu9aAxQ3-9hYnbiROD7Pb

Page 228



SH'€€°G0 18 10-80-120Z 8bew| ddysjeyp

‘(1) ¥¥°€€°50 18 10-80-120z obew| ddysieym
‘Badl"yH'£€°G0 18 10-80- 120z obew| ddysieypn
‘Badl"cH €€°50 18 10-80-L20Z obew| ddysieypn
‘L¥'€€°G0 18 1L0-80-1.20Z 09pIA ddysjeym

ydw ¢ L1 ¥0 ¥e L0-80-120Z 08pIA ddysieym

GE'9L°0l ¥8 L0-80-120Z 09pIA ddysyeypm

dw9G°8Z'80 18 LE€-20-1.20Z 09pIA ddysieypn

SO9PIA/SOI0Yd

029-1010-12-09} L€£-SO49 papodal Joaus Aiepunoq uo Jeq Jed

00-£610-1.2-98288-vOd "PaAlIe uspiem Bupiied esnedsq

uo panow Ajjeuanl "saijiAloe |ens 198} Alepunog uo Jeq Je)d

wey |1 3s Arepunog ul

uo panunuoo 3| "00} papodal | [1r] $¥2609ZSHD @9110d 0} papodas eaey
sJeo/siaxeads woly Builod 81| Spunos ‘}S alieAeN UO dishwl Jeay ued

SUIWLQY WeGH' L0 WOl 8SN XON S8|ewW ‘oisnuw ‘sied Asiou :payoday

"SNOJID plouly 1B puelspueq
ay) ul o1snw joysunb Buike|d gg punoJe jo dnoib papodal isnp

(e48y papodal jou awy) Jeq Jed

"} 0} 80|29 10 AN LLA 9lB|d "pPueyaiojeq BujuLp ussq aAey

Ae\ “llem pieAyoinyo jsuiebe Buneuun 4eo diz uo Bumis ‘Buinoys (41
IN¥) sjuednooo soz AlJes G ‘weQg’g IN0ge Wodj Yyoinyd apISino anuaAy
HaneD uo aisnw pnoj buiAe|d doy uado a|qIaAU0D SBPadIBI\ Yoe|g

Bulutow siyy 1dajs jlom Appoexa Bulgay JoN "weg:e~ Je pue ybiupiw
je uo Buiob sbuiyy Jayjo alem alay) Ing [aY] ¢ weg's Inoge pauaddey
syl [1r] -s1ebuassed pue Jaalp usamiag asnge pue juswnbiy

1s]] B 8}IND "Jnoge yjem

SIyBiu yse| uo mes | yeym papodal isnl @A 0Zg-101L0-12-2/85€-SOd
urebe

dn xoeq paxoid Apoinb Aued ayy ya| Asy) Ja)e pue sajnuiw Qg Inoge
10} BAIJOB 8J9M 921|0d “spiemisye Ajloys Aojdep, pip sieoO “ieq Jjed
-*sBbnup Buljeap osje sy ‘Bujunp

pue seb Buiybne| Buiye) JaAlp ‘enuae WaAe) uo Jybiu jse| jed
sinoy

Jo} Buinbie 15 J8x00H ‘p4 eluIblIA 1S unsny umop pue dn Bupjjem aiem
Aay ‘Buiuiow ayy Jo sanoy Apea || Z/L Z 1o} 9Yeme aw jday sidoad
asay] [SS] ¢00} aleymesie Buiiodal oq | pinoys “(Y8G£9SVH.L

JoJ) gSY HHL 0} pauoday "sejnuiw 0§ JNoge 10} 19a1)S J9X00H Uo weg

¥4

1S Alepunog
1S Alepunog

1S aleABN

1S aleAeN
SNoJID plouly

EVEYAVAEYN=Ze)
anuaAy 19AjeD

1S Alepunog

ajeis3 Alepunog

anuUBAY 18AIRD

BaNUBAY JoAeD

198.11G J9)00H

EIETY

120z 1snbny 1o} Aleip gSy - dnods) uoioy AHunwwo) sianeap) / VYL Alepunog

029-1010-1¢-091.€-S04
00-€610-12¢-98¢88-YOd

¥2609¢SHO

02¢9-1010-1¢-8569¢-S0O4

¢0¢/80/90 - 19¢.avO

1¢'80°G0 £2GS AVO

"80°G0 £255AVD ' 1280S0/¥SL- AV

1¢/80/10-2991-AVO

0¢g-1010-1¢-2/85€-S0O4

¥8G€ SV HH1

joy voday

OUM

00:1¢ 12/80/L0
00:0¢ 1¢/80/10

0€:€0 1¢/80/.0

0%:10 12/80/L0 3y

: (q\
og-Le _‘N\wo\moz

00:€} 1¢/80/50 n%d

: @®©
0€:¢0 1¢/80/50 o

0€:G0 1¢/80/10

0€:G0 1¢/80/10

00:¥0 1¢/80/10

00:00 12/80/10

00:€0 L¢/L0/LE

awi/e1eq



Badl | -zebew ‘Badl'g-zobew ‘Gad( z-zabew: ‘||e 1e a1eo0 )
.uop Ajjeal Aay x| swaag .o} AJUNWWOD JBY}0 pue 1 ay} ybnoiyy
aoe|d Bupje) usaq sey jey) Juaswabebus aAnonnsuod Ajuaiedde

8y} Y)m salenbs jey) moy Jeay o} paysalalu| ‘|1ouno) ay} uo ainssaid
ind pue  sainjeubis 109|090, pjnoys am abueyod oy BuiyiAue juem

M J| "aNUBAY LaAED a1 S193J1S oeq, Je 00| Jou op Aay} ples Aay |
‘uonoe Aue ae} 1o sanss| gSy ay} Jnoge Buiyihue op oy qol Jidyy jou
sl pies Aayy ‘AemAuy 1ybiu jse| spodal ay) [|e apew | Se Jaquinu Jay
106 Aay} moy ains JON "I NS @y} woudj |[eo e 1ob isnl ajim A\ [esuodsal]

‘Buip|ing Jno Buioey 8jiym paq Jamols ay} ojul 8jeurin
Apuanbauy Aay) se ainsodxa jJuadapul 83NISUOd piNod siy| dn jas
Apuaoal jeuln ay) sydsep spaq Jamoys 8y} ojul uoljeurin olignd ayy os|y

193 0LA
NN v1Ldo
MIAM 40 MHM L1 H71

:(dnoy

1sed ay} ur umop pausjainb Ajjesauab Buiney sbuiyy aydsep) Buinoys
pue ssauuayunJIp Jesjo pue Bup e} apixo snoJjiu pue Bulie|q sosia)s
ynm mou Jybu uonisod sy} si sIy) - seje|d Jaquinu Jeq Jed Jo |njpuey v

Arepunog/uanie)

40 JauI02 8y} uo ynis Bulobuo sy} J0j 029-1.010-12-9¥58€-SO4

“(s1yy Bunum papess

| @0UIS UBYE}) BpISINO AjoalIp 8USIS JUSLIND By} JOo Mojaq sydeiboloyd

Badl - L0bew ‘Badl-¢-|obew ‘Gadl z-|abew

‘sjuapisal [eo0]
spiemo) suopeBijqo JnoA |i|n} 0} axe) ||Im noA sdays ay) jo uoneue|dxa
uajlIm e Joj |nyajelb aq pinom | ‘ybiu Aepinjeg AlaAs siseq oljewa)sAs
B UO UdXe)} 8q 0} Spaau Uonoy ‘sieah G ised auj Ul Jaquiawal ued | awl
Aue 0} pasedwod se Buipnjoul UMOPXO0| JO pud 8y} ddUIs Ajjednjewelp
pajelolslap Sey }9aJ)s Siy) Uo uonenyis ay| ‘|nyaoelbsip si siyL

‘way) punoJe Buluaddey sem jeym
noge Buiyiou Ajginjosge pip s199140 8y} pue porad siyy Buunp anuaay
HaAeD Uo payied sem UeA Juswadlojug AsuyoeH e ‘A|Bulysiucisy

‘Buiobuo jualind

SI SIY} 4O yon|y 018 19a43s 8y} ul Bupjuu "Bunooy suioH ‘Bunnoys pue
punoJe Buljjiw ajdoad snosawnp "Bulie|q oiIsnw yium peod ay} uo payled
sJed JO SU9Zo(Q ‘MOPUIM INo apisino Ajjoalip pa||i Buieq suoojeq

9pPIXO0 SNOJJU 0G| 1SE9| Je papnjoul 8say] 19941 Alepunog/enuany
HaA|eD UO SUBYD 8y} JO 8J8M 1ey) JnoIABYaq [BI00SIUE JO

SOUBIS passaulm am (Aepung/Aepinies) 1ybiuo) we 4 pue g usamjag

SO9pPIA/SOIoUd L¢

1S Aiepunog
/ ®NUBAY LBARD

0¢g-1010-1¢-0¥58¢-S0O4d 00:G0 12/80/51

Page 230

1S Alepunog
/ ®NUBAY LBARD

1¢0¢/80/G1 €291AVO 00:2¢0 12/80/51

218y jeyuodey  ouym awi/e1eq

120z 1snbny 1o} Aleip gSy - dnods) uoioy AHunwwo) sianeap) / VYL Alepunog



Badl ‘BOJR

"'22'8€°61 1B G0-60-120Z @bew| ddysieypn ‘Badl abeseb ||IAIS punole palajjeos sia)siued apIxo souiu 00g Aleyewixoiddy
(1) 12°8€°61 18 G0-60-120C dbew| ddysyeym
‘Badl'1.Z'8€'61 e G0-60-120Z @bew| ddysjeym
GG'0£°90 1e G0-60-120Z 08pIA ddysieym
‘dw€Z°0€°90 ¥ G0-60-120Z 09pIA ddysjeym

(Joyjoue Jeye auo ‘sieq Jed omy) sBuiping pjodosT apisino Jeq Jed

sieq Je) ‘We §-g punoJe anuaAy LeAe)
sleq Jeo om|

bba usyos
e s| }s.l} suibus J1oy) Buinaal sdojs Jansoym, BuiAe|d dn payied ssjoiyaa
a|diyinw Sk [|om Se PaAeD Uo Yyoinyd 8y} apisino jybly e payuodal |

1202/80/0€ 6£Z QYD SI8D WOl dIsnw ‘1S 81ieAeN ‘jule|dwod asIoN
(papu0ooai Jou Qv ‘payodal) juiejdwod asioN

leg ien

1bBIU Jse| 18811 UNSNY Ul Smopuim uo Buibueq pue
S100p BUBOIY SEM OUM ‘SJ0DIN PUBL J8Y UJIM ‘UBLLIOM 8} JO 8UO SI SIY |

s1 @ouasald 921j0d Juallalap e aAloayaUl

MOY pue sawi} 8say) Je }9a.}s ay} uo alaydsowse sy} Jnoge 10|

e sAes j| ‘panjoAul asoy) Aq Ayundwi jo uondwnsse pue Ajaissiwiad jo
|oA3] |BS.INS JSOW|E UB S8jejSuowap Siy) 0S swieall) uoneywi buiflies
10} P3| pue Joys uaaq aney ajdoad ‘dn ybiy Apaid axe} 0y buihs
ypom si siyl yuiyy | [ww] aae paae) uo [1eq Jeo] Jayjoue papodal |
a)elapisuoou|

pue pnoj 0S "0S|e MOJ gn|9 Uo [1eq Jed] suo papodal jsnf oA,

‘loyooje BuiyuLp pue paam

Bupjows ‘sinoy jo ajdnoo jse| Jo} aisnw pnoj Buike|d a|qiuaAuod MING
pew "3s ybiy ayy uo yied Jed pooy

8y} 1e S}9|10} OU S,818Y) 9A31|8q },Ue) jolyel) pue siajeap Bnip 106 oA |

apIsinNo BuieuLN aJe sjey SIojies Ul USWIOM 9

12028129¥50 434

‘1s Alepunog | z'g'Lz wepg' | Aepuy asiou pue aoueqlnisip Buiioday
yonojy ui 306 0} sem J1 8yj1q 8soym

uosJad 8y} Joy @oualaal Qv e uaalb aakay] ao1jod ayy 0} §l payuodal
9A,| "UOOUJBYE SIU} JO BIPPIW By} Buunp sem 3 ‘) yum Aeme Buijoko usyy
pue (0g 0} 91 siejs 01 Joop 8y} apisino ybu) asnoH mojde] pue asnoH
Ainqung usamjaq sbuijiel ayy uo payled ayiq e Jo %00] ay} Aeme Buiino
Japuub ajbue ue yum asuelsip ay} ul (Muiyy |) usw 8)Iym OM] Mes |

JeqJe)

Badl'G0'60°21 ¥e ZZ-80-120z obew| ddysieyp

pdwrog 2G°€L 18 22-80-1.202 09pIA ddysieypn

dw 61" 1L0°00 18 22-80-1.20Z 09pIA ddysieyan

Bedlzy 160 18 G1-80-120z obew| ddysieym

2ISNW PNO| YlIm sieq
180 pue Bupjulp os|e pue usye) Buleq st XON ‘©nusAy LWeAe) Uo gSy

SO9pPIA/SOIoUd L¢

Py elquinjod
/Jed Jeo asnoH (IS

00:6} 1¢/60/50

peoy eiqun|o) 0€:G0 1¢/60/S0

Bny 0 L6 AvO
'029-1010-12-88€ L ¥-S09

BNUBAY LBAIED 00:¢0 L¢/80/0¢€
65°€C 12/80/6C

6¢:€l 1¢2/80/6¢C

1S Alepunog
BaNUBAY LaAeD

1S alieAeN 1202/80/0¢€ 6€C AVO L:00 L2/80/6¢C

1S auleneN 0¢-:00 L¢/80/6¢

1S Atepunog 12/8/8¢ 662, AVD 0¢€:¢c Le/80/8¢
JasnoH uopbuigqy

1S unsny 0€:¢0 1¢/80/2c

anuaAy 1oAeD 1Z Bny zz S5 ped

00:00 12/80/2¢ —

Page 23

MOY qnIo 65:€cC 12/80/1¢

SNUBAY J9AIED Iz bny Lz €608 AVO

Gv:€¢ 1L2/80/Le

anuaAY JaAe) 0l:€c Le/8o/Le

peoy elulblip 8¥:1¢ 12/80/L¢C

1S Alepunog 0€°1L0 Le/8o/Le

1¢0¢'8'L¢ 9¥S AvO

Bnvy Gl €215 AvO GG:/1 1¢/80/S1L

SN2JID plouly ¥7¥:60 12/80/S1

/ ©NUBAY LBA[RD

Bny 1 6621 AvO 61:G0 12/80/5)

218y jeyodey  ouym awi/e1eq

120z 1snbny 1o} Aleip gSy - dnods) uoioy AHunwwo) sianeap) / VYL Alepunog



Badl'Gt'12°80 ¥e £0-60-120Z obew| ddysieyp

Bad[-gebew ‘Badl-gabew anuaAy JaAje) ‘sbuljiel ayy 1suiebe dn paui| siewoisno Addey

SNoJBWINU YHIM SI8SUSdSIp 8pIX0 SNOJJIU pue Jeq Jed wegl 'y 19 8injold
anuaAy

UaAle) ‘siasuadsip apIXo SNoJjiu pue Jeq Jen wey | { 1G ainjold
uonduosep [|n} 4o} Juswle)s joedwi 0} Jajal - Jeq Jed

Jeq len

leq Je)

Badl-yabew
‘badl-cobewl’ 6adl-'zabew ‘Badl | abew

(wayy punole pmoud abie| yum
18UI0D) 192115 YBIH yoyipaloys Jeau) anuaAy LaAe) ‘1an0y abuey ul
slasuadsip apIXQ SNOJIN WEEZ'Z 1 8IN}0IdaNUSAY HaAED ‘SBPadIa|\
3oe|q Ul slasuadsip apIXO SNOJIN WegZ'Z € 9INjdIdanuaAy HaAe)
‘wegy’| 1e bl 1z injoldenuany HaAe) ‘wegy’| ye Jybly 1| 8injold
uonduosap [|n} 1o} Juswale)s 1oedwi 0 Jajal - Jeq Je)d
HaAleD uo abeuled ainjosqy
uonduosap ||n} Joj Juswalels Joedwi 0} Jajal - Jeq Jed
(Aep ayy ui Jaied Wody Jusploul) Jeq Jed
anuaAy LaAED / Jeg Je)
Jeq ied

SO3pIA/SOloyd Le

N

™

9V

aNUBAY WaAED 1G6 QYO 0L:+0 12/60/L0 %,

©

(ol
aNUBAY WaAED 1des / 152 avo 00:€0 12/60/L0
aNUBAY WaAED \des 2 G2/ avd ¥G:20 12/60/L0
aNUBAY HaAED 00-€610-12-25586-¥09 £1:20 12/60/L0
aNUBAY WaAeD 1des 2 95€ avO £0:10 12/60/L0
aNUBAY aAED 00:00 +2/60/L0
aNUBAY HaAED 029-1010-12-96¥2¥-S0O9 8G:20 12/60/90
aNUBAY HaAED 1des G 6LLL AVO 9€:22 12/60/S0
aNUaAY J1oABD 1des § 602 AYO v€:12 12/60/S0
218y jeyyodey  ouym awi/e1eq

120z 1snbny 1o} Aleip gSy - dnods) uoioy AHunwwo) sianeap) / VYL Alepunog



Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

D8

Cargo license hearing
1 message

m 3 April 2023 at 15:47
o: "licensing@hackney.gov.uk™ <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Cc

To whom it may concern:

| am a resident in the Shoreditch area and previously objected to the Cargo licence. After the overwhelming evidence presented
during the first licence hearing, | was troubled that the venue was allowed to rebrand and continue operating and am not at all
surprised that it has continued to be run with complete disregard for the law (i.e.: lax security, withholding of information from the
authorities and failure to observe licensing conditions).

A venue of this size should not be permitted to operate in the middle of a densely populated city and if it is allowed to continue
operating the owners will simply continue to break the terms of their licensing conditions in order to maximise profits. They have
been given two chances and have made no attempt to run their operation lawfully which has not only been highly detrimental to the
area and residents living in the vicinity but also encourages similar businesses to bend the rules.

| respectfully request that the licence be permanently revoked and that the venue be used for positive purposes that will benefit the
area.

Best,

Page 233



Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

D9
"The Viaduct, The Arches, 83 Rivington Street, London EC2A 3AY"

1 message

S — 3 Aprl 2023 at 16:43
o: 'licensing@hackney.gov.uk” <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

c: I

Dear Sirs

| am writing in support of The Viaduct license review.

| am a Boundary resident and | previously objected to the Cargo license.

| am appalled, but not surprised, to discover that the rebranded venue, under the same ownership is continuing to fail in their
obligations to meet the licensing objectives.

Many local residents like myself suffer so much from this venue (and in general, The Shoreditch Bars Group) with loud and

disruptive anti social behaviour, physical attacks and drug dealing/taking all increasing in my local area, including leaving objects

associated with drugs lying around for children to find, all because of this venue and also because of the unscrupulous owners of

the venue.

This venue is known for having lax security.

This venue has made a habit of withholding of information from the authorities.

This venue has consistently failed to observe licensing conditions, which is well documented and detailed by the local police.

An excerpt from a police statement states:
"Mr Khan and business were given a second chance after the initial review hearing with it being settled by Hackney Council at
appeal. The violation of imposed conditions demonstrates a blatant disregard to the subcommittee. its members and the
llcensing legislation. It also illustrates again how the business puts financial gain over the safety of the public. Police are of the
opinion that how could the venue possibly be trusted to adhere to any conditions if they chose to ignore the ones Imposed on

them during the process of revocation review and appeal.”

The above extract from a police statement clearly shows the venue's blatant disregard for the local community, who were forced to
expressed our serious concerns during the previous review.

The Viaduct has failed to observe and abode by the below licensing objections:

* the prevention of crime and disorder
* the prevention of public nuisance

* public safety

* the protection of children from harm.

Thus, | am writing to request that The Viaducts license be permanently revoked.

Regards

Boundary Resident

Page 234



Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

D10
Cargo/ Viaduct - further licencing review : PLEASE REVOKE

1 message

3 April 2023 at 15:38
o: "Licensing (Shared Mailbox)" <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

RE: THE VIADUCT 83 Rivington Street EC2A 3AY // LICENCE REVIEW

Dear Hackney Licensing team,

As a resident on Rivington Street, | would like to support the case, brought by our local police force, for
revoking the license given to THE VIADUCT in view of the further breach of the licensing conditions
agreed between the venue, the Police and Hackney Council.

There has been a long history of public disorder at the venue which has had an on-going impact on our
neighbourhood (public disorder, noise, fouling, late night fights & brawls, crime, assaults, etc).

This public disorder led the police to build a case for the venue’s licence to be revoked less than two years
ago.

The Police is doing their very best to prevent crime and disorder in our neighbourhood.

Preventing crime and disorder is a matter for all — especially for business owners whose licence has
been under threat on the grounds of fuelling crime and disorder in the area.

THE VIADUCT (formerly known as CARGO ) have failed to prevent yet another disorderly situation,
despite having been given a chance by the Police and Hackney Council less than two years ago.

In a bid to protect our community, prevent public nuisance, prevent further crime and disorder and
protect our local police force, may | please ask Hackney’s licensing team to observe the strictest
position with regards to this venue’s licence.

As a resident, | share the Police’s view, that the venue’s licence should be revoked.

THE VIADUCT’s breach of the licensing agreement poses a clear and present danger to our
neighbourhood, causing much upset to its residents, Hackney street cleaning team and the local police.

Thank you very much for your consideration in thiRagea28matter,



Best wishes,

[l Rivington Street
London EC2A [}

Page 236



Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

D11
"The Viaduct, The ARches, 83 Rivington Street, London EC2A 3AY"

1 message

m 3 April 2023 at 15:34
o: "licensing@hackney.gov.uk” <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

To Hackney Licensing,
| am writing in support of the police's request to revoke the license of this venue in Shoreditch for several reasons.

In terms of the prevention of crime/disorder, this venue has been trouble for years. As Cargo there were always large crowds of
people late into the night and violence often ensued. This was particularly prevalent after the reopening post-Covid. As a neigbour
it was quite terrifying to know this was happening on a regular basis, particularly the knife crime and drug use. This is one of the
reasons their license was revoked. Unfortunately, the owner was allowed to reopen and rebrand as The Viaduct. This owner is well
known as he owns 17 venues in Shoreditch, all of which have a dodgy reputation. Clearly things have not improved, proven by the
man who suffered a severe head injury in a fight inside the Viaduct, with only one SIA on duty (and who did nothing about it, not
even calling the police when it happened). As the venue has not held up their end of the bagain made with the police as a condition
of reopening they should lose their license.

This venue is a public nuisance. Rivington Street is regularly filled with drug paraphenalia, noise, trash, violence, urine, vomit etc,
due to this venue.

The public and residents of the area do not feel safe with this venue present. Try walking down Rivington Street Thursday night
through Saturday night after midnight and you will turn around and walk the other way. It looks like Sodom and Gommorah.
Although the owner had hoped his new venue would attract a better crowd, this has not been the case.

| have a child, as do many other residents in the area, and we believe this venue should be removed to protect them from harm.
This venue, and the other venues of the Shoreditch Bar Group, definitely make this area less safe for children. They have to see
the detritus associated with drinking, drugs and violence, people passed out in the street, and have a harder time sleeping due to
the noise.

For all the above reasons | strongly hope the council will revoke the licence of The Viaduct and restore some sanity to the
Shoreditch Triangle.

Yours sincerely,
Bateman's Row

(I do not consent to my name being released)
Please inform me when there is a license review hearing,

Page 237



Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

D12
The Viaduct, The Arches, 83 Rivington Street, London EC2A 3AY

1 message

3 April 2023 at 14:55

eply-Tlo:
To: "Licensing ared Mailbox)" <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Dear Hackney Licensing,
| write to support the police's application for a review of the Viaduct's license.

This venue is one of the most notorious in the entire neighbourhood, in its old guise as Cargo and now as Viaduct. With the new
branding and style, it seems little has changed and yet again someone has been seriously hurt as a direct result of the venue.

The issue isn't only the venue. The *operator* clearly contributes to the degredation of each of the four main licensing objectives,
partciularly crime and disorder, public safety and public nuisance. Cargo, run by the same operator, was found to have been a
detriment to all the objectives. The new venue has already put someone in the hospital. The common link? The operator. And
this must be looked at in the context of all the operator's other venues. These are some of the other most notorious in the
neighborhood. For example their bar The Shoreditch regularly has overwhelming queues of obviously inebriated punters late into
the night. They messily spill out right underneath our bedroom windows. I've personally seen underage girls offered free drinks to
come into the Sunset Bar on Curtain Road, also run by the same operator. I've seen girls passed-out outside the Hoxton Pony in
the middle of the afternoon (I have photos). Enough is enough.

This venue puts public safety at risk simply by being owned and operated by this operator. | support the police and believe the
license should be terminated.

!atemans !ow

EC2A}

Page 238



Licensing (Shared Mailbox) <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

D13
The Viaduct, The Arches, 83 Rivington Street, EC2A 3AY

1 message

3 April 2023 at 14:21
o: "Licensing ared Mailbox)" <licensing@hackney.gov.uk>

Dear Hackney Licensing,

| would like to object in the strongest possible terms to any license being granted to The Viaduct (formerly Cargo). This Shoreditch
Bar Group venue is toxic and has long been one of the venues in the Shoreditch area to be a source of trouble, disorder, violence,
crime, drug related incidents etc.

The license should be refused due to the following livening objectives.

* the prevention of crime and disorder
* the prevention of public nuisance

* public safety

* the protection of children from harm

Regards,

Holywell Lane,

EC2A}

Page 239



APPENDIX E

We are Eden Gardens Entertainment Ltd, the former operator of the Viaduct, The Arches, 83
Rivington Street, London EC2A 3AY. We have read the Police application for review.

We are making this application as “Premises Licence Holder” and/or “Other Party” depending on the
status of a recently submitted application by Simmons Group under their subsidiary Simmons
Waterloo Limited, for a Transfer of the Premises Licence for the above premises, said Transfer
Application having immediate effect. The reasons for the Transfer are set out below and we would
take this opportunity to confirm that it has in no way been brought to undermine the Review
process

Eden Gardens Entertainment Ltd

A high-level meeting was convened on 2 March 2023 to consider the future of the premises. The
directors have also investigated the incidents highlighted by the Police in their Review Application,
with the specific site operations team, and have made enquiries with all staff and key
management personnel referred to in the review papers. From the content of the Review
Application, the owners of Eden Gardens Entertainment Ltd can see that trust has broken down
between our management team and the Police.

Given the above, Eden Gardens Entertainment Ltd has decided on the following steps;:-

1. The premises shall immediately stop trading.

2. The premises was put on the market, to be sold to a third party at arms length. Eden
Gardens Entertainment Ltd is to have no further involvement with this site.

3. Eden Gardens Entertainment Ltd has considered the mental health and financial
vulnerabilities of all staff at the premises.

4. Notwithstanding the immediate closure of the premises, Eden Gardens Entertainment has
made every effort to retain staff with job security where possible.

5. Key management personnel involved with the Review incidents have parted with the
company and will no longer be part of the operation or part of SBG operations.

6. Following a short marketing campaign, Simmons Group were selected as the most suitable
operator to take over the premises due to their successful track record of operating licensed
premises around Central London, and in Hackney itself.

7. There is now a binding legal agreement in place between Simmons Group and Eden Gardens
Entertainment Ltd for the sale of the premises.

8. To show commitment to the Council, Police and to Simmons, we have transferred the
licence to Simmons with immediate effect.

9. At cost to Eden Gardens Entertainment, the premises will remain closed until determination
of the Review at hearing.

10. It is our intention to preserve the jobs of all employees as a result of the sale to Simmons
Group.

The promotion of the licensing objectives

We would ask you to find that the actions taken by Eden Gardens Entertainment Ltd, as set out in
this representation, address directly the concerns expressed by the Police. Further, we submit that
the licence and its conditions are already suitable to promote the licensing objectives, including the
Prevention of Crime and Disorder (we will provide detailed submissions on this for the consideration
of the Members at the upcoming Review Hearing); but, given the breakdown in trust, a clean break
and a new experienced operator taking over the premises will enable the licence to continue in
place.

Page 240



Having carried out due diligence on Simmons Group, their excellent track record, experience and
professionalism there is every reason to believe they will promote the Licensing
Objectives in the future.

Specific Issues Raised by the Police

Given the incidents highlighted by the Police in their Application for Review, we will be providing
detailed written submissions for consideration by the Members at the upcoming Review hearing,
addressing same; however, should the Members be minded to find that the Transfer of the Premises
Licence addresses their concerns, our submissions on the day may be limited. We will be guided by
the Members as to what they will find most helpful in making their determination.

Page 241



APPENDIX F

Simmons (Formerly The Viaduct),83 Rivington Street, EC2A 3AY

Scale: 1:1250 at A4

F,!;a@@d Mgpeciﬁed please specify copyright statement
Monday, July 3, 2023 email:




SIMMONS (FORMERLY VIADUCT): PREMISES LICENCE HOLDER’S EVIDENCE PACK

CONTENTS PAGE

Witness statement of Nick Campbell

- Exhibit 1 Exchanged Sale Contract — Front Page (Buyer)
- Exhibit 1 Exchanged Sale Contract — Front Page (Seller)
- Exhibit 2 Photographs of Décor

- Exhibit 2 Photographs of Décor (2)

- Exhibit 2 Photographs of Décor (3)

- Exhibit 3 Simmons Anti-Drink Spiking & Welfare Policy
- Exhibit 4 Email of 14 April 2023

- Exhibit 5 Simmons Rivington Street Drugs Policy

- Exhibit 6 Simmons Rivington Street Dispersal Policy

- Exhibit 7 Simmons Rivington Street Security Policy

- Exhibit 8 Simmons Rivington Street Outside Management Policy

Shield Licensing Impact Assessment Viaduct (Simmons)

Page 243



Witness: Nicholas Campbell
Statement no.: 1st

Exhibit: NC1

Dated: 30 June 2023

FIRST WITNESS STATEMENT OF
NICHOLAS CAMPBELL
ON BEHALF OF THE PREMISES LICENCE HOLDER

, Nicholas Campbell, of |G /L. SAY

AS FOLLOWS:

1.

| am one of the directors of Simmons Waterloo Limited (“Simmons”), the new
holder of premises licence number (LBH-PRE-T-0480) relating to The Arches, 83
Rivington Street, London EC2A 3AY (the “Premises”). Until recently the venue
operated as “Viaduct” under the previous licence holder Eden Gardens
Entertainment Ltd (part of the SBG Group). The premises is currently closed as a
voluntary temporary measure. | am also the founder and Chief Executive Officer
of the Simmons Group. | am making this statement following a review application
brought by the Metropolitan Police (the “Police”) originally brought against the

previous licence holder.

Save for the current transaction relating to the Premises | have no business or
other relationship with the previous licence holder or its Directors or the SBG
Group of which it forms a part. | am neither a director or shareholder of the former
licence holder or its parent group and have no legal or financial interest in it. Our

business interests are distinct and separate.

Page 244



Background

3. Simmons Waterloo Limited is a part of a group of companies which comprise
Simmons Group. | opened the first Simmons in King’s Cross in 2013 with the vision
of creating safe, fun and relaxed environment for young professionals to enjoy an
affordable night out in Central London. There are now twenty-six Simmons venues,

all located within central London, which employ approximately 550 staff.

4, Until recently the Simmons Group presence in the London Borough of Hackney
was limited to a single site at 233A Old Street, London EC1V 9HE, which we took
over in January 2021. That site has proved popular with people who live and work
in Shoreditch. Looking to grow the business in the local area, | began negotiations
with Shoreditch Bar Group to acquire the Hoxton Pony, located at 104-108 Curtain
Road, London EC2A 3AH and the assignment of the venue’s long lease was
completed on 3 April 2023. During these negotiations | was asked if Simmons
Group was also interested in acquiring the Premises located at 83 Rivington Street
(which Shoreditch Bar Group also owned via their company, Eden Gardens
Entertainment Ltd). | have always thought that it was an ideal site for Simmons
but, with an ongoing review application, | was understandably hesitant.
Nevertheless, it was agreed that Simmons would take the lease of the Premises
subject to the premises licence not being unduly restricted beyond its current
form, which is already modest in its scope. The front and back pages of the binding

legal documentation (with signatures) are at Exhibit 1.

5. As part of the legal agreement, an application to transfer the premises licence from
Eden Gardens Entertainment Ltd (“Eden”) to Simmons was lodged on 24 March
2023 and has now been granted. It is significant that the Metropolitan Police, who
had the right to object to the transfer application if they believed it risked
undermining the crime and disorder licensing objective, did not raise any
objection. However, if the premises licence is revoked or unduly fettered, the
agreement at Exhibit 1 provides that it is transferred back to Eden (or its nominee)

to appeal the decision if it so wishes. | wish to avoid this scenario. Therefore, for

Page 245



the purposes of the review hearing Simmons is the licence holder and will remain

so assuming the premises licence remains a viable one.

Proposed Operation

6. The clientele and atmosphere within Simmons Group venues is completely
different to that of Shoreditch Bar Group’s venues. As can be seen from Exhibit 2
the décor of Simmons Group venues is kitsch and quirky and the atmosphere is
fun and friendly with pop music being played from various decades rather than
more ‘hardcore’ dance music. Patron welfare is at the heart of what we do and a
copy of the proposed policy is at Exhibit 3. Given this safe environment, it is
therefore not surprising that almost two-thirds of patrons are female. We do not
attract a crowd of “trouble-makers” and none of our other venues have caused
any significant issues with police who we continue to enjoy a close working

relationship with.

7. Whilst, as | mention above, Simmons Group only has two operating venues in the
London Borough of Hackney, it does have experience of running venues in very
busy parts of London close to residential premises — for example it has seven
venues in Soho alone, most of which are in Westminster’s West End Cumulative

Impact Zone and operate close to residential homes.

8. Should the premises licence not being unduly restricted beyond its current form
so the lease assignment can be completed, there will be considerable staff
recruitment. | have budgeted for approximately 30 staff at the Premises and 3
additional staff at head office. Whilst difficult to quantify, | estimate that
approximately 15 jobs would additionally be created at the third party suppliers to
the Premises. | take great pride in the training that we provide staff members and

we support their development and career progression whenever possible.

Page 246



Discussions with the Metropolitan Police

9. | believe strongly in working in partnership with the authorities. On entering the
conditional contract to acquire the Premises, | immediately requested a video call
with PC Sian Giles and PS Leon McCallister, Hackney’s police licensing officers, to
discuss the above. Together with my solicitor, Niall McCann of Joelson Law, we
spoke on 4 April 2023. We assured them that Simmons would not be looking to
vary the hours or conditions on the Premises Licence any time soon and could
comply with the current conditions that are in place on the licence. The meeting
was positive and it was agreed that | would send an email confirming what had
been said so they could discuss matters (including whether the review application
could be withdrawn) with their superiors. | duly sent an email on 14 April 2023

(see Exhibit 4).

10. Whilst the Police are still considering their position, as indicated above, | was
heartened that no objection was received to the transfer of the licence to my
company, thus indicating that they do not consider that Simmons holding the
licence would undermine the crime prevention objective. The original review was
predicated on a loss of confidence in the former licence holder. In contrast, the
police clearly do not have any reason to doubt their justified confidence in how
my company will run the Premises. In other words, the foundation of the police’s

review application is no longer present.

11. | can confirm, and undertake, not to transfer the licence back to the Shoreditch
Bar Group should the licence remain in its current form. In any event the police

would object to any such transfer application.

The Representations from Interested Parties

12. As Simmons is now the premises licence holder | recognise that it is our
responsibility to address the concerns of those that have raised representations,

albeit | cannot comment on the alleged failings of previous management. Several

Page 247



13.

14.

of the allegations regarding breaches of conditions by the previous licence holder
are concerning. Whatever the rights or wrongs of those allegations, and | am not
in a position to adjudicate, such non-compliance would be completely contrary to

everything that the Simmons Group stands for.

In regard to residential concerns, | note that many of the complaints relate to a
time when the Premises had much later operating hours and was more of a

nightclub style operation under the trading name “Cargo”.

To avoid duplication, rather than address each representation individually, | will

respond to the issues raised.

Concerns with the Management Team

15.

Given the above, | hope that the concerns with the Management Team or non-
compliance with conditions are no longer relevant. | reiterate that, if the premises
licence is not adversely fettered by the licensing sub-committee, Simmons is
legally obliged to complete the assignment of the lease and the Viaduct
Management Team will have no input into the operation of the Premises
whatsoever. This is not simply a rebranding. If Simmons acquires the lease of the
Premises it will be a completely different and less impactful offering and
ownership, in keeping with the other venues in the Simmons Group. We take a
very serious approach to compliance with our licence conditions and promotion of

the licensing objectives.

Previous breaches of conditions

16.

Before proposing to acquire the Premises, | studied the premises licence closely
(as well as the review papers) and read/watched all of the publicly available
coverage of the previous review processes. | am confident that my team can
adhere to all the existing conditions which are considerable in number. On joining

our team, and at regular intervals, staff are tested on their knowledge of the

5
Page 248



conditions on the venue’s premises licence. An independent company called
Shield Associates (run by senior ex-Metropolitan Police officers with distinguished
records in the regulation of licensed premises in often challenging locations) carry
out ad hoc inspections of venues within the Simmons Group to ensure compliance.
In addition, Shield Associates have also visited the Premises and considered our
site-specific policies and have supplied an expert report concluding that, in their
professional opinion, with Simmons running this venue the licensing objectives

will, more likely than not, be promoted. | will ensure that is the case.

Criminal Activity/Anti-Social Behaviour

17. The surrounding criminal activity and anti-social behaviour described in the
representations is appalling but regrettably symptomatic of an area where there
is a prevalence of late-night venues playing ‘edgy’ music to a largely young male
population which, in some cases, have management teams which are more
interested in short-term profits than upholding the licensing objectives and long-
term viability. The Simmons Group is well established and | am not prepared to
risk the reputation of the company as a whole by operating such a venue. | would
hope that, if Simmons was allowed to operate from the Premises with the modest
framework hours currently permitted, this part of Shoreditch could see a move
back to a fun and safe destination rather than somewhere best avoided in the
evenings. With the particular offer we provide, those frequenting Simmons Group
premises are not those who are interested in violence, drug taking (more of which

below) and anti-social behaviour.

Drug Taking
18. Whilst the dealing and taking of drugs has never been a significant problem at any

of the venues in the Simmons Group, a zero-tolerance policy is adopted, a copy of

which is at Exhibit 5.

Page 249



Problems with Dispersal

19. When leaving venues of the Simmons Group, patrons want to go home quickly and
safely. They do not tend to migrate to other late-night Premises in our long
experience. However, every venue has its different challenges in this regard and
please see at Exhibit 6 a copy of a Dispersal Policy which has been specifically
prepared for the Premises. | welcome any comments as to how it can be improved.

Lax Security

20. A well-managed venue is only as good as the SIA door supervisors it employs. |
intend to use a reputable SIA company. A copy of the draft Security Policy is at
Exhibit 7 with copies of the Outdoor Smoking and Management Policy at Exhibit
8.

Conclusion

21. | accept that the Premises has a regrettable history under the previous licence
holder of being associated with incidents of crime and disorder and public
nuisance, especially before last review hearing when it operated as Cargo into the
early hours of the morning. However, | do not accept that the Premises is incapable
of being operated as a licensed venue within framework hours in a manner which
upholds the licensing objectives.

22. | passionately believe that Simmons can trade from the Premises with the current

hours and onerous conditions on the premises licence without adding to the
problems already experienced by the police and local residents. By way of
contrast, Simmons Old Street (which is permitted to open to 02.00hrs at
weekends) has never had any complaints from either the Police or local residents
and no Simmons Group venue has ever been subject to a review application

brought by the Police or Licensing Authority or Environmental Health officers.

7
Page 250



23.

24.

25.

Rather, | believe that a female friendly venue in this part of Shoreditch can attract
a different less-troublesome clientele to the area and hopefully reduce some of

the anti-social behaviour being experienced more generally.

| have been advised by my lawyers that a review application is not the correct legal
vehicle for revoking a licence merely because it is within a cumulative impact area.
In agreeing to a settlement of the previous appeal following the revocation of
Cargo’s licence, the Council has already accepted that the Premises can operate to
framework hours within the cumulative impact policy area. | intend to prove the
Council’s judgement was the correct one by the manner in which | operate the

venue.

| trust that the above will have eased some of the concerns raised and | respectfully
ask if the police can re-consider withdrawing the review application or at least take
a more neutral approach given the radical change of circumstances since the
licence was transferred to my company and the reasons why the review
application was lodged. In short, the change in operator has already addressed the

primary concerns raised in the police’s review application.

If any interested party would like to contact me personally to discuss matters in

more detail, they are welcome to contact me at nick@simmonsbar.co.uk and | will

reply as soon as possible.

STATEMENT OF TRUTH

| believe the facts stated in this withess statement are true.

Nicholas Campbell

7/3/2023

Page 251



EXHIBIT 1

Formula B
18.15

]
I
DATED

24 March 2023

CONTRACT FOR THE SALE OF LEASEHOLD LAND
at
Arches 461-466 Kingsland Viaduct 83 Rivington Street London EC2A 3AY

Between

EDEN GARDENS ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

and

SIMMONS WATERLOO LIMITED

and

NIGHTLIGHT LEISURE LIMITED

Page 252



Signed by Shmile Khan for and on
behalf of Eden Gardens
Entertainment Limited

Signed by Nick Campbell
for and on behalf of Simmons
Waterloo Limited

Signed by Nick Campbell
for and on behalf of Nightlight
Leisure Limited

29

Page 253

Director

Director

Nicholas Campbell

-

Director

Nicholas Campbell



EXHIBIT 1

Page 254




Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



EXHIBIT 3

ANTI-DRINK SPIKING & WELFARE POLICY

Simmons Bars endeavours to ensure the safety of all of our guests when on our premises
and the following measures have been implemented to minimise the risk of drink spiking
and to ensure that measures are in place to respond to any potential drink spiking or
vulnerable persons incidents. The below list is not exhaustive and is regularly reviewed
with added measures implemented where needed.

PREVENTION MEASURES:

e All bags are searched upon entry.

e Guests will be randomly searched upon entry, both males and females, including
checks of wallets and pockets.

e Regular toilet checks are completed by security and staff members at minimum
intervals of 1 hour.

e Designated floor staff will clear any unattended drinks.

e Any guests seen to be intoxicated, specifically vulnerable guests, are to be taken to
a safe place and monitored by security and management to ensure they are
coherent and aware of what is going on around them. Ambulances will be called for
any guests that are showing signs of suspected drug use or drink spiking.

e The 'Ask for Angela’ scheme will be in place and posters will be on display. Staff
will be trained on the scheme and how to respond to any ‘Ask for Angela’ call.

e All General Managers will be first aid trained.

e Extensive CCTV will be in operation throughout the premises.

e SlA registered door supervisors will be on duty during key shifts, and in line with
premises licence requirements, to ensure customers are safe and well managed.

e Ongoing and regular staff training will be implemented through management and
FLOW training.

e An online incident reporting portal is in use at all times. Thorough and detailed
incident reports are written if any sort of incident occurs.

e Allincidents of suspected spiking will be thoroughly investigated and documented.

e Drink toppers available behind the bar for customers that would like them.

e This policy will be regularly reviewed.

Page 259



RESPONSE TO POTENTIAL DRINK SPIKINGS:

e If any member of Simmons staff is notified of a potential drink spiking they will
immediately notify the Duty Manager.

e The Duty Manager will look after the victim, assess their condition and
determine if medical help is needed. If medical help is required the emergency
services will be contacted immediately.

e Following on from the report, Security will be immediately tasked with looking
for the potential offender or potential witnesses.

e Any evidence (e.g. a drink that is suspected to have been spiked) is to be kept
safe, logged appropriately and handed over to emergency services if required.

e Police services will be notified of any incident alongside other necessary
emergency services (999 Called).

e Any potential offenders will be detained by the venue’s security team, if it is
safe to do so, until Police services arrive or until CCTV has been reviewed.

e Witness statements to be taken from patrons that are with the victim or have
witnessed the incident, these statements will be logged on our online incident
reporting portal.

e CCTV footage will be reviewed and a time lined incident report written and
made available to Police upon request.

e CCTV footage will be downloaded onto a suitable and viewable format for
police to view on request.

MEASURES FOR VULNERABLE PERSONS:

e A Welfare Officer will be employed by the venue for the first 200 customers, for
every 200 customers after this an additional Welfare Officer will be employed. At
least 50% of these officers will be female.

e Any persons that are seen to be intoxicated and needing assistance are to be cared
for by venue team until a safe way home is found or emergency services attend.

e Venue staff and security are tasked with checking on anyone leaving that looks like
they may potentially need assistance or are leaving on their own. If guests are
leaving on their own they will be advised to do so with a person that they know.

e Guests who are seen to be in the venue on their own or have been separated from
their friends will be checked upon by venue or security staff.

e All Venue staff will be trained on 'Ask for Angela’.

e All Venue staff will undertake WAVE training on our E-Learning platform.

e Venue Management will attend council or police organised WAVE training sessions
(or similar), where available.

Page 260



Regular toilet checks will be carried out by staff and security throughout the night

to check for vulnerable people.
Toilet attendants will be employed from 9pm on Thursday, Friday & Saturday.

All Security who are on duty at the venue will be SIA registered and employed from

a reputable company.

Page 261



EXHIBIT 4

From: Nick Campbe!|

Sent: Friday, April 14, 2023 2:38 PM
To: Sian.Giles@met.police.uk; Leon.D.McCallister@met.police.uk
Subject: Simmons/The Viaduct

Hey Sian/Leon,
| hope this email finds you well.

I'm just writing to follow up on our call on Tuesday the 4th of April regarding our proposed plan to
acquire The Viaduct on Rivington Street. | would like to take this opportunity to thank you for your
time and insight during our conversation. We found your advice extremely helpful and it was great
to gain a better understanding of the perspective of the Police, licensing and the local residents.

| would really like to reinforce the sentiment that we (Simmons Bars) are a highly experienced,
knowledgeable and professional operator who take our responsibility as a licensee extremely
seriously. We firmly believe that we are the perfect operator to take on The Viaduct and believe we
can confidently rebuild the trust of the police, licensing authorities, local residents and businesses
alike.

As you may already know, Simmons Bars has been operating in Central London for over 10 years and
currently has 26 sites in prime locations, many of which are in high-stress areas and special policy
zones; including a site in Hackney (located next to Old Street underground station). We have a
proven track record of operating successfully and responsibly throughout the city, building strong,
positive relationships with local authorities, communities and residents. Our team of experienced
professionals is dedicated to creating a safe, enjoyable and welcoming environment for our guests
whilst upholding all four of the licensing objectives. We understand the importance of working in
partnership with the police and other agencies to ensure that our premises are well-run and
compliant at all times.

We believe that The Viaduct represents an exciting opportunity for us to expand our business while
also contributing positively to the local community. We understand the history of the site and are
fully committed to working closely with local stakeholders to ensure that we operate in a way that is
responsible, safe, and respectful of the needs and concerns of the community.

As | mentioned in the call, we would love the opportunity to come to an agreed position prior to the
upcoming hearing and ideally come to a place where the review itself could be withdrawn (if this is
possible). We believe that the transfer of the premises license and the acquisition of the lease has
resolved the primary concern of the police (in regards to the previous operators) and therefore
mitigates the need for the review process to continue.

| think it would be really useful if we could catch up again once Niall McCann (of Joelsons) has sent
across further information regarding our operations and plans to see if there is a position or
agreement we could come to.

If you have any further questions please don’t hesitate to get in touch.

Kind Regards

Page 262



Nick Campbell | Founder & CEO

CAUTION EXTERNAL EMAIL:This message originated outside the organisation. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Page 263



EXHIBIT 5

DRUGS POLICY

Drugs in this country are controlled by the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971. We are concerned
with the taking and selling of drugs on the property and any relevant activity. It is also
worth remembering that people also take drugs prior to entering the property, but may
then mix them with alcohol, which can have a very serious effect on the taker.

Licensees do not have the power to search anyone and even if they did they would not
necessarily know for certain that what was found was illegal. The emphasis then has to be
on identifying suspicious behavioural patterns. Preventative measures, including the
monitoring of the toilets, covering smooth surfaces and keeping a good eye out for the
obvious will greatly assist. Making it known that the licensee is being proactive against
drug use.

Presumption: ZERO TOLERANCE

DRUG POLICY & PROCEDURES:

e Display relevant notices on search policy.

e Liaise with local Police on regular basis.

e Drugs to be stored in the main safe on premises and staff trained on proper use
and reporting.

e Ensure Door Staff carry out regular searches on the door.

e Door staff to check toilet cubicles as often as possible but not at set times.

e Any person suspected of having drugs must be reported to the duty manager who
will take the necessary actions.

e Anyone refusing to be searched will not be permitted entry to the premises.

e Any searches conducted for suspicion of drug use are to be carried out by security
in front of a CCTV camera with the duty manager present.

e Any drugs found or confiscated must be sealed in a ‘Drug Seizure Bag’ and placed
in the house safe.

e Any drugs placed in the house safe must be recorded on the incident log. Records
must show date, seizure bag number and name of the person who found it.

e The duty manager must be informed of seizures and any persons with more than
personal use held whilst police are contacted.

Page 264



Staff suspecting any customer of taking or dealing drugs should inform
management or security or Police, immediately.

The manager will be responsible for handling the drugs until police arrive on the
scene.

Staff who commit an offence under the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971 or who witnesses
such an act on the premises and withholds evidence is liable to disciplinary
procedures, which they should be made aware of prior to starting work.

Any pedestrians attempting to sell Nitrous Oxide balloons will be moved away from
the premises and reported to the police via the SNOW radio. Anyone seen
interacting with sellers or inhaling Nitrous Oxide balloons will not be admitted
entry to the premises. A zero-tolerance approach will be taken in regards to
Nitrous Oxide.

Page 265



EXHIBIT 6

DISPERSAL POLICY

This dispersal policy has been created in accordance with the licensing objectives of The
London Borough of Hackney to ensure that customers departing from the premises located
at 83 Rivington St, London EC2A 3AY, operating as ‘Simmons Rivington Street’, do so in a
safe, orderly and peaceful manner, without causing any disturbance to nearby residents and
businesses.

This policy outlines the specific resources and tactics that will be deployed by the
management and security team to manage the dispersal process and maintain public safety.

This policy is based on the requirements set out in the Hackney licensing policy, which

mandates that licensed premises take reasonable measures to prevent public nuisance and
disorderly behaviour, especially during closing times.

ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES:

o The most senior manager on duty or the Head of Security will direct the security and
management team to their allocated positions for dispersal.

o Security will be positioned both internally and externally to monitor the number of
guests leaving the venue, ensure that the toilets are free from patrons, and direct
customers away from the venue in a quiet and orderly manner.

e Managers will oversee the internal and external dispersal process, and assist with the
dispersal as required.

o All staff will remain in radio contact until instructed to sign off by the most senior
manager on duty or Head of Security.

COMMUNICATION:

o All staff members will be expected to follow the instructions of the most senior
manager on duty or head of security during dispersal.

o All staff members will remain in radio contact until instructed to sign off by the GM
or head of security.

Page 266



POSITION ALLOCATION:

e Security & managers will be allocated a dispersal position at the start of the shift. They
will move to that position when instructed by most senior manager on duty or the
Head of Security.

DISPERSAL PLAN:

e Once instructed by the most senior manager on duty or the Head of Security all
security and managers will take their allocated positions (see position map below).

o All security staff will wear high visibility vests throughout dispersal.

e The internal manager will oversee the location of internal security and assist with
internal dispersal as required.

o Once the internal area is clear a member of security positioned internally will check
that the toilets are free from patrons. Once this is confirmed the remaining security
will assist with external dispersal.

o The front door manager will control the area immediately outside the main exit,
directing security as necessary and directing customers away from the venue towards
Shoreditch High Street and the nearest transport links (see transport information
below).

o Once outside the venue security staff will continuously walk and talk customers away
from the venue, directing them towards the nearest transport links.

o Security will ensure patrons are not loitering outside the venue or in the surrounding
area, especially under the railway arch immediately outside the front door/main exit,
at the crossroads of Rivington Street/Shoreditch High Street and outside Rivington
Place.

o Throughout dispersal security will be tasked with ensuring customers are keeping
noise levels to a minimum and are continuously moving away from the venue.

o Security will consistently provide transport information to guests as they leave the
venue, including the night tube and night bus routes.

o Managers will remain with security to oversee dispersal and instruct as necessary.

REVIEW & REVISION:

e The dispersal policy will be reviewed annually or whenever there are significant
changes to the licensing regulations or operational procedures.

o Any feedback or suggestions from staff or customers will be considered during the
review process.

e The policy will be revised as necessary to ensure that it remains effective and
compliant with the licensing regulations.

Page 267



DISPERSAL POSITION ALLOCATION:

The following is an example of security & manager allocated dispersal positions for peak
trading occasions. Both Management and Security will move into their position for dispersal
15 minutes before the terminal hour of the venue. Security will stay in their final positions for

at least 30 minutes after the terminal hour of the venue, or until the patrons from the venue
have dispersed.

INITIAL & INTERNAL DISPERSAL

This is a position map and showing the initial positions that are to be taken at the start of

dispersal, 15 minutes before the terminal hour of the venue.

DISPERSAL POSITIONS
Front Door: Imnmediate area exit control to direct security as necessary and direct
Manager . .
customers away from the venue towards Shoreditch High Street.
Manager | Internal: Oversee location of internal security.
Security | Front Door/Exit Control: Direct people to the nearest transport links and away
Position 1 | from the venue in a quiet and orderly fashion towards Shoreditch High Street.
Security | Front Door/Exit Control: Direct people to the nearest transport links and away
Position 2 | from the venue in a quiet and orderly fashion towards Shoreditch High Street.
Securit Corner by Bar furthest from front door: Starting from the bar, talking to all
Positiony3 guests asking them to finish their drinks and move towards the entrance in an
orderly manner and to keep the noise to a minimum whilst leaving the premises.
Corner of Garden furthest from front of venue: Starting from the furthest point
Security | from the front door, slowly directing people to finish their drink and directing
Position 4 | them towards the main door to leave the area quietly, moving inside to help G3
once garden fully emptied.
Back left of venue: Starting from the bottom left corner of the venue opposite
Security | the bar area and slowly directing people to finish drinks and directing them
Position 5 | towards the stairs and down towards the front door. Once 50% of guests have left
the venue, Guard is to join outside dispersal team.

Page 268




POSITION MAP:

Page 269



FINAL & EXTERNAL DISPERSAL

This is a position map and showing positions that are to be taken once the internal dispersal
has been completed. Security will stay in their final positions for at least 30 minutes after the
terminal hour of the venue, or until the patrons from the venue have dispersed.

DISPERSAL POSITIONS

Front Door: Immediate area exit control to direct security as necessary and

Manager . . .
9 direct customer away from the venue towards Shoreditch High Street.
Manager | Internal: Oversee location of internal security.
. Rivington Place: Direct people to the nearest transport links and away
Security . . . . .
Position 1 from the venue in a quiet and orderly fashion towards Shoreditch High
Street. Stopping people gathering and loitering in Rivington Place.
. Secondary Entrance/Exit: Direct people to the nearest transport links and
Security . . . .
. away from the venue in a quiet and orderly fashion towards Shoreditch
Position 2 )
High Street.
. Front Door/Exit Control: Direct people to the nearest transport links and
Security . . . .
.. away from the venue in a quiet and orderly fashion towards Shoreditch
Position 3

High Street.

Shoreditch High Street/Rivington Street Crossroad: Directing people to
Security the nearest transport links towards Liverpool Street Station and Old Street
Position 4 | and ensuring people do not gather and loitering around the entrance to
Rivington Place.

Shoreditch High Street/Rivington Street Crossroad: Directing people to
Security the nearest transport links towards Liverpool Street Station and Old Street
Position 5 | and ensuring people do not gather and loitering around the entrance to
Rivington Place.

Page 270



POSITION MAP:

Page 271



TRANSPORT INFORMATION:

The venue has very good transport links which run throughout the night. The map below
shows the two primary routes that will be recommended to customers.

GREEN: The following Night Buses run from Shoreditch High Street along the green route;
N205, N26, N242. At the end of the green route the Night Tube operates from Liverpool
Street station on Fridays and Saturdays until 5.30am the following day.

RED: The following Night Buses run from Old Street Station; 243, N55, N19, 76, N15, N21,
N89, N550, N551.

Taxis & Minicabs: Customers will be required to collect patrons from Shoreditch High
Street.

Pedicabs: Pedicabs will not be permitted to stop outside the venue or anywhere in the
immediate area during dispersal. Security staff will move on any pedicabs attempting to
stop in the immediate area.

Page 272



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

| have read and understood the Dispersal Policy for Simmons Rivington Street.

| understand the various positions and roles that | may be required to undertake during
dispersal and will follow further instructions on the night accordingly.

Signed:

Badge No:

Signed by Venue Manager:

Date:

Page 273



EXHIBIT 7

SECURITY POLICY

As part of Simmons’ commitment to operate venues that are safe and free from anti-social
behaviour this policy is set out to ensure that Simmons is operating in a way will that
reduce the opportunity for any potential anti-social behaviour or noise pollution to occur
within the surrounding area.

THE FOLLOWING MEASURES ARE TO BE FOLLOWED:

e Security are to be provided by a reputable security company.

o All security staff on duty will be SIA registered.

e Security to be on duty from 9pm every day the venue is open for business.

e Security will be deployed based on a ratio of 1:100, with a minimum of 5 on duty
on Friday and Saturday nights.

e An ID Scan system will be used from 7pm every day the premises is open.

e All security will wear Hi-Vis vests while on duty.

e All security will have body worn cameras when on duty.

e Security will ensure that clicker counts are kept of guests entering and exiting the
venue.

e Security will sign in with full name and badge number before every shift.

e Security will have badges on show at all times while on duty.

e Allocated door paperwork will be filled out during every shift.

e Regular toilet checks will be completed by security on duty.

e Security will be positioned throughout the venue to ensure all areas of the venue
and outside area are supervised during key trading shifts.

e A CCTV Operator will be on duty every night from 9pm.

e A Welfare Officer will be employed by the venue for the first 200 customers, for
every 200 customers after this an additional Welfare Officer will be employed. At
least 50% of these officers will be female.

e Security to have read and deliver the site's dispersal policy at the end of every
trading shift.

e Venue Management to manage the security team as per Simmons Door
Management Guide.

Page 274



This policy is to be adhered to until a review is undertaken and measures edited by the
Simmons group Operations team to ensure best practice in light of experience.

Additional measure will be undertaken if necessary and regular reviews will be carried out
by the Simmons group Operations team to ensure comprehensive and corrective
measures are added and adhered to where necessary.

Page 275



EXHIBIT 8

OUTSIDE MANAGEMENT POLICY

As part of Simmons commitment to operate venues that are safe and free from anti-social
behaviour this policy is set out to ensure that Simmons is operating in a way will that
reduce the opportunity for any potential anti-social behaviour or noise pollution to occur
within the surrounding area.

THE FOLLOWING MEASURES ARE TO BE FOLLOWED:

e An organised and secure barrier system will be implemented at the front of the
venue.

e No drinks will be permitted outside of the premises.

o Cigarette bins will be provided for smokers.

e The pavement area directly outside the premises will be swept and washed at the
end of the night.

e Clear signage at entrance, exit and outside the venue asking customers to ‘Please
respect neighbours and keep noise to a minimum’.

e Regular checks by management of the outside area to ensure noise is being kept to
a minimum, no persons are on the road, no persons are blocking resident entrances
and no anti-social behaviour is being undertaken.

e Security will be on duty as per the premises license conditions regarding security
with security positioned at the front door and in the outside area floating between
inside and out. (Permanently positioned during core shifts in outside area).

e Security briefed to engage with customers outside the venue to ensure noise kept
to a minimum.

e No queuing will be permitted once maximum capacity is reached.

e Security briefed to ask people to move down towards Shoreditch High Street away
from Rivington Street when leaving the venue.

e All security and management staff to be briefed and trained on the venue's
Dispersal Policy and management to ensure it is followed at all times necessary.

e All smokers are to be kept within the designated outside terrace area.

e Security monitoring the outside area at all times during key trading hours.

e CCTV will be installed to suitably cover the outside areas of the venue.

Page 276



This policy is to be adhered to until a review is undertaken and measures edited by the
Simmons group Operations team to ensure best practice in light of experience.

Additional measure will be undertaken if necessary and regular reviews will be carried out
by the Simmons group Operations team to ensure comprehensive and corrective
measures are added and adhered to where necessary.

Page 277



26 June 2023

Licensing Impact Assessment

Viaduct (formerly Cargo, to be Simmons Bar), 62 Rivington Street, London, EC2A 3AY

Author: David Gair — Director Shield Associates

For: Mr Nick Campbell — Simmons Bar

Reference:

1. Introduction

1.1. | retired from the Metropolitan Police Service as a Chief Inspector in September 2013
after having completed 31 years’ exemplary service. | was personally responsible for
policing, liaison, partnership working and compliance in relation to licensed premises in the
Boroughs of Westminster, Sutton and Kingston-upon-Thames as well as involved in licensing

issues and strategies across the Metropolitan police area.

1.2. In particular, most recently, | was Chief Inspector Operations at Kingston-upon-Thames
responsible for all Licensing related issues and enforcement with a dedicated licensing team
under my command. As part of my responsibilities, | managed and delivered a series of
crime and disorder reduction and public safety strategies in relation to Oceana nightclub in
Kingston — upon - Thames (now PRYZM) which had headed a list of London’s top 50 night-
time economy venues ranked according to the amount of crime generated from these

venues.

1.3. In relation to my responsibilities, | undertook problem solving, partnership working and
compliance regimes to ensure the safety and security of patrons, staff and the local
community in relation to NTE licensed premises, in particular large night-clubs and venues

that remained open beyond 0200hrs. This included late-night refreshment houses, liaison

1
Page 278



with public transport providers and licensed mini-cab activities as part of the larger

problem-solving initiatives.

1.4. The strategies | put in place resulted in an immediate 25% reduction in crime at
‘Oceana’ and falling crime throughout a six-month period resulting in the venue being

removed from the top 50 NTE venues ranked according to reported crime in London.

1.5. 1 am Director of a company called Shield Associates that delivers nationally accredited
training for owners, DPS, licensees, security companies, bar staff and workers involved with
NTE venues around crime reduction, anti- social behaviour and awareness of their
responsibilities under the Licensing Act, forensic awareness, drugs awareness and personal

safety and vulnerable persons.

1.6. 1 am a member of the Institute of Licensing and as such am qualified to conduct

compliance audits and security reviews on licensed premises.

1.7. 1 am aware of the potential impact of the operation of NTE venues on local communities
and have provided reports to licensing committees and courts in relation to a variety of
licensing issues on various occasions both as a police officer and as a Director of Shield

Associates.

1.8. As a company, our aim is to provide independent regulatory support to the Licensing
trade, offer problem solving and compliance guidance and support the key objectives of the

Licensing act in reviewing working practices, policies and procedures to ensure:

e The security and safety of those visiting a venue
e The prevention of crime and disorder
e The prevention of public nuisance

e The protection of young & vulnerable people from harm

1.9. As such we have undertaken comprehensive reviews and audits of licensed premises to
ensure compliance and responsible management in support of the licensing objectives. We
have delivered training to staff at licensed venues, local Pub-Watch schemes, personal

licence holders and SIA door security companies.

2
Page 279



1.10. As a company, we undertake independent reviews of premises when instructed to do
so and as such my duty is to the licensing committee, venue owners and local community
when considering the impact of any new licence application or variation to permitted hours’

application.

1.11. All issues identified in this report are true to the best of my knowledge and
experience. They were either witnessed or experienced by me or told to me in good faith.
The opinions | have expressed in this report are honest held and correct to the best of my
judgement. The fee for this report is not conditional on the outcome of the case in anyway

whatsoever.

2. Instructions to Shield Associates

2.1. Shield Associates were instructed to undertake an independent licensing review and
impact assessment of the late-night entertainment venue currently known as Viaduct

(formerly Cargo), 83 Rivington Street, London, EC2A 3AY.

2.2. The aim was to test measures that the venue had in place and consider whether if the
venue was run as a Simmons Bar, given our extensive experience of undertaking licensing
assessments at other Simmons Bar venues across London, the new venue could operate in a

way that would support the licensing objectives in this location.

2.3. On the night of 22" March 2023 between 2100-2200hrs Shield operatives undertook a
Licensing risk assessment and environmental visual audit of the venue when operating as

Viaduct and the surrounding area.

3. Venue history, background and operation

3.1. The premises at 83 Rivington Street, Shoreditch had previously been operating as Cargo
nightclub until it closed in 2021 following a licensing review whereby it lost its licence.

Around September 2022, following the settlement of an appeal against the revocation

3
Page 280



decision, the venue was completely refurbished and re-opened as The Viaduct, a restaurant,

tap room and cocktail lounge.

3.2. The venue was split into three elements: The Arch, Tap, and Cosmos. It provides an all-
day service with different options for customers. It promotes itself as a place to ‘Settle in for

some uplifting casual food, taste a selection of craft beers, or kick back with a cocktail!’

3.3. The venue has a capacity for 550 patrons and staff. The current advertised operating
hours are as follows:

Sunday to Wednesday — Closed

Thursday — 1500 to 2300hrs

Friday — 1700 to 0000hrs

Saturday — 1200 to 0000hrs

3.4. The venue was set out over the ground floor, with four distinct areas. Closest to the
entrance in Rivington Street is a small restaurant. The main bar with extensive seating and
vertical drinking space is the next section. The rear area inside the venue is a cocktail bar
with more seating. There is no designated dance floor area inside the venue, though ample
vertical drinking space. The final area sits to the left of the venue as you look from Rivington
Street and is an outside area with tables and chairs in Rivington Place. There is a DJ station
for music to be played and the gents and ladies’ toilets are accessible near to the entrance

of the venue.

3.5. The venue is currently closed.

4. The premises locality

4.1. The venue sits within a busy area of Shoreditch that has several late-night entertainment
venues, bars, restaurants, pubs and fast-food outlets. There are a number of venues in Old
Street, Curtain Road and nearby streets that include Ballie Ballerson (open until 0200hrs
Fridays and Saturdays), The Strongroom (open util 0200hrs Fridays and Saturdays), The Blues
Kitchen (open until 0230hrs Fridays and 0300hrs Saturdays), Be At One Bar (open until 0200hrs

4
Page 281



Fridays and Saturdays) and Old Street Records Bar and Club (open until 0200hrs Thursdays,

Fridays and Saturdays).

4.3. Vehicular traffic during our visit was heavy. A mix of minicabs, buses, cycles and cars.
Pedestrian traffic was similarly busy throughout our visit. We have also visited this area in
relation to other licensed venues and our experience has been that the area is a very popular
destination for people looking to enjoy a night out. We experienced a mix of mostly couples

or groups walking through the area, commonly known as ‘the strip’.

4.5 The nearest mainline/underground rail stations are Shoreditch High Street, Old Street
and Hoxton. The area is well served by bus routes including several night buses (N8, N26,

N55 and N205).

5. Observations

5.1. During the evening we visited the venue and spoke to a member of the senior
management team who showed us around the venue, which was very quiet during our visit.
The entrance of the venue in Rivington Street is beneath a viaduct and in a relatively quiet
road in relation to vehicular traffic. The outside bar/area is visible in Rivington Place and is
known for having a ‘Banksy’ graffiti painting on one of the walls. There were two SIA door

team at the entrance.

5.2. We completed a Licensing Compliance checklist during our visit and the venue was, in our

opinion, operating in compliance with its licensing conditions.

6. Issues of concern/considerations

6.1. As mentioned above, the venue was extremely quiet during our visit. There appear to be
comprehensive policies and safeguards in place to support the licensing objectives. We were,
however, unable to fully test the processes as the venue was more or less empty during our

visit.

5
Page 282



6.2. Taking this into consideration, it is difficult without seeing the venue near to capacity, the
gueue management, and dispersal practices to judge whether the policies currently in place

are sufficient to effectively support the licensing objectives.

6.3. We have been made aware of that there have been concerns raised by neighbours and
residents nearby to the premises and other parties in relation to its continued use as a late-

night entertainment venue. The main concerns appear to be:

e Concerns with the management team
e Breaches of licensing conditions

e Criminal activity

e Anti-social behaviour

e Drug taking

e Control of dispersal

e Lax/ineffective security arrangements

6.4. We have assessed around 10-15 Simmons Bars across London, including those in
cumulative impact areas, over the last eight years. In our professional opinion and experience,
if the Shoreditch site was to be run by the Simmons Bar group, as is now proposed, the
operating practices, customer profile, staff training and briefing and comprehensive policies
developed by the in-coming operators would support the licensing objectives. The operators
would also, in our experience, look to develop strong relationships with the local authority,
police and local community. We have found that the Simmons Group are responsive and
considerate operators who are highly professional, proactive in preventing issues arising in

the first place, but responsive if/when issues arise.

6.5. In respect of the main concerns listed above, we feel that Simmons Bars have a proven
and robust response to dealing with concerns in a pro-active and effective manner. They have
a reputation for communication with and respecting the local community, local authority, and
police in their problem solving. They provide contact numbers for their on-duty managers and,

where appropriate, will set up meetings and regular updates for residents and communities.

6
Page 283



6.6. Taking each concern individually, our experience of working with Simmons Bars would
suggest that they have policies and practices in place to deal with potential concerns and
mitigate risks. | have reviewed the policies drafted for this site in particular and they are likely
to lead to an operation that promotes the licensing objectives. In relation to the concerns
expressed the following have been witnessed and experienced by Shield Associates operatives

on visits to Simmons premises:

e Concerns with the management team — Simmons bars have an experienced and well-
trained team of DPS’s/managers who are all personal licence holders and trained by
the company to a high standard of competence.

e Breaches of licensing conditions — An understandable concern given previous issues
with the former operators, however, our experience and observations would suggest
that Simmons Bars comply with their licensing conditions, take compliance very
seriously, and have policies in place to ensure their staff and management team are
aware of their responsibilities.

e Criminal activity — Very much linked with lax/ineffective security arrangements
highlighted in the police representation relating to Viaduct. In contrast, Simmons Bars,
work closely with their chosen security providers to ensure the most effective teams
are in place at their venues to prevent crime and anti-social behaviour. We would
suggest a full security and licensing review is undertaken once the premises is fully
operational.

e Anti-social behaviour — As above, part of a comprehensive security package is being
proposed to mitigate this risk.

e Controlled dispersal — Our experience of assessing several Simmons bars has
highlighted that each premises has its own bespoke dispersal policy that involves the
controlled shut-down of entertainment, raising of lights, last service or alcoholic drinks
and dedicated postings inside and outside the premises to monitor and control the

dispersal.

7
Page 284



e Lax/ineffective security arrangements — As above, our experience is that the Simmons
Group’s focus is on getting the security team right for each venue. They are very much

part of the premises team and seen as critical to the success of a bar/venue.

6.7. As mentioned above the venue has been fully refurbished and certainly fits more onto
the style and vision of the Simmons Bar group. There is a far greater emphasis on seating
areas, a cocktail bar, and no dedicated dance floor. The venue feels more like a large bar than

a nightclub.

6.8. We would recommend a full independent licensing impact assessment and compliance
visit be undertaken if/when the venue is operating as a Simmons Bar and where the venue
has a large number of customers expected or attending to fully assess the effectiveness of the

operation.

7. Conclusion

7.1. In respect of the venue, currently it appears to be responsibly run with an attention to
supporting the licensing objectives and a willingness to respond to reasonable concerns,

though this could not be fully tested until the venue opens.

7.2. The nearby area supports a significant number of late-night entertainment and
refreshment venues and is a popular destination for people looking to enjoy an evening out

in this part of London.

7.3. During our time in the area, we did not witness any crime, disorder, or anti-social
behaviour by patrons of The Viaduct or by anyone else in the vicinity. The area was busy and

occasionally noisy; however, this was very much to be expected in the vicinity.

7.4. We feel that if the venue were to operate as a Simmons Bar the changes to the interior of
the premises, the profile of the clientele typically attracted to Simmons Bars and our
experience of assessing busy Simmons Bars across London, if the same oversight and

operational management currently implemented by the Simmons group at its bars was put in

8
Page 285



place as we would expect, the licensing objectives would be supported and the operators
would look to develop a responsive and cooperative partnership with the local authority,

police and local community.

David Gair
Shield Associates

Member of the Institute of Licensing

9
Page 286



	Agenda
	5 Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing Procedure
	Hearing Procedure Type C - Review

	6 Application for a Premises Licence: Abney Chapel, Abney Park, 215 Stoke Newington High Street, London, N16 0LH
	7 Review of a Premises License: Simmons (Formerly The Viaduct),83 Rivington Street, London, EC2A 3AY
	Simmons Premises Licence Holder  - Additional Evidence (2)




